Public Document Pack

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Wednesday, |5 November 2023

Tel: 01993 861000
e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

You are summoned to a meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee which will be held in
Committee Room |, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 INB on Thursday, 23 November 2023 at
6.00pm.

Giles Hughes
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Audit and Governance Committee
Councillors: Ruth Smith (Vice-Chair), Joy Aitman, Andrew Beaney, Rachel Crouch, Colin Dingwall,

Jane Doughty, David Jackson, Edward James, Liz Leffman, Dan Levy, Michele Mead,
David Melvin, Elizabeth Poskitt, Geoff Saul, Sandra Simpson, and Alex Wilson.

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and
Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.
Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting.

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 INB
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000

Page 1


http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/

AGENDA

Election of Chair

Purpose:
Election of the Chair for Audit and Governance Committee for the remainder of the

Civic Year 2023/24.

Recommendation:
That the Committee elects a Chair for the remainder of the Civic Year 2023/24.

Apologies for Absence
To receive any apologies for absence.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2023.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be
considered at the meeting.

Participation of the Public

To receive any submissions from members of the public, in accordance with the
Council’s Rules of Procedure, anyone who lives in the district or who pays council tax or
business rates to the Council is eligible to read a statement or express an opinion at this
meeting. You can register to speak by sending your written submission of no more than
750 words to democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk, by no later than 10.00am on the
working day before the meeting.

Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages |3 - 26)

Purpose:
To present a summary of the audit work concluded since the last meeting of this

Committee.

Recommendation:
That the Audit and Governance Committee resolves to note the report

Invited:
Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP

External Audit Progress Report and Audit Plan for year ending 3 1st March 2023 (Pages
27 - 66)

Purpose:

To provide Members with the Progress Report and the draft Audit Plan for year ending
31Ist March 2023.

Recommendation:
That the Audit and Governance Committee resolves to note the contents of the report
and appendices.

Page 2


mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

10.

Invited:
Madhu Richards, Director of Finance;
Peter Barber, Key Audit Partner, Grant Thornton.

Monitoring Report on Management’s responses to the External Auditors findings and
implementation of External Audit recommendations (Pages 67 - 78)

Purpose:

To provide Members with an update on the External Auditor Findings and
Recommendations from the 2021/22 financial and value for money audits carried out by
Grant Thornton.

Recommendation:
That Audit and Governance Committee resolves to note the contents of the report.

Invited:
Madhu Richards, Director of Finance.

Treasury Management Mid-Term Report (Pages 79 - 92)

Purpose:

To provide Members with an update on Treasury Management activity, the performance
of internal and external funds and prudential indicators for the period Ist April 2023 —
30th Sept 2023.

Recommendation:
That the Committee notes the Treasury Management Mid-Term Report.

Invited:
Madhu Richards, Director of Finance
Georgina Dyer, Chief Accountant

CIPFA's Position Statement on Audit Committees (Pages 93 - 182)

Purpose:

To present to the Audit and Governance Committee The Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (“CIPFA’s”) Updated Audit Committee Guidance along with
the self-assessment and evaluation toolkit to enable Committee Members to identify any
training needs to ensure they meet the principles as set out in the CIPFA guidance

Recommendation:

That the Audit and Governance Committee discusses the attached documents and
Members undertake a self-assessment, in readiness for the next meeting of the
Committee, to identify any training needs to ensure that all skills identified in the CIPFA
guidance can be met.

Invited:
Andrea McCaskie, Monitoring Officer
Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP

Page 3



11. Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme 2023/24 (Pages 183 - 186)
Purpose:
Committee to note the Work Programme 2023/24.

Recommendation:
Committee to note and update where necessary the Work Programme 2023/24.

(END)

Page 4



Public Document Pack Agenda Iltem 3

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of the
Audit and Governance Committee
Held in Committee Room | at 6.00pm on Thursday 28 September 2023.

PRESENT
Councillors: Ruth Smith (Vice-Chair), Jane Doughty, Andrew Beaney, Elizabeth Poskitt,
Andrew Prosser, Edward James, Harry St. John, Joy Aitman, David Melvin, Sandra Simpson,
Dan Levy and Julian Cooper.

Officers: James Howse (Interim Director of Finance), Lucy Cater (Assistant Director SWAP),
Andrea McCaskie (Director of Governance), Max Thompson (Senior Democratic Services
Officer), Georgina Dyer (Chief Accountant), Emma Cathcart (Head of Service, Counter Fraud
and Enforcement Unit) and Anne Learmonth (Strategic Support Officer).

Other Councillors in attendance: Nil.

Apologies for Absence

Ahead of the meeting, the Council’s Senior Democratic Services Officer, Max Thompson, was
invited by the Vice-Chair to advise the Committee that the meeting would not be live
streamed to the Council’s website, as a result of technical issues suffered ahead of the
meeting. A note was placed on the Council’s website to advise the public that the meeting
would not be available to view.

Apologies for Absence were received from the following Members:

David Jackson, Alaric Smith, Mathew Parkinson, Alex Wilson, Michele Mead, Colin Dingwall
and Rachel Crouch.

e Councillor Julian Cooper was appointed as a Substitute Member for the meeting by
Councillor Dave Jackson;

e Councillor Dan Levy was appointed as a Substitute Member for the meeting by
Councillor Alaric Smith;

e Councillor Sandra Simpson was appointed as a Substitute Member for the meeting by
Councillor Rachel Crouch.
Declarations of Interest

Councillor Andrew Prosser stated that an item contained within the Internal Audit Progress
Report, fell under his stewardship as the Executive Member for Climate Change.

Councillor Julian Cooper stated that he would leave the room for the agenda item “Annual
Local Government Ombudsman Letter” as it pertained to a distant relative.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

The minutes of the previous meeting, held on Thursday 10 August 2023, were approved
unanimously by the Committee, and were signed by the Chair as a true & accurate record.
Participation of the Public

There was no public participation at the meeting.

Page &



20

Audit and Governance Committee
28/September2023
Strategic Risk Register Update

Cheryl Sloan, Business Manager for Governance, Risk and Business Continuity, introduced and
gave an overview of the report, which updated Members on the Strategic Risk Register, for
information and assurance, that risks to the Council are being managed and appropriate
actions are being taken to mitigate risk.

In debate, Members and officers highlighted that significant risks remain regarding potential
cyber-attacks and financial stability of the wider local government sector.

Members also were given reassurance around civil emergency contingencies, such as freak
nature and weather events linked to climate change. A study by Oxfordshire County Council
was underway.

The Committee also made reference to the impacts of Covid-19 on waste services provided
by Ubico, whereby newer, emerging variants may have knock on effects with staffing levels.

Members also highlighted financial stabilities with the Council’s Leisure Provider GLL, and that
should be there be any significant challenges to current positions, work to mitigate and work
through challenges would be undertaken by the Executive, and, if appropriate, by Council.

Officers also stated that items contained within the Strategic Risk Register were included
simply for planning purposes, and should external events dictate that they then become risks
to the Council, they are centrally collated to enable risks to be mitigated through the
appropriate channels.

Members thanked the work of Officers in bringing a clearer, more detailed risk register to
Committee, stating that it was easier to understand and make sense of, compared to previous
risk registers that had been presented.

Councillor Andrew Beaney proposed that the Committee note the update to the Strategic
Risk Register, in line with officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Jane
Doughty, was put to a vote, and was agreed unanimously by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:

I. Note the update to the Strategic Risk Register.

Annual Local Government Ombudsman Letter

Councillor Julian Cooper left the room ahead of the agenda item being considered by the
Committee.

Cheryl Sloan, Business Manager for Governance, Risk and Business Continuity, introduced and
gave an overview of the report, which presented the Annual Complaints statistics as provided
by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for the year Ist April 2022 — 3lst
March 2023.

The Business Manager highlighted changes to working practises by the Ombudsman, owing to
resource levels, where not all cases were reviewed. Cases are now ‘hand-picked’ and
reviewed as appropriate. The Business Manager stated that in the previous year, |3 complaints
were escalated to the Local Government Ombudsman, with 5 cases being referred back to the
original Council.

Andrea McCaskie, Director of Governance stated that the Annual Local Government
Ombudsman Letter was presented to Committee given its significant importance as an Annual

Page 8



21

Audit and Governance Committee
28/September2023

Report. It was suggested that the report may be presented to a meeting of Overview and
Scrutiny, although future reports would follow the desired pathway.

Members sought clarity on the term ‘premature decision’. Officers confirmed it related to a
three-stage complaints process involving the Local Government Ombudsman, and if
appropriate, where complaints would be referred back to the Council.

Councillor Harry St. John proposed that the Committee note the content of the report. This
was seconded by Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt, was put to a vote, and was unanimously agreed
by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:
I. Note the content of the report.

Councillor Joy Aitman proposed that the Committee note the Annual Review Letter 2022-
2023. This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Beaney, was put to a vote, and was
unanimously agreed by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:
I. Note the Annual Review Letter 2022-2023.

Councillor Julian Cooper returned to the room after the agenda item being considered by the
Committee.

Internal Audit Progress Report

Lucy Cater, Assistant Director at SWAP Internal Audit Services, introduced the report, which
presented a summary of the Audit work completed since the last meeting of Committee.

The Assistant Director advised the Committee that 4 of the 5 ‘agreed actions’ as listed within
the original report had been concluded since publication, and that this would be reflected at
the next meeting.

In debate, Members and Officers discussed the findings of the Climate Change (Operational) —
Final Position Statement — August 2023 and a perceived lack of responses. It was further
highlighted that the new Publica Assistant Director for Planning and Sustainable Development
would play a key role in ensuring a more reasonable response level.

Members and Officers also discussed the idea of Member training and how this would be
delivered in the future. The Director of Governance had liaised with the Council’s Climate
Change Manager to formulate a training plan for both Officers and Members, and more details
would be disseminated on this as appropriate in due course.

The idea of ‘mandatory training’ for Members was also raised, with a viewpoint offered
whereby it would become difficult to enforce training to Members, notwithstanding the need
for Officers to remain current on their workplace training practises, such as Carbon literacy.

Officers stated a balance that needed to be struck between technology investment and the
need for services to be delivered, such as updates to payroll systems. Members paid tribute to
the work of officers for their continued work. Officers reassured Members that findings
regarding Data Breaches are discussed at the Quarterly Officer Governance group, and if
appropriate, updates are given to Members.

Charges for Freedom of Information Requests were also highlighted, whereby excessive
requests would incur a charge to those who make such a request, however it is under the

Page 3



22

23

Audit and Governance Committee
28/September2023

jurisdiction of the Council to respond appropriately to any Freedom of Information request
received.

Councillor Andrew Beaney proposed that the Committee note the content of the Internal
Audit Progress Report. This was seconded by Councillor Joy Aitman, was put to a vote and
was unanimously agreed by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:

1. Note the content of the Internal Audit Progress Report.

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Update Report

Emma Cathcart, Head of Service Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit, introduced and gave a
detailed overview of the report, which provided the Committee with a summary and
assurances over the Counter Fraud activities of the Council. This included confirming that
business grant debt transfer was well underway and a reminder that much of the increased
Council Tax revenue referred to at 2.5 would be transferred to County.

The Head of Service was pleased to announce that Stroud District Council would be joining
the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Partnership from | April 202.

In debate, reassurance was given relating to tracing aged debt, and measures the Counter
Fraud and Enforcement Unit and the Council would take to recover existing debt.

The Head of Service outlined that information would be communicated to residents at key
times of year to combat fraud such as alerts regarding shopping scams at Christmas and alerts
relating to romance fraud near St. Valentine’s Day. It was also outlined that the team worked
to prevent fraud in various service areas such as Planning, where contractors could obtain
personal data and use it to scam applicants suggesting the Council had recommended their
services.

Councillor Jane Doughty proposed that the Committee note the content of the report. This
was seconded by Councillor Julian Cooper, was put to a vote, and was agreed unanimously by
the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:
I. Note the content of the report.

Councillor Joy Aitman proposed that the Committee note the Unit Work Plan. This was
seconded by Councillor Andrew Beaney, was put to the vote, and was agreed unanimously by
the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:
I. Note the Unit Work Plan.

Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Penalty and Prosecution Policy Review

Emma Cathcart, Head of Service Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit, introduced the report,
which provided the Committee with an updated Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Support Penalty and Prosecution Policy for comment.

The Head of Service advised the Committee that a report would be considered by the
Executive at their meeting in November 2023.

Page 8



24

Audit and Governance Committee
28/September2023

In debate, Members sought reassurance over the term ‘customers’ as opposed to ‘residents’,
and it was confirmed that this term was used as a result of a decision taken by management
which related to the enforcement work.

Officers reassured Members that the Council has overall control of recovery methods and
enforcement action, whilst the services are undertaken by the Counter Fraud and
Enforcement Team, and Legal where appropriate, on behalf of the Council.

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt proposed that the Committee agree the recommendations as
listed on the report. This was seconded by Councillor Jane Doughty, was put to a vote, and
was unanimously agreed by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:

I. Note the Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Penalty and
Prosecution Policy.

Statement of Accounts 2021-2022

James Howse, Interim Director of Finance, introduced and gave a detailed overview of the
report, which presented the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for the period | April
2021 to 31 March 2022, enabling Committee to consider and approve the Council’s accounts.

The Interim Director reiterated that, in common with a number of other Councils, the audit
process for 2021/22 has been subject to significant delay. The causes of the delay revolved
largely around resources (both within the audit sector and the Council’s Finance Team) and
also delays related to the audit of the Oxfordshire Local Government Pension Scheme, which
was outside the control of the Council.

The Interim Director was pleased to announce that the Council had received an Unqualified
Audit Opinion, which was deemed to be a good standing point for the Council. The Interim
Director also stated that as a result of the 2021/2022 process being completed, this would
allow work to get underway with the 2022/2023 process, and that a report would come
before Committee when the time came that the report be ready for adoption.

The Interim Director, the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Councillor Ruth Smith, and all other
Members of the Committee thanked the work of the Council’s financial team for all their
continued work, desire and patience to be able to bring the report before the Committee.

In debate, it was highlighted that there would be a reasonable increase in audit fees during the
next budget setting process, despite the delays experienced during the process that had
recently come to an end. However, delays were also as a result of resource issues.

Equal Pay claims were also discussed, and assurance was given that there are no claims
outstanding with the Council or the Publica Partnership, and that there were policies and
procedures in place should any claims be made in the future. It was also highlighted that the
Council’s Whistleblowing policy had also been updated.

Councillor Harry St. John proposed the Committee agree to the recommendations as listed
on the report. This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Beaney, was put to a vote, and was
unanimously agreed by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:

I. Note the Grant Thornton Audit Findings for West Oxfordshire District Council;

Page 9



25

Audit and Governance Committee

28/September2023
2. Approve the Statement of Accounts 2021/22, including the Annual Governance
Statement;

3. Authorise the Interim Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chair of the
Committee, to write a letter of representation to Grant Thornton LLP on behalf of the
Committee and the Council, enabling the opinion to be issued.

Annual Summary of Member Conduct Complaints

Andrea McCaskie, Director of Governance, introduced the report, which advised the
Committee of the number and status of Code of Conduct complaints received and considered
by the Council’s Monitoring Officer in the period from | April 2022 to 31 August 2023. A
further report would come before Committee in March 2024.

The Director of Governance stated that since taking up post, the idea of strongly encouraged,
continuous training would be of real benefit across the Council, and further highlighted the
importance of ongoing training to moth Members and Officers, where staff and Councillors
are kept abreast of safety procedures, staying safe online, and ensuring that sensitive data in
not able to leak into the public domain.

In debate, Members welcomed the new direction in continual development and learning,
although stated that attendance at recent Members sessions was perceived to be low. The
Committee agreed that training should not be mandated but should be encouraged through
Group Leaders and amongst peers.

The Committee also advised of technical difficulties associated with online training, and that a
potential library of training would be of use, in the case of Member diary clashes or other
Council commitments.

The Director of Governance advised that Committee amend recommendation 2’ listed on the
original report to state “Request an annual report on Code of Conduct complaints and
member learning & development”.

The Director of Governance further advised that Committee amend recommendation ‘3’
listed on the original report to state “Request that a recording of the social media, and
inclusion & diversity training, is made available to all members”.

Councillor Sandra Simpson proposed that Committee amend recommendations 2 and 3 as
advised. This was seconded by Councillor Joy Aitman, was put to a vote, and was unanimously
agreed by the Committee.

Councillor Sandra Simpson proposed that the Committee agree to the recommendations
listed on the original report, with recommendations ‘2’ and ‘3’ amended as prior agreed. This
was seconded by Councillor Joy Aitman, was put to a vote, and was unanimously agreed by
the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:
I. Note the report;

2. Request an annual report on Code of Conduct complaints and member learning &
development;

3. Request that a recording of the social media, and inclusion & diversity training, is made
available to all members.

PBggelo



26

Audit and Governance Committee
28/September2023
Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme 2023-2024

The Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme 2023-2024 was received and noted
by the Committee.

Councillor Sandra Simpson proposed that the Committee note the contents of the work
programme. This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Beaney, was put to the vote, and was
agreed unanimously by the Committee.

The Committee Resolved to:

1. Note the contents of the Audit and Governance Work Programme 2023-2024.

The Meeting closed at 7.52pm.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 6

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 23"° NOVEMBER 2023

Subject

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Wards affected

None

Accountable member

Councillor Alaric Smith, Executive Member for Finance

Email: Alaric.Smith@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Madhu Richards, Chief Finance Officer

Email: Madhu.Richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Report author

Lucy Cater, Head of Internal Audit. Assistant Director, SWAP Internal
Audit Services

Email: Lucy.Cater@swpapaudit.co.uk

Summary/Purpose To present a summary of the audit work concluded since the last meeting
of this Committee.
Annexes Annex A — Report of Internal Audit Activity 2023/24

Annex B — Agreed Actions

Recommendation(s)

That the Audit and Governance Committee resolves to:

/. Note the report

Corporate priorities

(Internal Audit supports all Council Corporate Priorities
e Putting Residents First
e A Good Quality of Life for All
e A Better Environment for People and Wildlife
e Responding to the Climate and Ecological Emergency
e  Working Together for West Oxfordshire

Key Decision

NO

Exempt

NO

Page 13



Consultees /
Consultation

Not Applicable

Page 14




BACKGROUND

The Internal Audit Service is provided to this Council by SWAP Internal Audit Services
(SWAP). SWAP is a local authority-controlled company.

The report attached at Annex A sets out the work undertaken by SWAP for the Council. It
follows the risk-based auditing principles and, therefore, this is an opportunity for the
Committee to be aware of emerging issues which have resulted from SWAP involvement.

Officers from SWAP will be in attendance at the Committee meeting and will be available to
address Members’ questions.

MAIN POINTS

The progress report (Annex A) enables the Audit and Governance Committee to monitor
the work of the Internal Audit Service and ensure that it remains effective. It also provides
the Committee with assurance opinions over areas reviewed within the reporting period,
details of audit recommendations and the outcome of follow-up reviews conducted on
previous audit recommendations.

There are no final reports to present at this time, but we have a number of audits at draft
report stage:
e Revenues and Benefits
ICT Business Continuity
Estates Services
Property Services
Taxi Licensing (Safeguarding)
Transparency Data
Bank Reconciliation

And, our plan remains flexible to respond to requests for audits or ad hoc reviews.

We continue to follow up all agreed actions. A report (Annex B) showing all open agreed
actions and those that have been actioned during 2023/24 has been included for Members
information.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
Not Applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Internal Audit Service is operating within the contract sum.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly from this report. Internal Audit reviews consider compliance with legislation
relevant to the service area under review.

Page 15



9.2

RISK ASSESSMENT

The weaknesses in the control framework, identified by the Internal Audit activity,
continues to threaten organisational objectives if reccommendations are not implemented.

EQUALITIES IMPACT
Not Applicable

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS
Not Applicable

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The following documents have been identified by the author of the report in accordance with
section 100D.5(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 and are listed in accordance with
section 100 D.l(a) for inspection by members of the public:

e Internal Audit Reports

These documents will be available for inspection online at www.westoxon.gov.uk or by
contacting democratic services democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk for a period of up to
4 years from the date of the meeting.

(END)

Page 16


http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

SWAP

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
Helping Organisations to Succeed

West Oxfordshire District Council
Report of Internal Audit Activity

-  November 2023

Internal Audit = Risk = Special Investigations ® Consultancy

Unrestricted



3T obed

The contacts at SWAP in
connection with this report are:

Lucy Cater

Assistant Director
Tel: 01285 623340 Internal Audit Definitions
lucy.cater@swapaudit.co.uk

PY Contents:

Audit Plan Progress

Jaina Mistry Finalised Audit Assignments
Principal Auditor
Tel: 01285 623337

jaina.mistry @swapaudit.co.uk /

work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation
SWAP ki leted ly with the | i | Professi | P i F k of the Insti fl | Audi furth ided by i i
g oreiing - Prensets provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.


mailto:lucy.cater@swapaudit.co.uk
mailto:jaina.mistry@swapaudit.co.uk

6T obed

Internal Audit Definitions

At the conclusion of audit
assignment work each review is
awarded a “Control Assurance
Definition”;

Audit Framework Definitions

Control Assurance Definitions

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-
compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area

e No
e Limited No
e Reasonable

K audited.
e Substantial L X X . X
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is
Limited required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively

manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in
Reasonable | place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which
may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal
Substantial | controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Non-Opinion — In addition to our opinion based work we will provide consultancy services. The “advice”
offered by Internal Audit in its consultancy role may include risk analysis and evaluation, developing
potential solutions to problems and providing controls assurance. Consultancy services from Internal
Audit offer management the added benefit of being delivered by people with a good understanding of
the overall risk, control and governance concerns and priorities of the organisation.

SWAP SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation
cing  bmercing - Pt provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.



0cZ abed

Internal Audit Definitions

Recommendations are prioritised
from 1 to 3 on how important they are
to the service/area audited. These are
not necessarily how important they
are to the organisation at a corporate
level.

Each audit covers key risks. For each
audit a risk assessment is undertaken
whereby with management risks for
the review are assessed at the
Corporate inherent level (the risk of
exposure with no controls in place)
and then once the audit is complete
the Auditors assessment of the risk
exposure at Corporate level after the
control environment has been tested.
All assessments are made against the
risk appetite agreed by the SWAP
Management Board.

Audit Framework Definitions

Categorisation of Recommendations
When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the
recommendation is to their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the risks
identified for the service but scored at a corporate level and the priority assigned to the recommendation. No
timeframes have been applied to each Priority as implementation will depend on several factors; however, the
definitions imply the importance.

Categorisation of Recommendations

Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the service’s business processes and require

Priority 1 ) . .

¥ the immediate attention of management.
Priority 2 Important findings that need to be resolved by management
Priority 3  Finding that requires attention.

Definitions of Risk

Risk Reporting Implications
High Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both senior management and the
& Audit Committee.
Medium  Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility.
Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement can be made.

Page 6



T¢ obed

No

C t
Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion of Priority OMMENts
Rec 2
Key Financial Control Payroll 2022/23 Final Report - 0 Reported in September
Final
Operational Climate Change (Operational) Position N/A 0 Reported in September
Statement
Governance Freedom of Information Final Report - 4 2 Reported in September
Draft
Operational Taxi Licensing Safeguarding Position
Statement
Draft
Operational Estates Services Position
Statement
Operational Property Services Draft Report

Key Financial Control

Bank Reconciliation

Draft Report

ICT

ICT Business Continuity
Management

Draft Report

Governance

Transparency Data

Draft Report

Key Financial Control

Revs and Bens - Council Tax and
NNDR

Draft Report

Key Financial Control

Revs and Bens - Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Support

Draft Report

. Revenues and Benefits Service Audit in
Advisory .
Review Progress
. . . Audit in
Core Financial Contractors — Use of Waivers
Progress
Governance Data Breaches Auditin
Progress
Governance Risk Management Audit Ready
Core Financial Payroll Audit Ready

Unrestricted




2¢ obed

No

C t
Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion of Priority OMMENts
Rec 2
Operational Human Resources Audit Ready
Core Financial Accounts Payable Audit Ready
Operational Accounts Payable — Qtly Review In Progress
Grant Certification Changing Places Fund Complete
Grant Certification Carbon Data 2022/23 Ready to
Start
Quarterly review of Business Grant
Business Grant Funding — Aged . Overpaymen.t Aged Debts with
Support On-Going Head of Service, Counter Fraud
Debt .
and Enforcement Unit for
reporting to BEIS
. Environmental Services .
Advisory On-Going
Improvement Programme
Advisory Procurement and Commissioning On-Going
Group
Advisory Health and Safety Working Group On-Going
Advisory Risk Management Group On-Going
Follow-Up of Agreed Actions (not .
Follow-Up included in an audit above) On Going
Other Audit Involvement Working with the Co%mter Fraud On Going
and Enforcement Unit
Other Audit Involvement Management of the IA Function On Going

and Client Support




ez abed

Audit Type

Audit Area

Status

Opinion

No
of
Rec

Priority

Comments

2

Other Audit Involvement

Contingency — Provision for New
Work based on emerging risks




vz abed

Unrestricted



Open Agreed Actions November 2023

Priority Revised Revised
APID | ID |AuditTitle Issue Title Issue Status Period Score AP Status Tii | Ti le| Tii le 2 ponsible Officer
438 396 |PUB - Revenues and Benefits - 2021/22 Regular Financial Reconciliations (HB) are not completed (CDC Pending Remediation 2021/22 2 In Progress 30/06/2022 | 30/11/2022| 31/10/2023 |Head of Revenues and Benefits / Head of Finance
and WODC) (Pentana 46965)
439 397 |PUB - Revenues and Benefits - 2021/22 Regular Financial Reconciliations (CT and NNDR) are not Pending Remediation 2021/22 2 In Progress 30/11/2022| 31/10/2023 --|Head of Revenues and Benefits / Head of Finance
completed (CDC and WODC) (Pentana 46965)
435 393 |PUB - Revenues and Benefits - 2020/21 CDC / WODC - Housing Benefit not reconciled during 2020 Pending Remediation 2020/21 2 In Progress 31/01/2021| 30/11/2022| 31/10/2023 | Publica Business Partner Accountant
(Pentana 44592)
434 392 [PUB - Revenues and Benefits - 2020/21 CDC and WODC - Officer system access is not revoked when it is Pending Remediation 2020/21 In Progress 31/03/2021| 31/03/2023| 31/10/2023|Business Manager Operational Services
no longer required. (Pentana 44540)
834 769 |WODC - Climate Change Strategy - September 2022 |KPI Review and Update Pending Remediation 2022/23 In Progress 30/09/2023| 31/01/2024 --|Climate Change Manager (WODC)
835 | 770 |WODC - Climate Change Strategy - September 2022 |Strategy and Plan Refresh Pending Remediation | 2022/23 In Progress 30/09/2023| 31/01/2024 --|Climate Change Manager (WODC)
1003 | 920 |WODC-S106 Agreements and Funds 2022/23 S106 Agreement Reporting (Pentana 47869) Pending Remediation 2022/23 2 In Progress 31/03/2023| 30/09/2023| 31/12/2023|WODC Planning Policy Manager
2825 | 2634 |WODC - Freedom of Information - 2023/24 Basic training/awareness on Freedom of Information requests for| Pending Remediation 2023/24 2 In Progress 30/11/2023 - --|Business Manager — Business Continuity, Governance and Risk
Service Areas is not in place.

Gz abed




Follow-Up A

Being Reviewed as part of the annual audit

Being Reviewed as part of the annual audit

Being Reviewed as part of the annual audit

Being Reviewed as part of the annual audit

3 key climate documents are in development and are due to be
approved by the Council's Executive. The documents will have
quantitative KPIs and monitoring arrangements included.
Timescale revised to reflect the approval process. Current
strategy expires 2025.

3 key climate documents are in development and are due to be
approved by the Council's Executive. The documents will have
quantitative KPIs and monitoring arrangements included.
Timescale revised to reflect the approval process. Current
strategy expires 2025.

Extend date to allow CFO input and consultation with Members
re reporting requirements.

9z abed




Agenda Item 7

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2023

Subject

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND AUDIT PLAN FOR
YEAR ENDING 31* March 2023

Woards affected

All

Accountable member

Clir Alaric Smith Executive Member for Finance
Email: alaric.smith@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Madhu Richards, Director of Finance
Email: madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Report author

Madhu Richards, Director of Finance

Email: madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose To provide Members with the Progress Report and the draft Audit Plan
for year ending 31* March 2023.
Annexes Annex A — Progress Report November 2023

Annex B — Draft Audit Plan for Year Ended 31* March 2023

Recommendation(s)

That the Audit and Governance Committee resolves to:

I. Note the contents of the report and appendices.

Corporate priorities

e Putting Residents First

¢ A Good Quality of Life for All

e A Better Environment for People and Wildlife

e Responding to the Climate and Ecological Emergency
e Working Together for West Oxfordshire

Key Decision NO
Exempt NO
Consultees/

Consultation NO

Page 27


mailto:madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

BACKGROUND

Just 1% of English councils published audited accounts by the statutory deadline.

One in 10 county councils in England is facing effective bankruptcy and district councils face
similar challenges.

This environment is increasing the risk of financial irregularities making timely audits
imperative.

MAIN POINTS

The appendices to this report contain the Progress Report November 2023 and Draft Audit
Plan for the year end 31* March 2023.

Peter Barber, from Grant Thornton, will be joining the meeting and presenting both
reports.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

None.

CONCLUSIONS

The Audit and Governance Committee are requested to note the Progress Report
November 2023 and the draft Audit Plan 2022-23.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

RISK ASSESSMENT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS

None.
(END)

Page 28



o Grant Thornton

West Oxfordshire District Council
Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

14 November 2023

6¢ abed




o€ abed

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Introduction

Progress at November
Audit Deliverables
Sector Update

Page

o o1 F

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. Itis
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Authority or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Introduction

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Peter Barber

Key Audit Partner

T 0117 305 7897

E Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Katie Whybray

Senior Manager

T 0117 305 7601

E Katie.V.Whybray@uk.gt.com

T¢ abed

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a report on
progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

The paper also includes:

* asummary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as
a local authority; and

* includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the
Committee may wish to consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal
questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our
website, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can
download copies of our publications https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-
sector-services/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with
Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/

Z2< abed

Commercial in confidence

Progress at November 2023

Financial Statements Audit

We completed our work on your financial statements for 2021/22 in
September 2023. An unqualified opinion was issued on the 29 September
2023.

2022/23

Due to the delay in concluding the 2021/22 opinion audit, the
commencement of our 2022/23 opinion work has been delayed. That said,
our indicative planning work has now been completed and our 2022/23
audit plan setting out our proposed approach to the audit of the Council's
2022/23 financial statements and VFM work is included as a separate item
on the November meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee.

Our planning and interim field work to date has included:

+ Consideration of managements responses to our initial planning
inquiries questionnaire

* Updated understanding of financial systems
* Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

* Understanding how the Authority makes material estimates for the
financial statements

* Updated review of the Authority’s control environment
* Completion of value for money risk assessment

Our detailed post-statements work will start in January 2024 with work due
to conclude in March 2024. We will report our findings in our Audit Findings
Report which we anticipate will be presented to the March 2024 meeting of
the Audit & Governance Committee.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Value for Money

Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for local government bodies
auditors are required to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report no later
than 30 September or, where this is not possible, issue an audit letter
setting out the reasons for delay.

The National Audit Office(NAO]have issued Auditor Guidance Note 3
(AGN 03] in relation to Auditors” Work on Value for Money (VFM)
Arrangements for 22-23 audits.

The ongoing delays in local audit continue to significantly impact
audited bodies and the financial reporting and auditing process, and
may therefore affect the timing of when the work on VFM
arrangements set out in AGNO3 is performed and reported.

The guidance states that the auditor should perform the procedures
required as part of their work on VFM arrangements under AGN 03
and issue their Auditor’s Annual Report when their work is complete.

For 2022/23 audits, the NAO have confirmed that where the Auditor's
Annual Report cannot be issued by 30 September it should be issued
no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the
financial statements for all local government bodies. We wrote to the
Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee in October outlining the
revised timetable for our 2023/24 VFM work.

Work in this area is now well progressed. We anticipate issuing our
Auditor’s Annual Report setting out the findings of our 2022/23 VFM
work in January 2024.



cc abed

Audit Deliverables

Commercial in confidence

2022/23 Deliverables Planned Date Status
Audit Plan November 2023 Completed
We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit and Governance Committee setting out our proposed

approach in order to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2022/23 financial statements and to issue a commentary

on the Authority's value for money arrangements in the Auditor's Annual Report

Audit Findings Report March 2024 Not yet due
The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Auditors Report March 2024 Not yet due
This includes the opinion on your financial statements.

Auditor’s Annual Report January 2024 Not yet due

This report communicates the key outputs of the audit, including our commentary on the Authority's value for
money arrangements.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



7€ abed

Sector Update

Authorities continue to try to achieve greater efficiency in
the delivery of public services, whilst facing challenges to
address rising demand, ongoing budget pressures and
social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date
summary of emerging national issues and developments to
support you. We cover areas which may have an impact on
your organisation, the wider local government sector and
the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the
detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and
find out more.

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake
research on service and technical issues. We will bring you
the latest research publications in this update. We also
include areas of potential interest to start conversations
within the organisation and with audit committee members,
as well as any accounting and regulatory updates.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

e Grant Thornton Publications

* Insights from local government sector
specialists

* Reports of interest

¢ Accounting and regulatory updates

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and
local government sections on the Grant Thornton website by
clicking on the logos below:

Local

Public Sector
government



http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/

Ge abed

Commercial in confidence

Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of audited
local authority accounts in England - Grant Thornton

Recent performance against target publication dates for audited locall
authority accounts in England has been poor. There are some reasons
for optimism that there will be an improvement in the timeliness of
publication of audited accounts as foundations are being laid for the
future.

In this report we explore the requirements for publication of draft and
audited accounts and look at some of the reasons for the decline in
performance against these requirements over time. Only 12% of audited
accounts for 2021/22 were published by the target date of 30 November
2022. There is no single cause for the delays in completing local
authority audits, and unfortunately there is no quick solution in a
complicated system involving multiple parties. We consider a variety of
factors contributing to delays, note the measures which have already
been taken to support the local audit system and make
recommendations for further improvement.

There are some reasons for cautious optimism that the system will begin
to recover and there will be a gradual return to better compliance with
publication targets. However, we consider that these are outweighed by
a number of risk factors and that the September deadline for audited
accounts set by DHLUC is not achievable in the short term and also not
achievable until there is further significant change in local audit and
local government.

We note the following matters that are yet to be tackled:

* clarity over the purpose of local audit

* the complexity of local government financial statements

* agreement on the focus of financial statements audit work

* animprovement in the quality of financial statements and working
papers

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

an agreed approach to dealing with the
backlog of local government audits

Government intervention where there are
significant failures in financial reporting

processes O,
nt7770,,,t°n

All key stakeholders including local audited Ap

bodies, the audit firms, the Department for out t”'he

Levelling Up Housing and Communities, PSAA, 5o, ,/

djg, d/g ”’S Fegs,

urho,,,y de/y
°Unt P b/,ctm

the NAO, the FRC and its successor ARGA,
CIPFA and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales will need to
continue their efforts to support a coherent
and sustainable system of local audit,
acknowledging that it will take time to get
things back on track.

"~""’H?@,

We make recommendations in our report for
various stakeholders, including Audit
Committees and auditors, and include a
checklist for consideration by management
and Audit Committees within an Appendix to
the report.

Read the full report here:

Report: key challenges in local audit accounting |
Grant Thornton



https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/report-key-challenges-in-local-audit-accounting/

o¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’-
Grant Thornton (Oct 23)

Low capacity in council finance teams and the failure to deal with
historic accounting issues mean the current September audit

deadline is unlikely to be met. /

The firm said the changes in recent years to council investment \
strategies have seen annual accounts become increasingly complex.

In evidence to a Public Accounts Committee inquiry, Grant Thornton
said the increased workload and pressure on resources have -
complicated recruitment and compounded delays. .

The auditors said it is unlikely firms will be able to meet the 30 N/ X <
September deadline for pubHshing opinions on 2022-23 financial 7 / I =
statements, because they are still working on previous years’ /[
accounts. \

The firm said one of the key issues causing delays is the lack of 7 \ /
consensus over areas of audit focus, specifically over how land and >
buildings are audited. \BN\LA

/
“Too much audit resource is absorbed in declin% with longstanding > | /N
financial reporting issues at poorly performing bodies,” the firm said. S

In certain instances, audits are open as far back as 2017-18. — < — /

“Perhaps more importantly, there has not been enough debate with g / </
the sector on the purpose of local audit and the enhanced audit 2
scrutiny it faces. .

“This is particularly the case with the audit of property. Until these
matters are resolved we do not consider that the September deadline B ,
is achievable.” <

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8


https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/118580/pdf/

, € abed

Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’-

Grant Thornton(cont.)

Grant Thornton said that while audit firms can be sanctioned by the Financial
Reporting Council for failing to comply with regulations, there are currently no
punishments for public bodies that fail to meet requirements.

It said there should be interventions for audited bodies that show “significant
failures in financial reporting and an unwillingness to improve™.

In its evidence the firm blamed a lack of council funding to bolster finance
teams for a reduction in the quality of reporting, causing further delays.

“Unfortunately, the quality of too many financial statements and working
papers are not adequate,” Grant Thornton said.

“Improvement in accounts preparation, and recruitment and investment in
finance teams is essential if local government is to prepare consistently high-
quality draft accounts and respond to the challenges presented by an
enhanced audit regime.”

In December, local audit procurement body Public Sector Audit Appointments
revealed thatonly 12% of local government audits for 2021-22 were completed
by the 30 November deadline.

PSAA said that 630 opinions were outstanding from both 2021-22 and previous

years, and the level of opinions completed on time has declined significantly
from 45% in 2019-20.

Read the full report here

committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/118580/pdf/

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

/
|

Commercial in confidence

\ /


https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/12/backlogs-hinder-recovery-local-audit-performance
https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/118580/pdf/

g¢c abed

Commercial in confidence

DLUHC proposals to clear audit backlog

Arange of proposals and actions to address the backlog of local audits in
England has been set out by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities (DLUHC).

These include setting statutory deadlines and issuing qualifications and
disclaimers of opinion in the short term.

The proposals have been agreed in principle with key partners across the
local audit system, DLUHC said. The National Audit Office (NAO) is
considering whether to develop a replacement Code of Audit Practice to
give effect to the changes, the department added.

In addition, DLUHC is considering whether legislative change is needed to
set new statutory deadlines for local bodies to publish accounts to mirror
the proposed changes to the Code of Audit Practice.

Legislative change may also be needed to address any knock-on effects of
the proposals which may impact the audit of opening balances within the
accounts for future years, the department said.

Under these proposals, section 151 officers will be expected to work with
Audit Committee members (or equivalent] to approve the final accounts by
the statutory deadline in order for the audit opinion to be issued at the
same time.

Read the full proposal here
committees.parliament.uk/publications/40932/documents/199432/default/

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10


https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/40932/documents/199432/default/
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/40932/documents/199432/default/

6E abed

Commercial in confidence

Call for sanctions for late accounts amid fears of ‘more
Wokings - public accounts committee (PAC)

The Commons’ public accounts committee (PAC] published a
report, Timeliness of local auditor reporting, which highlights problems
caused by the delays to local audit.

Just 12% of local government bodies received their audit opinions in time to
publish their 2021-22 accounts by the extended deadline. The committee
warned that the problem is likely to get worse before it gets better.

The report points out that there are no sanctions for failing to produce
accounts on time, for either auditors or councils.

The PAC and others have been concerned about the implications of audit
delays and Sir Geoffrey Clifton-Brown said cases like that of Thurrock
Council and Woking Borough Council demonstrate why this issue needs to
be addressed. Both councils had years of unaudited accounts when they
declared themselves effectively bankrupt due to excessive levels of debt.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 11


https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm5803/cmselect/cmpubacc/995/report.html

ot abed

Commercial in confidence

Around 700,000 children are studying in schools that
require major rebuilding or refurbishment works - NAO

The Department for Education has published guidance on school buildings which
were constructed using reinforced autoclaved aerated concrete - a lightweight form
of concrete prone to failure.

https://educationhub.blog.gov.uk/2023/09/04/new-guidance-on-raac-in-education-

settings/

The NAO also published a report this summer about the declining condition of the
school estate. The UK’s independent public spending watchdog’s report found that
more than a third (24,000) of English school buildings are past their estimated initial
design life. These buildings can normally continue to be used, but are generally more
expensive to maintain and, on average, have poorer energy efficiency leading to
higher running costs.

In recent years, there has been a significant funding shortfall contributing to
deterioration across the school estate. The department for Education (DfE] has
reported £7 billion a year as the best practice level of capital funding to repair and
rebuild the school estate.

The report says DfE has assessed the possibility of a building collapse or failure
causing death or injury as a ‘critical and very likely’ risk since summer 2021. The
report highlighted ongoing concerns with the use of reinforced autoclaved aerated
concrete (RAAC] - used between the 1950s and mid-1990s. DfE has been considering
the potential risk posed by RAAC since late 2018, following a school roof collapse.

Read the full report here

https://www.nao.org.uk/press-releases/condition-of-school-buildings-and-dfe-
sustainability-overview/

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12


https://educationhub.blog.gov.uk/2023/09/04/new-guidance-on-raac-in-education-settings/
https://educationhub.blog.gov.uk/2023/09/04/new-guidance-on-raac-in-education-settings/
https://www.nao.org.uk/press-releases/condition-of-school-buildings-and-dfe-sustainability-overview/
https://www.nao.org.uk/press-releases/condition-of-school-buildings-and-dfe-sustainability-overview/

Tt obed

Commercial in confidence

LGPS valuation gives ‘cause for optimism’ - Hymans
Robertson

Many Local Government Pension Schemes are in a stronger position than three years ago to meet future member benefits,
pension advisors have said following the most recent valuations.

Despite market instability brought on by Covid-19 and exacerbated by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, the overall funding level rose
to 107% of past service in March 2022, compared to 98.5% in 2019, Hymans Robertson said in a report.

Analysts reviewed the triennial valuations of 73 of the 86 LGPS funds, and said that on average fund asset values rose by 27.5%
up to March 2022.

Hymans Robertson said the better-than-expected funding outlook has prompted a reduction in employer contributions, from 21.9%
of pay in 2019 to 20.8% in 2022.

Robert Bilton, head of LGPS valuations at Hymans Robertson, said: “Our analysis gives cause for optimism that the outlook for the 4
long-term funding sustainability of the LGPS is robust, not least due to the hard work that has taken place across all funds over
the last decade and longer. A

“While the good news is welcome, the hard work doesn’t stop, and it is important that funds use the next two years to continue to
systematically review their risks to keep them in the best place possible ahead of the valuations in 2025.” V‘

The report said funding levels rose by the most for schemes that were already better-funded in 2019, but balances increased f
“across the board” in all funds that were reviewed.

Researchers said higher asset values mean funds will only need to deliver real investment returns of about 1.5% per year over the M/ M

next 20 years to ensure they are fully funded. V/ M/ w

Hymans said it expects more than three-quarter (77%) of funds to be able meet the annual level of investment returns by 2040.

“This is a very positive funding position for the LGPS, Considering that, not so long ago, the Scheme Advisory Board had set up a
‘deficit working group’ and the significant market events that the LGPS has had to navigate in recent years.” \
“Being in such a strong position is a testament to the diligent and hard work of administering authorities over the last decade.” |
Read the full report here

LGPS 2022 Valuation - the big picture.pdf (hymans.co.uk]

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 13


https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2022_Valuation_-_the_big_picture.pdf?utm_source=press+release&utm_medium=press+release&utm_campaign=Valuations
https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2022_Valuation_-_the_big_picture.pdf?utm_source=press+release&utm_medium=press+release&utm_campaign=Valuations

2 obed

Sustainability reporting in the public sector -

CIPFA

CIPFA said, ‘Sustainability reporting in the public sector is in its infancy,
and there is an evolutionary journey to be embarked upon - sooner rather
than later.”

Sustainability reporting is the recording and disclosure of an organisation’s
environmental impact caused by its activities. It has been widely adopted in
the private sector, but in the public sector it is not the same story.

Having a clear understondin% of the overall carbon footprint of the public
sector is vital if we are to tackle climate change, find solutions and
encourage sustainable development, said CIPFA.

CIPFA report states, ‘the answers and positive steps to addressing the most
pressing challenges around public sector sustainability questions. The
current patchwork of public sector sustainability reporting frameworks are
inconsistent and confusing. The report draws on already existing standards
and frameworks that are relevant and useful to the pubﬁc sector, rather
than trying to reinvent the wheel.’

Alignment to financial reporting

The report recommends an approach that aligns sustainability reporting
with the wider practice of financial reporting. The four key areas in this
approach are governance, the management approach, performance and
targets, and strategy. ‘Public sector sustainability reporting: time to step it
up’ provides public finance professionals with a good understanding of
what information needs to be disclosed and the process in producing a high
quality report.

Read the full report from CIPFA here
Sustainability Reporting (cipfa.org]

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence



https://www.cipfa.org/protecting-place-and-planet/sustainability-reporting

oy abed

Q Grant Thornton

West Oxfordshire District
Council audit plan

Year ending 31 March 2023

West Oxfordshire District Council
23 November 2023




vt abed

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Peter Barber

Key Audit Partner

T 0117 305 7897

E Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Katie Whybray

Senior Manager

T 0117 305 7601

E Katie.V.Whybray@uk.gt.com

Contents

Section
Key matters

Introduction and headlines

Significant risks identified
Other Matters

Our approach to materiality
IT Audit Strategy

Value for Money Arrangements

Audit logistics and team

Audit Fees

Independence and non-audit services

Communication of audit matters with those charged with

governance

Page

11

12
15
16
17
18
21

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate
only to the matters which have
come to our attention, which we
believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning
process. It is not a comprehensive
record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change,
and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all
of the risks which may affect the
Council or all weaknesses in your
internal controls. This report has
been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in
whole or in part without our prior
written consent. We do not accept
any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party
acting, or refraining from acting on
the basis of the content of this
report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not
a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



G abed

Commercial in confidence

Key matters

For the general population, rising inflation rates, in particular for critical commodities such as energy, food and fuel, is pushing many
households into poverty and financial hardship, including those in employment. At a national government level, recent political changes have
seen an emphasis on controls on spending, which in turn is placing pressure on public services to manage within limited budgets.

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with increasing cost pressures due to the cost of living crisis, including higher energy
costs, increasing pay demands, higher agency costs and increases in supplies and services. Local authority front-line services play a vital role
in protecting residents from rising costs; preventing the most vulnerable from falling into destitution and helping to build households long-term
financial resilience. At a local level, councils are also essential in driving strong and inclusive local economies, through their economic
development functions and measures like increasing the supply of affordable housing, integrating skills and employment provision, and
prioritising vulnerable households to benefit from energy saving initiatives. Access to these services remains a key priority across the country,
but there are also pressures on the quality of services. These could include further unplanned reductions to services and the cancellation or
delays to major construction projects such as new roads, amenities and infrastructure upgrades to schools, as well as pothole filling.

Our recent value for money work has highlighted a number of governance and financial stability issues at a national level, which is a further
indication of the mounting pressure on audited bodies to keep delivering services, whilst also managing transformation and making savings at
the same time.

In planning our audit, we will take account of this context in designing a local audit programme which is tailored to your risks and
circumstances.

Audit Reporting Delays

In a report published in January 2023 the NAO have highlighted that since 2017-18 there has been a significant decline in the number of locall
government body accounts including an audit opinion published by the deadlines set by government. The NAO outline a number of reasons for
this and proposed actions. In March 2023, we issued About time?, which explored the reasons for delayed publication of audited local
authority accounts. In our view, it is critical to early sign off that draft local authority accounts are prepared to a high standard and supported
by strong working papers.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

w


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf

Commercial in confidence

Key matters

Our Responses

of abed

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to audit quality and financial reporting in the local government sector. Our proposed work and fee,
as set out further in our Audit Plan, has been agreed with the Director of Finance.

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part of our audit in completing our Value for
Money work.

Our value for money work will also consider your arrangements relating to governance and improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

We will continue to provide you and your Audit and Governance Committee with sector updates providing our insight on issues from a
range of sources and other sector commentators via our Audit & Governance Committee updates.

We hold annual financial reporting workshops for our audited bodies to access the latest technical guidance and interpretation, discuss
issues with our experts and create networking links with other audited bodies to support consistent and accurate financial reporting across
the sector.

We have identified an increased incentive and opportunity for organisations in the public sector to manipulate their financial statements
due to increasing financial pressures. We have identified a significant risk in regards to management override of control

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. N



/v obed

Introduction and headlines

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit
of West Oxfordshire District Council (‘the Council’] for those charged with governance. Our
planning is well progressed but not complete, so this is an indicative plan. We will keep our
opinion and VFM risk assessments under continuous review as planning concludes. Where
appropriate, we will update our risk assessment to reflect emerging risks or findings and
report this to the Council.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit Practice
(‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is
expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are also set out in the agreed
in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of West Oxfordshire
District Council. We draw your attention to both of these documents.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the
Council’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight
of those charged with governance (the Audit and Governance committee); and we consider
whether there are sufficient arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources. Value for money relates to ensuring
that resources are used efficiently in order to maximise the outcomes that can be achieved.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit and
Governance Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Council is
fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is

risk based.
© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence




gt abed

Introduction and headlines

Significant risks

Those risks requiring special

audit consideration and

procedures to address the

likelihood of a material financial

statement error have been

identified as:

* Management override of
control

* Revenue and expenditure
recognition (rebutted)

* Valuation of land and

buildings

* Valuation of investment
properties

* Valuation of the net pension
fund liability

We will communicate significant
findings on these areas as well
as any other significant matters
arising from the audit to you in
our Audit Findings (ISA 240)
Report.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Materiality

We have determined planning
materiality to be £1.07m (PY
£0.93m] for the Council,
which equates to 1.9% of your
gross operating costs for the
year. We are obliged to report
uncorrected omissions or
misstatements other than
those which are ‘clearly
trivial’ to those charged with
governance.

Clearly trivial has been set at
£0.050m (PY £0.045m).

Value for Money
arrangements

Our indicative risk assessment
regarding your arrangements
to secure value for money has
not identified any risks of
significant weakness. We will
continue to update our risk
assessment until we issue our
Auditor’s Annual Report.

Commercial in confidence

New Auditing Standards

There are two auditing standards which have been
significantly updated this year. These are ISA 315
(Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement) and ISA 240 (the auditor's
responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of
financial statements). We provide more detail on the
work required later in this plan.

Audit logistics

Our planning work took place in November 2023 and
our final accounts audit will take commence in
January 2024. Our key deliverables are this Audit
Plan, our Audit Findings Report and Auditor’s Annuall
Report.

Our proposed fee for the audit will be £62,878 (PY:
E69,626] for the Council, subject to the Council
delivering a good set of financial statements and
working papers and no significant new financial
reporting matters arising that require additional time
and/or specialist input.

We have complied with the Financial Reporting
Council's Ethical Standard (revised 2019) and we as
a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective
opinion on the financial statements.



61 abed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks,
audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that
have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Key aspects of our
proposed response to

Risk Reason for risk identification the risk

The revenue cycle Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to No specific work is planned
includes fraudulent the improper recognition of revenue. as the presumed risk has
transactions (rebutted) This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material been rebutted.

misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at
the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be
rebutted, because:

* there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
* opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

* the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including West Oxfordshire District
Council mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

‘Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual,
due to either size or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which
there is significant measurement uncertainty.” (ISA (UK) 315)

Management should expect engagement teams to challenge management in areas that are complex, significant or highly judgmental which may be the
case for accounting estimates and similar areas. Management should also expect to provide to engagement teams with sufficient evidence to support
their judgments and the approach they have adopted for key accounting policies referenced to accounting standards or changes thereto.

Where estimates are used in the preparation of the financial statements management should expect teams to challenge management’s assumptions and
request evidence to support those assumptions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 7



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The expenditure cycle includes Practice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public =~ We have rebutted this presumed risk for West Oxfordshire
fraudulent transactions Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom (PN10) states: District Council because:

(rebutted) "As most public bodies are net spending bodies, thenthe * expenditure is well controlled and the Council has a

risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to strong control environment; and
expenditure may be greater than the risk of material

) * the Council has clear and transparent reporting of its
misstatements due to fraud related to revenue

financial plans and financial position to the Council.

T recognition". Public sector auditors therefore need to ) ) N .
: e We therefore do not consider this to be a significant risk for
Q consider whether they have any significant concerns Wost Oxf hire District C |
L% about fraudulent financial reporting of expenditure which est Oxfordshire District Council.
o would need to be treated as a significant risk for the
o audit.
Management over-ride of controls  Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed We will:

risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is

tin all entit * evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls
present in all entities.

over journals;
We therefore identified management override of control,
in particular journals, management estimates and
transactions outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

* analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for
selecting high risk unusual journals;

¢ test unusual journals recorded during the year and after
the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration;

* gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and
critical judgements applied made by management and
consider their reasonableness with regard to
corroborative evidence; and

* evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting
policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



TG obed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land and
buildings

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
should be performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from those that would be determined at
the end of the reporting period. The Council
revalues its land and buildings on a rolling basis to
ensure that the carrying value is not materially
different from the current value or fair value (for
surplus assets] at the financial statements date.

This valuation represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the
size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of
this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of land and
buildings, particularly revaluations and
impairments, as a significant risk, requiring special
audit consideration.

We will:

evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the
calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work;

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuation expert;

write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation
was carried out;

challenge the information and assumptions used by the
valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding, the Council’s valuer’s report and the
assumptions that underpin the valuation;

test revaluations made during the year to see if they had
been input correctly into the Council’s asset register; and

evaluate the assumptions made by the valuer for those
assets revalued at 31 March 2023. For the assets not formally
revalued in year we will assess how management has
satisfied themselves that these assets are not materially
different to the current value at the year end.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



2S obed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of
investment
properties

The Council revalues its investment properties

annually. This valuation represents a
significant estimate by management in the
financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of this
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of
investment properties, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement, and a key audit matter.

We will:

evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work;

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;
write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out;

challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and
consistency with our understanding, the Council’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that
underpin the valuation;

test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
Council’s asset register; and

evaluate the assumptions made by the valuer for those assets revalued at 31 March 2023.

Valuation of
the pension
fund net
liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as
reflected in its balance sheet as the net
defined benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the financial
statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a
significant estimate due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the
Council’s pension fund net liability as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We will:

update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate
the design of the associated controls;

evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary)
for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council’s pension fund valuation;

assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the
actuary to estimate the liability;

test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to
the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made
by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report; and

obtain assurances from the auditor of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund as to the controls
surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and
benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the
pension fund financial statements. °




cG abed

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

*  We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement to check that they are
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and our knowledge
of the Council.

*  We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual Governance
Statement are in line with requirements set by CIPFA.

* We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

* We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,
including:

giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2022/23 financial
statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2022/23 financial statements;

issuing a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Council under
section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act).

application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law
under section 28 or a judicial review under section 31 of the Act

issuing an advisory notice under section 29 of the Act

*  We certify completion of our audit.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, 'irrespective of
the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor
shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and
disclosure'. All other material balances and transaction
streams will therefore be audited. However, the
procedures will not be as extensive as the procedures
adopted for the risks identified in this report.



Commercial in confidence

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Matter Description

Planned audit procedures

1 Determination

We have determined financial statement materiality based
on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the Council for
the financial year. Materiality at the planning stage of our
audit is £1.07m, which equates to 1.9% of your draft gross
expenditure for the period.

G abed

We determine planning materiality in order to:

— establish what level of misstatement could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements

— assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests
— determine sample sizes and

— assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in the
financial statements

2 Other factors

An item does not necessarily have to be large to be
considered to have a material effect on the financial
statements.

An item may be considered to be material by nature where it may affect instances
when greater precision is required. We have not identified any other areas for
lower specific materiality for 2022/23.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Matter Description Planned audit procedures
3  Reassessment of materiality We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit
Our assessment of materiality is kept under review engagement, we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have

T throughout the audit process. caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.
jab)
Q
® 4 Other communications relating to materiality we will We report to the Audit & Governance Committee any unadjusted misstatements
g report to the Audit & Governance Committee of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work.

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify
misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to
the Audit & Governance Committee any unadjusted
misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these
are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK)
‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we
are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or
misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to
those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK] defines
‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential,
whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether
judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

In the context of the Council, we propose that an individual difference could
normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.05m (PY £0.045m).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the
course of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be
communicated to the Audit and Governance Committee to assist it in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



9G abed

Commercial in confidence

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered
Materiality for the £1,070,000 This was set at 1.9% of your gross expenditure
Council financial for the year of audit.

statements

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



IT audit strategy

Commercial in confidence

In accordance with ISA (UK] 315 Revised, we are required to obtain an understanding of the relevant IT and technical infrastructure and details of the
processes that operate within the IT environment. We are also required to consider the information captured to identify any audit relevant risks and design
appropriate audit procedures in response. As part of this we obtain an understanding of the controls operating over relevant Information Technology (IT)
systems i.e., IT general controls (ITGCs). Our audit will include completing an assessment of the design and implementation of relevant ITGCs. We say more
about ISA 315 Revised on page 18.

The following IT systems have been judged to be in scope for our audit and based on the planned financial statement audit approach we will perform the

indicated level of assessment:

IT system

Audit area

Planned level IT audit assessment

Unit 4 Integrated
General Ledger

/G abed

Financial reporting

Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Civica Housing

Housing benefits

Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Civica Revenues

Council tax and business
rates

Streamlined ITGC design assessment

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



gG abed

Commercial in confidence

Value for Money arrangements

Approach to Value for Money work for the period ended 31 March 2023

The National Audit Office issued its latest Value for Money guidance to auditors in January 2023. The Code expects auditors to consider
whether a body has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Auditors are
expected to report any significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements, should they come to their attention. In undertaking their work,
auditors are expected to have regard to three specified reporting criteria. These are as set out below:

%

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

How the body uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the
way it manages and delivers its services.

Financial Sustainability

How the body plans and manages its
resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services.

Governance

How the body ensures that it makes
informed  decisions and  properly
manages its risks.

We have not identified any risks of significant weaknesses from our initial planning work. We will continue our review of your arrangements,

including reviewing your Annual Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor’s annual report.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



6G abed

Commercial in confidence

Audit logistics and team

Audit & Governance

Committee
November 2023

Planning and Audit Plan
risk assessment

Peter Barber, Key Audit Partner

Provides oversight of the delivery
of the audit including regular
engagement with Governance
Committees and senior officers

Katie Whybray, Audit Manager

Provides oversight of the delivery
of the audit including regular
engagement with Governance
Committees and senior officers.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit & Governance Audit & Governance
Committee Committee
March 2024 March 2024
Interim audit Year end audit
ST A January - March 2024 O O
Auditor’s Audit Findings Afld_it
Annual Report opinion
Report

Audited Entity responsibilities

Where audited bodies do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not impact on
audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby disadvantaging other audited bodies.
Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to an entity not meeting its
obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed
to complete the audit due to an entity not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the
delivery of the audit to the agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to :

 ensure that you produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with
us, including all notes and the Annual Governance Statement

* ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in accordance with the
working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you

* ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are reconciled to the
values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples for testing

* ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed] the planned
period of the audit

* respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.



09 abed

Commercial in confidence

Audit fees and updated Auditing Standards
including ISA 315 Revised

In 2017, PSAA awarded a contract of audit for West Oxfordshire District Council to begin with effect from 2018/19. The fee agreed in the contract was
£35,627. Since that time, there have been a number of developments, particularly in relation to the revised Code and ISA’s which are relevant for the
2022/23 audit. For details of the changes which impacted on years up to 2021/22 please see our prior year Audit Plans.

The major change impacting on our audit for 2022/283 is the introduction of ISA (UK) 315 (Revised] - Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement ('ISA 315"). There are a number of significant changes that will impact the nature and extent of our risk assessment procedures and the work
we perform to respond to these identified risks. Key changes include:

J Enhanced requirements around understanding the Council’s IT Infrastructure, IT environment. From this we will then identify any risks arising from the
use of IT. We are then required to identify the IT General Controls (‘ITGCs’) that address those risks and test the design and implementation of ITGCs
that address the risks arising from the use of IT.

J Additional documentation of our understanding of the Council’s business model, which may result in us needing to perform additional inquiries to
understand the Council's end-to-end processes over more classes of transactions, balances and disclosures.

J We are required to identify controls within a business process and identify which of those controls are controls relevant to the audit. These include, but
are not limited to, controls over significant risks and journal entries. We will need to identify the risks arising from the use of IT and the general IT
controls (ITGCs) as part of obtaining an understanding of relevant controls.

J Where we do not test the operating effectiveness of controls, the assessment of risk will be the inherent risk, this means that our sample sizes may be
larger than in previous years.

These are significant changes which will require us to increase the scope, nature and extent of our audit documentation, particularly in respect of your
business processes, and your IT controls. We will be unable to determine the full fee impact until we have undertaken further work in respect of the above
areas. However, for an authority of your size, we estimate an initial increase of £3,000. We will let you know if our work in respect of business processes
and IT controls identifies any issues requiring further audit testing. There is likely to be an ongoing requirement for a fee increase in future years, although
we are unable yet to quantify that.

The other major change to Auditing Standards in 2022/23 is in respect of ISA 240 which deals with the auditor's responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit
of financial statements. This Standard gives more prominence to the risk of fraud in the audit planning process. We will let you know during the course of
the audit should we be required to undertake any additional work in this area which will impact on your fee.

Taking into account the above, our proposed work and fee for 2022/23, as set out below, is detailed overleaf and has been agreed with the Director of
Finance.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 18



T9 abed

Commercial in confidence

Audit fees

Actual Fee 2021/22  Proposed fee 2022/23

West Oxfordshire District Council Audit £69,626 £62,878

Assumptions

In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Council will:
* prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well-presented working papers which are ready at the start of the audit

* provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant judgements made during the course of preparing
the financial statements

* provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard
revised 2019] which stipulate that the Engagement Lead (Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the audit with partners
and staff with appropriate time and skill to deliver an audit to the required professional and Ethical standards.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19


https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf

Commercial in confidence

Audit fees - detailed analysis

Scale fee published by PSAA 2022/23 £43,028
Additional work on Value for Money (VfM] under new NAO Code £9,000
Increased audit requirements of revised ISAs 540 / 240 / 700 £2,100
o Enhanced audit procedures on journals testing (not included in the Scale Fee) £3,000
Q " .
o) Additional procedures to address other local risk factors £1,500
% Enhanced audit procedures for Payroll - Change of circumstances £500
Enhanced audit procedures for Collection Fund- reliefs testing £750
Increased audit requirements of revised ISAs 315 £3,000
Total proposed audit fees 2022/23 (excluding VAT) £62,878

All variations to the scale fee will need to be approved by PSAA

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20



cg abed

Commercial in confidence

Independence and non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK]) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity
and independence of the firm or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other
independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your
attention. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National

Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public
bodies.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 21



79 abed

Independence and non-audit services

Other services

No other services provided by Grant Thornton were identified.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

22



Commercial in confidence

Communication of audit matters with those
charged with governance

Our communication plan Audit Plan  Audit Findings ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs

G9 abed

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged with governance .

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing and expected general content
of communications including significant risks and Key Audit Matters

Confirmation of independence and objectivity of the firm, the engagement team members and all
other indirectly covered persons

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.
Relationships and other matters which might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-
audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with fees charged.
Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

Significant matters in relation to going concern

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written representations that have been
sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud( deliberate manipulation) involving management and/or which
results in material misstatement of the financial statements ( not typically council tax fraud)

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

(UK), prescribe matters which we are
required to communicate with those
charged with governance, and which
we set out in the table here.

This document, the Audit Plan,
outlines our audit strategy and plan
to deliver the audit, while the Audit
Findings will be issued prior to
approval of the financial statements
and will present key issues, findings
and other matters arising from the
audit, together with an explanation
as to how these have been resolved.

We will communicate any adverse or
unexpected findings affecting the
audit on a timely basis, either
informally or via an audit progress
memorandum.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for
performing the audit in accordance
with ISAs (UK], which is directed
towards forming and expressing an
opinion on the financial statements
that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of
those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements
does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of
their responsibilities.

23



99 abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their audited entities and/or refers to one or more
member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL
and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to . GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Iltem 8

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE — 23 NOVEMBER 2023

Committee

Subject MONITORING REPORT ON MANAGEMENT RESPONSES TO, AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF, THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR FINDNG AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Woards affected All

Accountable member Clir Alaric Smith Executive Member for Finance
Email: alaric.smith@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer Madhu Richards, Director of Finance
Email: madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Report author Madhu Richards, Director of Finance

Email: madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose To provide Members with an update on the External Auditor Findings and
Recommendations from the 2021/22 financial and value for money audits carried
out by Grant Thornton.

Annexes Annex A — Update on Audit Findings Report Recommendations
Annex B — Update on Auditor’s Annual Report Recommendations

Recommendation(s) That Audit and Governance Committee resolves to:

I. Note the contents of the report.

Corporate priorities e Putting Residents First

e A Good Quality of Life for All

e A Better Environment for People and Wildlife

e Responding to the Climate and Ecological Emergency
e  Working Together for West Oxfordshire

Key Decision NO
Exempt NO
Consultees/ N/A

Consultation

Page 67


mailto:madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

BACKGROUND

The Audit Findings Report was issued on 21* March 2023 and presented to the Audit and
Governance Committee on 30" March 2023. This report focussed on the financial audit
(Minute No. 38 refers).

The Auditor’s Annual Report was issued on |* August 2023 and was presented to the Audit
and Governance Committee on 10" August 2023. This report focussed on the “value for
money” audit (Minute No. 9 refers).

MAIN POINTS

This report seeks to provide the Audit and Governance Committee with an update with
regards to the recommendations made and the management responses and actions against
them.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

RISK ASSESSMENT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS

None.
(END)

Page 68



69 abed

ANNEX A

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S RECOMMENDATIONS FROM AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2021/22 — 21*March 2023

RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR 2021/22

place involves the Chief Accountant
reviewing all journals, with any journals
posted by the latter subject to a separate
review by the Business Manager for
Finance. The second review did not
consistently include a date.

levels of review be
properly documented with
the date the review took
place.

Finance left in July 2023.
Moving forwards, the
Director of Finance will
review (and date) the
journals by the Chief
Accountant as part of the
budget monitoring
process.

Assessment Issue and Risk Recommendation Management Timeline
Response
HIGH The s151 office recognises that capacity | We recommend that the A recruitment process has | The closing date for
within the finance team remains a Council strengthen its been started. applications is 13t
significant issue. We are of the view that | finance capacity to enable November 2023.
there is not sufficient skilled finance it to commit sufficient
expertise below the s151 Officer and time to all aspects of
Chief Accountant to support thee internal and external
multiple responsibilities of the LG financial reporting.
finance team. Specifically, the reliance
on the Chief Accountant, who has for a
number of years taken on almost sole
responsibility for supporting the external
audit process, means that timely audit
completion is compromised.
LOW The journal authorisation process in We recommend that all The Business Manager for

Starting with Quarter 3
report.




0/ abed

LOW

As part of our review of the ledger we
noted one journal has a blank
description. Journal line descriptions are
not mandated in the Agresso system. It is
best practice within the Council that this
be filled in.

We recommend that
journal line description be
a mandatory field in
Agresso system.

Such a systems change, to
make the field mandatory,
would be a costly process.
It should be noted that this
was one journal and due
purely to human error.

N/A

LOW

We have noted that an officer included
in the Council’s journal user list was no
longer employed at the Council.

We would recommend
that management
regularly update the user
list for any leavers.

The auditors were
provided with a manual
list and a system list which
clearly shows leavers with
a .0OLD suffix. Manual list
will be reviewed and
updated for leavers.

Ongoing.




T/ obed

ANNEX B

EXTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FROM AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 — 1** AUGUST 2023
FOCUS IS “SECURING ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS IN THE USE OF RESOURCES’

RECOMMENDATION

AUGUST MANAGEMENT COMMENT &
UPDATE

Accountable
Officer

Compliance Date

I. We recommend the Council
conducts a review its Recovery
Investment Strategy to include:

e An assessment of the impact of the
strategy to date, including an
assessment of projected income from
capital investments made.

e A review of the strategy against the
current economic landscape and
outlook.

e An evaluation of the strategies role
and need in supporting the financial
sustainability of the Council.

Although the Council has reviewed multiple business cases,
there has been a lack of suitable projects to invest in mainly due
to the tightening of restrictions by Public Works Loan Board and
the sharp rise in interest rates. The investment strategy still
provides a framework to evaluate potential business cases, but
the amount estimated to be invested and therefore the positive
benefit to the MTFS has been revised every year with the
reduction explained at length in the budget papers due to the
restrictions highlighted above.

Update

A review of investment properties is currently being conducted
which will cover an assessment of current performance.

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy is being updated as part of
the 24/25 Budget Setting process to ensure that estimates and
assumptions with regards to this strategy are prudent, and in line
with the economic outlook.

Chief Finance
Officer

31/03/24

2. We recommend the Council
introduces wider financial scenario
planning within its MTFS and to
include such information in annual
budget setting reports.

In the 2023/24 budget papers we showed two versions of the
MTFS. One with the proposed growth items under review and
one without, allowing members to see the impact of decisions
made on those items.

Update

Chief Finance
Officer

29/02/24




2/ obed

It is anticipated that the MTFS for 2024/25 will include scenarios
around key uncertainties including business rates reset and
changes to New Homes Bonus funding.

3. We recommend the Council
develops and agrees the following:
A Publica Workforce Strategy, and
aligned Council Workforce Strategy,
that supports the delivery of the
Council’s corporate priorities and
MTFS.
An Asset Management Strategy that is
aligned to the Council’s new
corporate plan 2023 to 2027 and
Climate Change Strategy 2021-2025
that supports the Council in the
delivery of the objective through the
management of physical assets in line
with the Council’s MTFS.

Management will consider this. The Corporate Plan is still under
development. Revised Council Priorities were still being agreed
at the point that the 2023/24 budget was being set. We would
expect any additional resource requirements raised by the new
Corporate Plan to be considered as part of the 2024/25 budget
setting process to ensure that they could be accommodated
within our funding envelope and if not, that appropriate steps to
reduce other expenditure was taken.

Update

A review of Public has been completed by Human Engine and
options are being taken to Executive and Councils in the four
shareholder Councils of Publica.

The Council has put in place a Transformation Group which
includes improved asset management planning on its’ forward
plan of potential projects. Further consideration also as part of
24/25 budget proposals (re invest to save plans).

Chief Executive
Officer

Nov/ Dec 2024

4. We recommend the Council
enhances its treasury management
activities by:

The adoption of a treasury

management indicator in relation to

the Council exposure to liquidity risk
by monitoring the amount of cash
available to meet unexpected
payments within a defined period,
without the need for additional
borrowing.

Work is ongoing to strengthen cashflow forecasting and much
improvements has been made. Management will consider the
above recommendation.

Update

The Treasury Management Outturn Report for 22/23 has
recently been reported, as has the 23/24 Quarter | update
position. The half year report is on the agenda for this meeting.
All three reporting full compliance against the Strategy. Cash

Chief Finance
Officer

Ongoing




¢ ) abed

The publication of the Council’s
performance, against all agreed
treasury management indicators,
within the annual Treasury Outturn
Report submitted to the Finance and
Management Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

monitoring has been tightened. The Council has no external
borrowing.

5. We recommend for the Council This is currently being reviewed with a view to creating a Monitoring Officer | 31/03/24
to agree and adopt a Code of Council specific code of conduct.
Conduct for Council employees as
this is a key document supporting
the Council’s approach to and Update
controls in the prevention and On 27/09/23 Council agreed that once approved the WODC
detection of fraud. Officer Code of Conduct, which is currently going through the
consultation process will be added to the Constitution.
6. We recommend the Council Work is being done not only to review statutory and Chief Finance 29/02/2024
enhances the budget setting discretionary spend but also to review whether statutory Officer

process by:

. The identification and assessment of

discretionary and statutory
expenditure.

. Provide committees charged with

oversight with draft Capital,
Investment and Treasury Management
Strategies, ahead of the full Council
annual budget setting meeting.

expenditure is at the appropriate level. Budget papers go
through multiple iterations and for the 2023/24 budget, the final
versions to Council were the 8" set of published papers. While
the actual strategy papers were not published ahead of time, all
previous iterations highlighted the risks and issues dealt with in
the formal strategy papers and the Council’s response to them.
The current timing of the scrutiny committees means that they
do not always fall in the window between the information being
available to draft the strategy papers and the budget being set.
FMOS meets in extra sessions to allow it to review the budget
twice ahead of the final budget meeting at Council. This
recommendation will be considered by management along with
the revision of scrutiny timings.

Update

A Transformation Group has been established to act as a subset
of Informal Executive helping to steer the Council’s response to




v/ abed

the challenging financial situation, guide the preparation of a
sustainable MTFS consistent with the Council Plan, and oversee
the delivery of the Council’s work programme in terms of
service transformation, investment and revenue generation. The
identification and consideration of non-statutory / discretionary
spend will be considered as part of this (and is included in its
terms of reference).

reviews its Oversight and Scrutiny

revision of committee structure.

7. We recommend the Council’s The Council disagrees with first part of recommendation. Chief Finance 31/03/24
budget monitoring process is Budget holders have read access to the system but tend not to Officer
enhanced further by: use it. We do not currently forecast at line level which is what
The optimisation of the finance system | would be required in order to enter a forecast into the system
to remove the need for forecasting to | and do not have the capacity to do so. We are adding additional
be recoded outside of the core resources, but it will be used on focused business partnering.
finance system. We also recommend, | Forecasting is used to identify targeted interventions which will
as part of the system optimisation, be support by the additional resource, and not used to reforest
collaborative planning is also everything. The Council agrees with the second part of the
considered, allowing budget holders recommendation.
to have greater system access.
. Additional oversight of the Council’s
investment and treasury management | Update
activities by the introduction of mid- | The |ncoming permanent S151 Officer will be tasked with
year monitoring reports to the reviewing the Council’s financial management arrangements.
Finance and Management Overview
Scrutiny Committee. Quarterly Treasury Management Reporting is now in place.
8. We recommend that the Council | Agreed. Additional resource has been scoped and is in the Chief Finance 31/12/2024
strengthens its finance capacity to | process of being agreed. Officer
enable it to commit sufficient time U
. Ipdate
to all aspects of internal and
external financial reporting. Recruitment of a senior accountant is currently in progress and
the closing date for applications is 13" November 2023
9. We recommend the Council Agreed. This is currently the subject of a paper suggesting a Monitoring Officer | 31/03/24




G/ obed

requirements to reassure itself
that its governance arrangements
are robust, as part of this review
the Council should review Part 3
of the Council’s constitution to
ensure the Council’s Oversight
and Scrutiny Committees have
clearly defined roles and areas of
focus.

Update

On 27/09/23 Council approved the collapsing of three O&S
Committees into one O&S Committee with the first monthly
meeting scheduled for 08/11/23. A draft work plan is currently
being produced with input from the Chair Elect and the
Independent Remuneration Panel is being asked to consider
whether they would recommend a SRA be paid to the Vice
Chair and if so the amount.

. We recommend the Council

conducts a self-assessment
exercise in line with CIPFA
guidance which will support the
Audit and Governance Committee
to evaluate and define its scope,
functions and impact and also
identify areas for training and
improvement. This output of the
self assessment exercise will also
support the Council to identify the
most suitable governance
arrangements for treasury
management activities.

Management will consider this.

Update

The A&G Committee Work Plan for 23/11/23 contains an item
on the CIPFA Self-Assessment Toolkit with a Member Survey
Results and Evaluation Report on the Work Plan for 19/03/24

Chief Finance
Officer/Monitoring
Officer

31/03/24

. We recommend that the Council

submits a combined summary of
code of conduct complaints for
the financial years 2021/22 and
2022/23 to the Audit and
Governance Committee by the
end of 2023 and thereafter
provides the Audit and
Governance Committee with an
annual report on code of conduct
complaints in adherence with the
Council’s constitution.

The Council’s Monitoring Officer is considering this
recommendation.

Update
Report presented to Audit & Governance Committee 28/09/23

Monitoring Officer

30/09/23




9/ abed

[2. We recommend the Council The Council’s performance management reporting was refreshed | Chief Executive 31/03/24
undertakes a review of the in 2022 from a lengthy report to a revised set of dashboards Officer
performance data provided within | created in collaboration with service leads and Executive
the quarterly service dashboards members. The dashboards are not directly linked to the
to strengthen service performance | corporate objectives because they are focused on key areas of
reporting and oversight. The service delivery to give management reassurance that service
review should ensure the area are performing appropriately with the narrative in each
quarterly service dashboards dashboard giving the service the opportunity to explain results
include: or raise concerns. These services may not have been identified

e Service performance measures that as priority areas, which often have specific projects underway
are linked to corporate objectives. and reported through that channel but are the core services
e Agreed targets, where relevant. delivered by the Council and therefore need to be robust.
e An explanation of sources of the data. | Indicators are reviewed periodically to ensure they are
e Defined performance indicators. appropriate.
e Simplified data graphs.
. Benchr.narklng. daFa to assist the Update
Council appraise its performance and
value for money. On 13/09/23 the Executive requested Officers to review the P/
data set to better reflect the emerging priorities and actions in
the revised Council Plan. On the Executive Forward Plan for
15/11/23 a report on the proposed performance framework to
be adopted based on a Narrative/Key Actions/KP| Assessment
format, will be considered to guide the Council to consistently
delivering high quality services, engaging citizens and ensuring
accountability, transparency and continuous improvement across
the Council operations.

|3. We recommend the Council and | Agreed. Chief Executive 31/03/24
Publica discuss and jointly review Officer
the existing partnership
agreements in order to: Update

e Clarify the hierarchy and responsibility
of decision making.

A review of Public has been completed by Human Engine and
options are being taken to Executive and Councils in the four
shareholder Councils of Publica.




./ abed

e More clearly define the service
delivery requirements and
expectations.

I4. We recommend the Council
reviews its contract procedure
rules to ensure they fully align
with the Council’s procurement
and contract management process.

The Council’s Monitoring Officer and Head of Procurement are
considering this recommendation.

Update

On 13/09/23 Executive approved a revised Procurement &
Contract Management Strategy and delegated authority to the
MO to update the Contract Rules which has been actioned in
October 2023 (Minute No 85 refers)

Monitoring Officer

31/10/23

Key to officers:

Accountable officer (AO)

CEO - Chief Executive: Giles Hughes

CFO - Chief Finance (S.151) Officer: Madhu Richards

MO - Monitoring Officer: Andrea McCaskie




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

Audit and Governance Committee — 23 NOVEMBER 2023

Subject

2023/24 HALF YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY AND
PERFORMANCE AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Woards affected

All

Accountable member

Clir Alaric Smith Cabinet Member for Finance
Email: alaric.smith@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Madhu Richards, Director of Finance
Email: madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk

Report author

Sian Hannam, Treasury Accountant

Email: sian.hannam@publicagroup.uk

Summary/Purpose To provide Members with an update on Treasury Management activity,
the performance of internal and external funds and prudential indicators
for the period Ist April 2023 — 30th Sept 2023

Annexes N/A

Recommendation(s)

That the Committee Resolves to:

a) Note the contents of the report

Corporate priorities

Working Together for West Oxfordshire

Key Decision

No

Exempt

No

Page 79



mailto:madhu.richards@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hannam@publicagroup.uk

22

23

24

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY

The overall performance of investments in the 6 months to 30™ September 2023 was mixed,
returning interest of £539,169 or 5.04% against an annual revenue budget of £821,741, but
also generating an unrealised capital loss of 1.93% or £238,628 in the year to date.

The capital value of pooled funds continues to be affected by prevailing economic conditions
in the world markets. Pooled funds are intended to be long term investments where short
term fluctuations in the capital value are expected. These funds are being monitored closely
by the Council’s Treasury Management adviser (Arlingclose) and they continue to forecast
that the capital values will recover over the next 2-5 years as gilts and bond revenue rates
start to decline again.

The Council has benefitted from higher revenue returns due to regular increases in the Bank
of England Bank Rate to combat high levels of inflation. The Bank has raised interest rates to
try and reduce inflation and bring it closer to the Bank’s target of 2%.

This report includes the new requirement in the 2021 Prudential Code (published by CIPFA),
mandatory from Ist April 2023, of quarterly reporting of the treasury management prudential
indicators.

The Council complied with the majority of the Prudential Indicators for 2023/24 as set out in
the budget approved by full Council in February 2023. Further details can be found in section
8 of this report.

ECONOMIC & FINANCIAL MARKETS BACKGROUND

UK inflation (based on the Consumer Prices Index) reduced from 7.9% in June 2023 to 6.7%
in August. The reduction in inflation was larger than most market forecasts although it remains
high when compared to the US and the Eurozone. The largest downward contribution came
from food prices.

The fall in inflation has increased the possibility that the Bank of England Bank Rate may now
have peaked (markets previously priced for a peak of between 5.5% and 6%). In September,
the Bank Rate was kept on hold at 5.25% following a long period of regular increases.
Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury adviser, modestly revised its interest forecast to reflect
the central view that 5.25% will now be the peak in UK Bank Rate.

Economic growth in the UK remained relatively weak over the period compared to
benchmark performance for an advanced economy of 2% to 3% per annum. The 0.5% growth
in GDP achieved in June 2023 was eliminated by a 0.5% fall in July. This is the largest fall to
date in 2023 and could be an indication that bank rate increases are starting to cause stagnating
or recessionary economic conditions.

UK unemployment increased to 4.3% (3mth/year) while the employment rate rose to 75.5%.
Pay growth remained high at 8.5% for total pay (including bonuses). Adjusting for inflation, pay
growth in real terms was positive at 1.2%.

Page 80



25

2.6

27

28

29

2.10

211

3.1

The delayed impact of increases in the UK Bank Rate together with staggered fixed term
mortgage maturities over the next |2 to 24 months means the full impact of this is still yet to
be felt by households. Although, consumer confidence (based on the measure published by
GfK) has improved over the period, it is forecast to reverse in the short to medium term.
Higher interest rates are already affecting the business sector with UK manufacturing and
services confidence (based on the S&P/CIPS survey) both contracting during the quarter.

The US and Eurozone - The US Federal Reserve increased its key interest rate to 5.25%-
5.50% over the period, pausing in September following a 0.25% rise the month before. The
Federal Reserve indicated that further interest rate increases may be necessary to further
reduce inflation.

Having fallen throughout 2023, annual US inflation started to increase again in July 2023, rising
from 3% in June to 3.7% in August. Rising oil prices were the main cause of the increase. US
economic growth was 2.1% annualised in the second calendar quarter of 2023 representing a
strong performance compared to the UK and the Eurozone.

The European Central Bank (ECB) increased its key deposit, main refinancing, and marginal
lending interest rates to 4.00%, 4.50% and 4.75% respectively in September, and hinted these
levels may represent the peak. However, the ECB suggested rates would stay high for as long
as required to reduce inflation.

Eurozone inflation has declined steadily but remains higher than the ECB’s target of 2%.
Inflation (measured by CPI) fell to 5.2% in August while annual core inflation reduced to 5.3%
having remained at 5.5% for the previous two months. GDP growth remains weak with recent
data showing the region expanded by only 0.1% in the three months to June 2023.

Credit Review - Having completed a review of its credit advice on unsecured deposits at UK
and non-UK banks following concerns of a wider financial crisis after the collapse of Silicon
Valley Bank, purchase of Credit Suisse by UBS, as well as other banking sector issues,
Arlingclose reduced the advised maximum duration limit for all banks on its recommended
counterparty list to 35 days. This stance continued to be maintained at the end of the period.

Heightened market volatility is expected to remain a feature, at least in the near term and, as
ever, the institutions and durations on the Council’s counterparty list recommended by
Arlingclose remains under constant review.

LOCAL CONTEXT

On 31st March 2023, the Council had net investments of £37.374m arising from its revenue
and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is
measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while balance sheet resources are the
underlying resources available for investment. These items are summarised in Table | below.

Page 81



Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary

31.3.23 31.3.24
Actual Forecast
£m E£m
General Fund CFR 28.38 31.30
External borrowing 5.01
Internal borrowing 23.37 31.30
Less: Balance sheet resources 39.28 38.27
Net Balance (15.91) (6.97)

3.2 The treasury management position at 30th September and the change over the six months is

4.2

shown in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary

31.3.23 Movement 30.9.23 30.9.23
Balance £m Balance Rate
£m £m %

Short-term borrowing 5.013 (5.013) 0 N/A
Total borrowing 5.013 (5.013) 0
Long-term investments 13.375 (0.248) 13.127 4.83
Short-term investments 0.064 4.936 5.000 5.27
Cash and cash equivalents 8.159 (0.686) 7.473 4.73
Total investments 21.598 4.002 25.60 5.04
Net investments 16.585 9.015 25.60

BORROWING STRATEGY AND ACTIVITY

As outlined in the Treasury Management Strategy, the Council’s chief objective when
borrowing has been to strike a low-risk balance between securing lower interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required. Flexibility to renegotiate
loans should the Council’s long-term plans change being a secondary objective. The Council’s
borrowing strategy thus far has maintained borrowing and investments below their underlying
levels, known as internal borrowing.

CIPFA’s 2021 Prudential Code is clear that local authorities must not borrow to invest
primarily for financial return and that it is not prudent for local authorities to make any
investment or spending decisions that will increase the capital financing requirement and so
may lead to new borrowing, unless directly and primarily related to the functions of the

Page 82



Council. PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment
assets primarily for yield unless these loans are for refinancing purposes.

At 30th September, the Council had no loans outstanding, a decrease of £5m to 3 1st March
2023, The Council’s borrowing position at 30th September is summarised in Table 3A
below.

Table 3A: Borrowing Position

31.3.23 Net Movement 30.9.23
Balance £m Balance
£m £m
Local authorities (short-term) 5.013 -5.013 0
Total borrowing 5.013 -5.013

TREASURY INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

A counterparty list recommended and reviewed by the Council’s treasury management
advisors, Arlingclose is received monthly and the treasury team use this to evaluate
investment options. At the end of the period the majority of counterparties remained on a
35 day limit maintaining precautions bought about by uncertainty in the market. The treasury
team continues to hold the majority of in-house balances in the liquid Money Market Funds
and Call Accounts and making short term deposits with the UK Debt Management Office
(DMO). This enables continued cash support for the services the Council provides to the
public and provides funding for the Council’s capital programme, without the need to borrow.

The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. The investment position is shown in table 4
below.

Page 83



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Table 4: Treasury Investment Position

31.3.23 Net 30.9.23 30.9.23
Balance Movement Balance Income
Return
£m £m £m %
Banks & building societies 3.843 (1.873) 1.970 5 14
(unsecured)
Bank of England DMADF 5.000 5.000 5.25
Money Market Funds 4.316 1.1873 5.503 4.73
Other Pooled Funds
_ - Equity & Multi Asset 8.884 (0.222) 8.662 4.83
income funds
- Bond income funds 3.555 (0.080) 3.475 4.83
. - Real Estate Investment 1.000 (0.010) 0.990 2.85
rusts
Total investments 21.598 4.002 25.600 5.04

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest its funds
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments before
seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The Council’s objective when investing money
is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring
losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

As demonstrated by the liability benchmark in this report, the Council expects to be a long-
term borrower and new treasury investments are therefore primarily made to manage day-
to-day cash flows using short-term low risk instruments. The existing portfolio of strategic
pooled funds will be maintained to diversify risk into different asset classes and boost
investment income.

Bank Rate increased by 1%, from 4.25% at the beginning of April to 5.25% by the end of
September. Short-dated cash rates rose commensurately, with 3-month rates rising to around
5.25% and 12-month rates to nearly 6%. The rates on DMADF deposits also rose, ranging
between 4.8% and 5.4% by the end of September and Money Market Rates between 4.16%
and 5.29%

The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the Arlingclose quarterly investment
benchmarking report; the results of which are summarised in Table 5 below.

Page 84



5.7

Table 5: Investment Benchmarking — Treasury investments managed in-house.

Weighted Rate of
Credit Credit Bail-in Average Return
Score Rating Exposure Maturity
(days)
%
31.03.2023 3.92 AA- 61% 4 -1.07
30.09.2023 4.32 AA- 60% 7 6.39
Similar LAs 4.43 AA- 56% 63 3.47
All LAs 4.47 AA- 59% 13 3.65

Externally Managed Pooled Funds: £14m of the Council’s investments are invested in
externally managed strategic pooled bond, equity, and multi-asset funds where short-term
security and liquidity are lesser considerations, and the objectives instead are regular revenue
income and long-term price stability. These funds generated an income return of £265,301
which is used to support services in year, and £238,628 unrealised capital loss. The current

Pooled Fund position can be seen in table 6 below

Table 6 Current Pooled Funds

2023/24 Capital

Value 31st 6 Month | Capital | Gain/(Loss)

Original March Value 30th | Dividend Gain/ vs Original

Fund Manager Investment 2023 September | 2023/24 (Loss) Investment

£ £ £ £ £ £

UBS (B/E) 2,000,000 1,466,810 1,395,316 51,460 71,494 - 604,684

M&G Strategic (B) 2,000,000 1,752,651 1,699,474 20,622 53,177 - 300,526

Royal London (L) 2,000,000 1,784,670 1,775,548 35,683 9,122 - 224,452

Schroders € 1,000,000 886,450 863,297 23,082 23,153 - 136,703

Threadneedle UK € 1,000,000 1,053,841 1,059,274 17,384 5,433 59,274
CCLA Diversified Fund -

(B/E) 3,000,000 2,771,963 2,729,341 30,318 42,622 - 270,659

Aegon/Kames (L) 3,000,000 2,659,023 2,614,530 86,751 44,493 - 385,470

Total - Current funds 14,000,000 | 12,375,408 | 12,136,780 | 265,301 | 238,628 | -1,863,220

(L = Liquidity; B= Bond; E= Equity)

Page 85



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Financial market conditions were volatile during the six-month period. Global bond yields
rose and remained elevated as it became apparent that policymakers were looking to keep
rates high for some time amid persistently higher core inflation and tight labour markets.

For existing longer-term investors in fixed income securities, the prospect of a higher-for-
longer rate environment weighed on sentiment. Yields rose in Q2 2023 on the expectation
that central banks would continue increasing rates but fell in August as investors grew
confident that policy rates were close to their peak, then rose again in September as oil prices
climbed above $90/barrel. There was also some effect from quantitative tightening by the
Bank of England. This affected capital values of the Council’s longer-dated bond funds during
the six-month period and, to a lesser extent, the multi-asset funds where there was some
offset from equity performance.

The combination of the above had a marginal effect on the combined value of the Council’s
strategic funds since March 2023. Income from the Council’s short bond funds has improved
as maturing securities are replaced by higher yielding ones in these funds.

The change in the Council’s funds’ capital values and income return over the 6-month period
is shown in Table 6.

In April 2023 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities published the full
outcome of the consultation on the extension of the statutory override on accounting for
gains and losses on pooled investment funds. The override has been extended for two years
until 31st March 2025, but no other changes have been made; whether the override will be
extended beyond the new date is unknown but commentary to the consultation outcome
suggests not. The Council will discuss with Arlingclose the implications for the investment
strategy and what action may need to be taken.

TREASURY PERFORMANCE

The Council measures the financial performance of its treasury management activities both in
terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship to benchmark interest rates,
as shown in table 7 below.

Table 7: Performance

Q2 2023/24 Over/ | Actual A LA’s Over/
verage
Actual Budget under % Benchmark | under
£m £m %
Short-term investments 0.038 0 0.038 5.27 4.92 0.35
MMF & Call Accounts 0.222 0.162 0.060 5.27 4.92 0.35
Strategic Funds 0.265 0.629 (0.364) | 4.83 4.35 0.48
REIT 0.014 0.031 (0.017) | 2.85 n/a n/a
Total treasury investments 0.539 0.822 (0.283) | 5.04 4.79 0.25

Page 86



7. COMPLIANCE

The Director of Finance reports that all treasury management activities undertaken during the quarter
complied with the principles in the Treasury Management Code and the Council’s approved Treasury
Management Strategy. Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 8 below.

Table 8: Investment Limits

2023/24 30.09.23 | 2023/24 | Complied?
Maximum Actual Limit Yes/No
£m £m £m
Any single organisation, except
the UK Government 3 0 > VES
Any group of organisatior)s 3 0 5 YES
under the same ownership
Any group of pooled funds 0 0 5 YES
under the same management
Limit per non-UK country 0 0 1 YES
Reglstered prqwders and 98 9.8 10 YES
registered social landlords
Unsecured investments with 3 2 10 YES
banks
Money Market Funds 15 5.503 25 YES
Strategic pooled funds 14 14 25 YES
Real Estate Investment Trusts 1 1 5 YES

7.2 Compliance with the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for external debt is
demonstrated in table 9 below.

Table 9: Debt and the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary

7.3 Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not significant
if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash flow, and this

Q2 2023/24 2023/24 c 2
2023/24 30.09.23 Operational | Authorised Complied
. Actual - Yes/No
Maximum Boundary Limit
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 0 0 50.06 55.06 YES
Total debt 50.06 55.06

is not counted as a compliance failure.

Page 87




8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

As required by the 2021 CIPFA Treasury Management Code, the Council monitors and
measures the following treasury management prudential indicators.

Liability Benchmark - This new indicator compares the Council’s actual existing borrowing
against a liability benchmark that has been calculated to show the lowest risk level of
borrowing. The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council
is likely to be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its
strategic focus and decision making. It represents an estimate of the cumulative amount of
external borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans while
keeping treasury investments at the minimum level of £4m required to manage day-to-day

cash flow.

31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast
Loans CFR 28.38 31.30 40.23 43.02
Less: Balance sheet resources (39.28) (38.27) (37.00) (34.13)
Net loans requirement (10.90) (6.97) 3.23 9.34
Plus: Liquidity allowance 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00
Liability benchmark 3.10 7.03 17.23 23.34
Existing borrowing 5.01 0.00 5.00 10.00

Long-term Treasury Management Investments: The purpose of this indicator is to control the

Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its

investments. The prudential limits on the long-term treasury management limits are:

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 No fixed
Limit on principal invested £20m £20m c20m o
beyond year end
Actual principal invested beyond 0 /a i s
year end
Complied? YES YES YES VES

Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds, real estate
investment trusts and directly held equity but exclude money market funds and bank accounts
with no fixed maturity date as these are considered short-term.

Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This is
calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=I, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the

Page 88



arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned

a score based on their perceived risk.

2023/24 .
?
Target 30.9.23 Complied?
Portfolio average credit rating A- AA- YES

8.6 Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest
rate risk. Bank Rate rose by 1.25% from 4.25% on |st April to 5.25% by 30th September.

impact of a 1% fall in interest rates

Interest rate risk indicator 21923/24 30.9.23 Actual Complied?
arget

Upper limit on one-year revenue

impact of a 1% rise in interest rates (135,000) (330,249) No

Upper limit on one-year revenue 135,000 330,249 No

Due to the lack of capital expenditure and £3m received in advance from the Ministry of
Defence for their annual Council Tax liability, the weighted average on variable rate
investments (MMFs) has been higher than originally forecast. The % increase was therefore
higher than the target and we have generated more interest income.

Non Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

The Authority measures and manages its capital expenditure, borrowing and service

investments with references to the following indicators.

It is now a requirement of the CIPFA Prudential Code that these are reported on a quarterly

basis.

Capital Expenditure: The Authority has undertaken and is planning capital expenditure as

summarised below

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget
General Fund services 15.29 9.44 7.01 3.89

Page 89




The main capital projects to date have included the purchase of Marriotts Close shopping
centre for £9.54m, to regenerate Witney town centre, and £1.8m on the provision of
affordable housing in partnership with Cottsway Housing Association & Heylo. The Capital
Strategy approved in February 2023 anticipated higher levels of capital expenditure of £30m
in 2022/23 and £12m in each of 2023/24 & 2024/25. These estimates have been reduced based
on the lack of available Investment Recovery strategy projects given that interest rates are
high and it is more difficult to return 2% above the cost of capital as per the strategy. The
capital, treasury management and investment strategies will be updated as part of the 2024/25
budget setting process.

Capital Financing Requirement: The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt
finance is measured by the capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-
financed capital expenditure and reduces with MRP / loans fund repayments and capital
receipts used to replace debt.

31.3.2023 31.3.2024 31.3.2025 31.3.2026
actual forecast budget budget
General Fund services 28.38 31.30 40.23 43.02
TOTAL CFR 28.38 31.30 40.23 43.02

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: Statutory guidance is that debt should
remain below the capital financing requirement, except in the short term. The Authority has
complied and expects to continue to comply with this requirement in the medium term as is
shown below.

31.3.2023 31.3.2024 31.3.2025 31.3.2026 Debt at
actual forecast budget budget 30.9.2023
Debt (incl. PFI & 5.013 0 5.00 10.00 0
leases)
Capital 28.38 31.30 40.23 43.02
Financing
Requirement

Debt and the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary: The Authority is legally obliged to
set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed the Authorised Limit for external debt) each
year. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning
level should debt approach the limit.

Page 90



Maximum Debt at 2023/24 2023/24 Complied?
debt H1 30.9.23 Authorised | Operational Yesp/No )
2023/24 Limit Boundary
Borrowing 5.013m 0 55.06m 50.06m Yes
Total debt 5.013m 0 0 0 Yes

Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not significant

if the boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash flow, and this is not counted

as a compliance failure.

Net Income from Commercial and Service Investments to Net Revenue Stream: The

Authority’s income from commercial and service investments as a proportion of its net
revenue stream has been and is expected to be as indicated below.

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget
Total net'mc.ome from service and 3.92m 5.20m 5.50m 5.50m
commercial investments
Proportion of net revenue stream 25.9% 37.4% 38.8% 42.4%

Proportion of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: Although capital expenditure is not

charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable on loans and MRP / loans fund
repayments are charged to revenue.

The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream
i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and general government grants.

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget
Financing costs (Em) 0.433m 0.546m 0.808m 1.070m
Proportion of net 2.87% 3.93% 5.69% 8.25%
revenue stream

Page 91




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 23"° NOVEMBER 2023

Subject

CIPFA’s POSITION STATEMENT ON AUDIT COMMITTEES

Wards affected

N/A

Accountable member

Councillor Alaric Smith, Executive Member for Finance

Email: Alaric.Smith@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Andrea McCaskie, Monitoring Officer

Email: Andrea.McCaskie@westoxon.gov.uk

Report author

Lucy Cater, Head of Internal Audit. Assistant Director, SWAP Internal
Audit Services

Email: Lucy.Cater@swpapaudit.co.uk

Summary/Purpose

To present to the Audit and Governance Committee The Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (“CIPFA’s”) Updated Audit
Committee Guidance along with the self assessment and evaluation
toolkit to enable Committee Members to identify any training needs to
ensure they meet the principles as set out in the CIPFA guidance

Annexes

Annex A — CIPFA’s AUDIT COMMITTEE POSITION STATEMENT 2022
Annex B — CIPFA’s AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL
AUTHORITY

Annex C — SELF ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE (APP E)

Annex D — EVALUATING THE IMPACT AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE (APP F)

Recommendation(s)

That the Audit and Governance Committee discusses the attached
documents and Members undertake a self assessment, in readiness for the
next meeting of the Committee, to identify any training needs to ensure
that all skills identified in the CIPFA guidance can be met.

Corporate priorities

Ensure that all services delivered by the Council are delivered to the
highest standard.

Unrestricted

Page 93




Key Decision NO

Exempt NO

Consultees/ Not Applicable
Consultation

Unrestricted

BACKGROUND

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their
purpose is to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance,
risk and control arrangements. The committee’s role in ensuring that there is sufficient
assurance over governance risk and control gives greater confidence to all those charged with
governance that those arrangements are effective

MAIN POINTS

Audit Committees
In a local authority the full council is the body charged with governance. The audit committee

may be delegated some governance responsibilities but will be accountable to full council.
The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the financial
and governance reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate arrangements in place for
both internal challenge and public accountability.

Audit Committee Members

As a member of your authority’s audit committee, you play an important role in the good
governance of the authority. The audit committee contributes to its overall success by
examining how its arrangements for decision making, consideration of risk and operations
work. The committee has a unique view — one that is non-political. Instead of focusing on
policy and decision making, it examines the ‘engine’ of the authority — how things get done.
Most importantly, it shines a light on areas where things might be missed or need to adapt or
improve. To be a success, your audit committee must have a good grasp of its role and
responsibilities. It will also need to follow some good practice principles. These are set out in
the CIPFA Position Statement on Audit Committees. The aim of this practical guide is to
support you in your time as an audit committee member. This section of CIPFA’s guidance is
for members of an audit committee in an authority. It will support both elected members and
co-opted independent members (also known as lay members) to understand the purpose of

Page 94




the committee and its functions and their responsibilities as members of the committee. It
will link to other sections of CIPFA’s guidance, which will provide additional resources.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

5.  RISK ASSESSMENT
N/A
6. EQUALITIES IMPACT

Under equality legislation, the Council has a legal duty to pay ‘due regard’ to the need to
eliminate discrimination and promote equality in relation to:

e Race

e Disability

e Gender, including gender reassignment
o Age

e Sexual Orientation

e Pregnancy and maternity

e Religion or belief

The Council also has a duty to foster good relations, and to consider the impact of its
decisions on human rights. The law requires that this duty to pay ‘due regard’ is
demonstrated in the decision making process. The recommendations in this report do not
have a particular impact on any of the above groups

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 The following documents have been identified by the author of the report in accordance with
section 100D.5(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 and are listed in accordance with
section 100 D.l(a) for inspection by members of the public:

e Internal Audit Reports

7.2 These documents will be available for inspection online at www.westoxon.gov.uk or by
contacting democratic services democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk for a period of up to
4 years from the date of the meeting.

(END)

Unrestricted

Page 95


http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy

cipfa.org

CIPFA\

CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities
and Police 2022

Scope

This position statement includes all principal local authorities in the UK, corporate joint committees
in Wales, the audit committees for PCCs and chief constables in England and Wales, PCCFRAs
and the audit committees of fire and rescue authorities in England and Wales.

The statement sets out the purpose, model, core functions and membership of the audit
committee. Where specific legislation exists (the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021
and the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016), it should supplement the requirements
of that legislation.

Status of the position statement

The statement represents CIPFA’s view on the audit committee practice and principles that local
government bodies in the UK should adopt. It has been prepared in consultation with sector
representatives.

CIPFA expects that all local government bodies should make their best efforts to adopt the
principles, aiming for effective audit committee arrangements. This will enable those bodies to
meet their statutory responsibilities for governance and internal control arrangements, financial
management, financial reporting and internal audit.

The 2022 edition of the position statement replaces the 2018 edition.

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities and the Home Office support
this guidance.

CIPFA, registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No. 231060 and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator No.SC0O37963.
CIPFA Business Limited, the trading arm of CIPFA, registered in EngIaB and Wales§c7376684. Registered Office 77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN.

age



CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022: Audit committees in local
authorities and police

Purpose of the audit committee

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their purpose is
to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control
arrangements. The committee’s role in ensuring that there is sufficient assurance over governance
risk and control gives greater confidence to all those charged with governance that those
arrangements are effective.

In a local authority the full council is the body charged with governance. The audit committee may
be delegated some governance responsibilities but will be accountable to full council. In policing,
the police and crime commissioner (PCC) and chief constable are both corporations sole, and thus
are the individuals charged with governance.

The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the financial and
governance reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate arrangements in place for both
internal challenge and public accountability.

Independent and effective model

The audit committee should be established so that it is independent of executive decision making
and able to provide objective oversight. It is an advisory committee that has sufficient importance in
the authority so that its recommendations and opinions carry weight and have influence with the
leadership team and those charged with governance.

The committee should:
e be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and chief constable
¢ inlocal authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions

e in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational responsibilities of the PCC
or chief constable

¢ have rights of access to and constructive engagement with other committees/functions, for
example scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management boards and other
strategic groups

o have rights to request reports and seek assurances from relevant officers

o be of an appropriate size to operate as a cadre of experienced, trained committee
members. Large committees should be avoided.

The audit committees of the PCC and chief constable should follow the requirements set out in the

Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice and be made up of co-opted independent
members.

Page 98



The audit committees of local authorities should include co-opted independent members in
accordance with the appropriate legislation.

Where there is no legislative direction to include co-opted independent members, CIPFA
recommends that each authority audit committee should include at least two co-opted independent
members to provide appropriate technical expertise.

Core functions

The core functions of the audit committee are to provide oversight of a range of core governance
and accountability arrangements, responses to the recommendations of assurance providers and
helping to ensure robust arrangements are maintained.

The specific responsibilities include:

Maintenance of governance, risk and control arrangements

Support a comprehensive understanding of governance across the organisation and among
all those charged with governance, fulfilling the principles of good governance.

Consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements. It should
understand the risk profile of the organisation and seek assurances that active
arrangements are in place on risk-related issues, for both the body and its collaborative
arrangements.

Monitor the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including arrangements for
financial management, ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and
managing the authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption.

Financial and governance reporting

Be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the annual governance
statement, properly reflect the risk environment, and any actions required to improve it, and
demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of the authority’s objectives.

Support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial reporting and review the
statutory statements of account and any reports that accompany them.

Establishing appropriate and effective arrangements for audit and assurance

Consider the arrangements in place to secure adequate assurance across the body’s full
range of operations and collaborations with other entities.

In relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

o oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and conformance to
professional standards

o support effective arrangements for internal audit

o promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

Page 99



e Consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection
agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or control, and monitor
management action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

e Contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit arrangements,
supporting the independence of auditors and promoting audit quality.

e Support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, audits and inspections,
and the organisation, encouraging openness to challenge, review and accountability.

Audit committee membership

To provide the level of expertise and understanding required of the committee, and to have an
appropriate level of influence within the authority, the members of the committee will need to be of
high calibre. When selecting elected representatives to be on the committee or when co-opting
independent members, aptitude should be considered alongside relevant knowledge, skills and
experience.

Characteristics of audit committee membership:

e A membership that is trained to fulfil their role so that members are objective, have an
inquiring and independent approach, and are knowledgeable.

¢ A membership that promotes good governance principles, identifying ways that better
governance arrangement can help achieve the organisation’s objectives.

e A strong, independently minded chair, displaying a depth of knowledge, skills, and interest.
There are many personal skills needed to be an effective chair, but key to these are:

o promoting apolitical open discussion

o managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach from
all participants

o maintaining the focus of the committee on matters of greatest priority.
e Willingness to operate in an apolitical manner.
e Unbiased attitudes — treating auditors, the executive and management fairly.
e The ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required.
e Knowledge, expertise and interest in the work of the committee.

While expertise in the areas within the remit of the committee is very helpful, the attitude of
committee members and willingness to have appropriate training are of equal importance.

The appointment of co-opted independent members on the committee should consider the overall
knowledge and expertise of the existing members.

Page 100



Engagement and outputs
The audit committee should be established and supported to enable it to address the full range of
responsibilities within its terms of reference and to generate planned outputs.

To discharge its responsibilities effectively, the committee should:

meet regularly, at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to be
considered in private and those to be considered in public

be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with the head of
internal audit

include, as regular attendees, the chief finance officer(s), the chief executive, the head of
internal audit and the appointed external auditor; other attendees may include the
monitoring officer and the head of resources (where such a post exists). These officers
should also be able to access the committee members, or the chair, as required

have the right to call on any other officers or agencies of the authority as required; police
audit committees should recognise the independence of the chief constable in relation to
operational policing matters

support transparency, reporting regularly on its work to those charged with governance
report annually on how the committee has complied with the position statement, discharged

its responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The report should be
available to the public.

Impact

As a non-executive body, the influence of the audit committee depends not only on the effective
performance of its role, but also on its engagement with the leadership team and those charged
with governance.

The committee should evaluate its impact and identify areas for improvement.

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



CIPFA\

Audit
commuittees:

practical guidance for
local authorities and police

2022 edition


https://cipfa.org/

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance

and Accountancy (CIPFA) is the professional
body for people in public finance. Our 14,000
members work throughout the public services,
in national audit agencies, major accountancy
firms and other bodies where public money
needs to be effectively and efficiently managed.
As the world’s only professional accoun tancy
body to specialise in public services, CIPFA’'s
qualifications are the foundation for a career

in public finance. We also champion high
performance in public services, translating our
experience and insight into clear advice and
practical services. Globally, CIPFA leads the way
in public finance by standing up for sound public
financial management and good governance.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
Registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No 231060.
Registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator No SC037963.

Page 104



CIPFA\

The audit
committee

member 1n a
local authorit

2022 edition

cipfa.org/

Page 105


https://cipfa.org/

Published by:

CIPFA \ The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN

020 7543 5600 \ customerservices@cipfa.org \ www.cipfa.org

© October 2022 CIPFA
ISBN for this publication: 978 1 84508 5 643

ISBN for complete suite of Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and
Police (2022 edition): 978 1 84508 5 636

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a
result of any material in this publication can be accepted by the authors or publisher.

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may contain errors
for which the publisher and authors cannot be held responsible.

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or
review, as permitted under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988, this publication
may be reproduced, stored or transmitted, in any form or by any means, only with the
prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in the case of reprographic reproduction

in accordance with the terms of licences issued by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd.
Enquiries concerning reproduction outside those terms should be sent to the publishers at
the above mentioned address.

Page 106


mailto:customerservices%40cipfa.org?subject=
https://www.cipfa.org

Acknowledgements

A sincere thanks to all those who have provided comments and suggestions on this publication
and the associated Position Statement.

Members of the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
working group:

Alan Finch (Local Government Association), Andrew Chapell (Public Sector Audit
Appointments), Mike Newbury (National Audit Office) and DLUHC and Home Office
representatives.

Members of CIPFA's Police Governance, Audit, Risk and Assurance (GARA) group and
Governance and Assurance Forum:
Rob Winter (co-chair of GARA) and Laura Williams (Liverpool City Region).

Jo Hendy (Welsh Local Government Association) and Chris Pyke (Cardiff Council).
The CIPFA Public Financial Management Board.

CIPFA staff:
Charlotte Radford, Hege Larsen, Sarah Sheen and Alison Bonathan.

CIPFA is keen that the guidance provides practical support to audit committee members and
those who work with the committee. It is therefore invaluable that we have interacted with audit
committee members and officers through our training courses and events.

Thank you for providing your insights on the challenges, frustrations and rewards of being
an audit committee member. | hope that this publication can support you in undertaking your
important work.

Diana Melville
Governance Advisor, CIPFA

Page2 107



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Page 108



Introduction to the
new guidance

As a member of your authority’s audit committee, you play an important role in the good
governance of the authority. The audit committee contributes to its overall success by examining
how its arrangements for decision making, consideration of risk and operations work. The
committee has a unique view — one that is non-political. Instead of focusing on policy and decision
making, it examines the ‘engine’ of the authority — how things get done. Most importantly, it shines
a light on areas where things might be missed or need to adapt or improve.

To be a success, your audit committee must have a good grasp of its role and responsibilities. It
will also need to follow some good practice principles. These are set out in the CIPFA Position
Statement on Audit Committees.

The aim of this practical guide is to support you in your time as an audit committee member.

This section of CIPFA’s guidance is for members of an audit committee in an authority. It will
support both elected members and co-opted independent members (also known as lay members)
to understand the purpose of the committee and its functions and their responsibilities as
members of the committee. It will link to other sections of CIPFA’s guidance, which will provide
additional resources.

FURTHER SECTIONS OF CIPFA'S GUIDANCE

The 2022 edition of Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police builds
on previous editions but aims to better target the guidance at the most appropriate audience. This
section is aimed directly at audit committee members in local authorities. A separate section covers
the same material but for police audit committees.

Guiding the audit committee is a supplement to the member guide. It is aimed at those who
support the committee, helping them to ensure that its operations are in accordance with the
appropriate legislation and good practice. It also includes links to additional resources that
are relevant for the committee’'s work. Audit committee members may also wish to access
this supplement.

There are several appendices available, including example terms of reference, improvement tools
and a knowledge and skills framework. These are available across all parts of this publication.

Page§109


https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Pagge 110



Contents

THE PURPOSE OF AUDIT COMMITTEES........coiicrscceesesssssesesesssssssssssssssssasasassssssssssssssssesssssssss st st sssssasasasasasasasassssssssssssssssnes 9
PURPOSE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ...ttt sttt ettt 9
IMPACT ettt E R E AR R 9
HOW THE AUDIT COMMITTEE SUPPORTS OVERALL GOVERNANCE WITHIN THE AUTHORITY ....covniniineennes 9

THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 13
MAINTENANCE OF GOVERNANCE, RISK AND CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS .....ccvirerninsieeieetsetseeseeseesssssesseenees 14

[CToToTe [e o1y <T 4 a Yo Lo Tl SN OO PTTP 14
ELNICOI FrOMEWOTK ..ottt bbb 15
RISK MONGGEMENT ..ottt bbbt 16
INEEINIA] CONTIOIS .ttt bbb bbb 17
Value for money and best value arrangemMENTS ...t sessee s eessesessssseen 18
(@feT8 gt e=TaTaTe i e Ule [e]qTe [eo] U] o] o] o TSR

Arrangements for partnerships, collaborations and subsidiaries

ACCOUNTABILITY AND PUBLIC REPORTING

LT aTeTaTell | Byt o Yo T ] T TSSOSO
ANNUAl GOVEINANCE STATEMENT ..ttt s e s et ses e s s s s e s e e s eeneensntes 23
ASSURANCE AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS ...ttt sssssses et esssssssssssssnnes 23
Assurance frameworks and ASSUIANCE PIANNING ... ess bt 23
Supporting and Mmaking best Use Of QUi ... 24
EXEEINAT QUG .ottt 24
INEEINIG] QU ettt bbb 27
ENSURING THE FOCUS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ...t sesssssssse et sssss s sessssssssssaees 29
POSSIBLE WIDER FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 31
REQUIREMENTS OF GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEES IN WALES.......coonneieeneseeseesesesessseesenns 31
SCrutiny Of fINANCIA] OFfOIrS ...ttt ettt 31
Performance assessSmMeENt ArraNGEMENTS ... esse et eseess s s ess s e sesse st essesssssnsessesnsssanen 31
Developing the approach t0 the FEVIEW ...ttt e 31
Arrangements for handling COMPIOINTS ...t s 32
TREASURY MANAGEMENT ...ttt ettt seseese e ss sttt b et et 32
SUPPORTING CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMMES.......ocrintintineiesseissesessessssssssse st ssssssessessenns 33
CONSIDERING MATTERS AT THE REQUEST OF STATUTORY OFFICERS OR OTHER COMMITTEES................. 33
INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY ..ooiuiuiuiaiasasssassssssssesssssssesssesssssssssssasssasasssassssassssssssssssssssssestsssssasasssasasasasasasssasassens 35
STRUCTURE AND INDEPENDENCE .......cctieiutenieneieessetseeeseessessesssssssssseessesssssesesssssssssessesssssssssssssssessssssssessssssssssssssessssssessesas 36
COMMITTEE SIZE....eiiiceeeec s b b 36
=T 0o ) 4] T N L1 =3O 36
DEICALEU FOCUS .euvueuieretreteeei ettt ettt 36
Decision-making powers and delegations ...t 36
Rights of access to documents and requesting attendance at COMmMIttEe........vvrverererereererenereereeeeeneenes 36
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS ..ottt ssesssssssssesesssssssssssssnan 37
SUPPOIrtiNG the AUAIT COMMITEEE. ...ttt ettt et e 37

Page 111



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

L =Y [W1Tq VoY) i 0 g T i g Ve O 37
TEONSPOIEINCY .ottt s bbb bbb bbb 38
Meetings and interaction outside scheduled MEETINGS. ..ottt 38
Private meetings with the external auditor and head of internal AUt ..o 38
KEY RELATIONSHIPS ...ttt seeeeseesset et es b8 s8££ bbb 39
ACCOUNTABILITY e ttttetueesseestesesseeseessetseseessessessesss s sssss s ss s ses s ss s see8 1 b8 8 bbb e bbb 39
To those charged With QOVEINGNCE. ...

The audit COMMITLEE ANNUAT FEPOI ... ..ttt

Supporting accountability to the public and stakeholders...

Supporting iNterNal ACCOUNTADIITIES .....cuiu ittt eee
MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ... .41
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP ..ottt et eess s st 42
Elected representatives and political DAIANCE ...t 42

Separation from executive roles

Including co-opted independent members (also known as lay MeMDBErS).......crinenreneneeneeneeseeneereeneens 42
The role of the co-opted independent MEMDET ... 43
REMUNEIATION ..o 43
P2V oY o o1 a1 da o=y o Tako} il d V=T @ oo |1 OO 43
KNOWIEAGE GNA EXPEIENCE ...erieririeeeeereeseieesset ettt bbbt 44
Training AN A@VEIOPIMENT ...ttt 44
DEVELOPING EFFECTIVENESS ...ttt sess st ss st 44
Feedback to comMmIttee MEMDEIS........... et 45
AppPendices tO SUPPOIT EVAIUGTION. ...ttt ses e s s s s s s s ensesssensnee 45

Problem solving

e o = T (0 P 47

Page 112



The purpose of audit
committees

Purpose of the audit committee

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their purpose is to provide
an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control arrangements. The
committee’s role in ensuring that there is sufficient assurance over governance risk and control gives greater
confidence to all those charged with governance that those arrangements are effective.

The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the financial and governance
reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate arrangements in place for both internal challenge and
public accountability.

Impact

As a non-executive body, the influence of the audit committee depends not only on the effective
performance of its role, but also on its engagement with the leadership team and those charged with
governance.

The committee should evaluate its impact and identify areas for improvement.

CIPFA Position Statement 2022

HOW THE AUDIT COMMITTEE SUPPORTS OVERALL GOVERNANCE WITHIN
THE AUTHORITY

The overall aim of good governance is to align the authority’s processes and structures with the
attainment of sustainable outcomes. In practice, this means ensuring that:

e resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities
e thereis sound and inclusive decision making
e there is appropriate stewardship of public assets and resources

e thereis transparency and clear accountability for the use of resources in order to achieve
desired outcomes for service users and communities.

Governance for the sector is defined in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016) as follows:

e  Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes
for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

e To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals
working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while acting in the
public interest at all times.

Good governance is ultimately the responsibility of the governing body (the full council or
equivalent), as well as those with leadership roles and statutory responsibilities in the organisation,
including the elected mayor (where applicable), chief executive, the chief financial officer (CFO)

Page2113


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

and the monitoring officer. In local government, the governing body is the full council or authority.
Putting good governance into practice requires both members and officers to play their part.

The audit committee should play a key role in supporting the discharge of those responsibilities by
providing a high-level focus on audit, assurance and reporting. In local government, the authority
sometimes delegates specific governance responsibilities, though CIPFA’'s recommendation is that
the audit committee should remain an advisory committee.

As a key component of an organisation’s governance arrangements, the audit committee has the
potential to be a valuable resource for the whole authority. Where it operates effectively, an audit
committee adds value to its authority by supporting improvement across a range of objectives. To
achieve wide-ranging influence, an audit committee will need commitment and energy from the
membership, together with support and openness from the authority.

The principal areas where the committee can exert influence and add value are:

e aiding the achievement of the authority’s goals and objectives by helping to ensure
appropriate governance, risk, control and assurance arrangements

e  promoting the principles of good governance and how they are applied during decision
making

e raising awareness of the need for sound internal control and contributing to the development
of an effective control environment

e  supporting arrangements to govern risk and for effective arrangements to manage risk

e advising on the adequacy of the assurance framework and considering whether assurance is
deployed efficiently and effectively across the authority

e reinforcing the objectivity, importance and independence of both internal and external audit
and supporting the effectiveness of the audit functions

e  supporting the development of robust arrangements for ensuring value for money

¢ helping the authority to implement the values of ethical governance, including effective
arrangements for countering the risks of fraud and corruption

e  promoting measures to improve transparency, accountability and effective public reporting to
the authority’s stakeholders and the local community.

The influence that an effective audit committee can have in these areas is set out in Figure 1.

10
Page 114



THE PURPOSE OF AUDIT COMMITTEES

Figure 1: The influential audit committee

GOOD
GOVERNANCE
AND DECISION

MAKING
EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE

INTERNAL RISK
CONTROLS MANAGEMENT

AUDIT VALUE

AND FOR MONEY
ASSURANCE

EMBEDDING
ETHICAL
VALUES AND
COUNTERING IMPROVING

FRAUD PUBLIC

REPORTING,
TRANSPARENCY
AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

CIPFA's view is that audit committee functions can be most effectively delivered by a dedicated
audit committee. Such a committee provides a key resource to support the implementation of good
governance standards. It is possible for the functions of an audit committee to be undertaken by
other committees, but a dedicated resource is likely to be more knowledgeable and effective, with
more time to focus on these important issues.

11
Page 115



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

12
Page 116



The core functions of an
audit committee

The core functions of audit committees should reflect both standard practice for audit committees
across all sectors and the specific legislative and professional standards requirements for
local authorities.

This chapter identifies the core areas of business for an audit committee and explains why they
are important. The way the audit committee works must align with legislation and recommended
guidance for some of these areas. This guidance is consistent with the requirements and key
references are identified. Guiding the audit committee provides further details where required,
together with links to additional resources.

The Position Statement sets out the core functions of the audit committee as follows.

Maintenance of governance, risk and control arrangements

Support a comprehensive understanding of governance across the organisation and among all those
charged with governance, fulfilling the principles of good governance.

Consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements. It should understand the
risk profile of the organisation and seek assurances that active arrangements are in place on risk-related
issues, for both the body and its collaborative arrangements.

Monitor the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including arrangements for financial
management, ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and managing the authority’s
exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption.

Financial and governance reporting

Be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the annual governance statement,
properly reflect the risk environment, and any actions required to improve it, and demonstrate how
governance supports the achievement of the authority’s objectives.

Support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial reporting and review the statutory
statements of account and any reports that accompany them.

Establishing appropriate and effective arrangements for audit and assurance

Consider the arrangements in place to secure adequate assurance across the body’s full range of
operations and collaborations with other entities.

In relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

— oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and conformance to professional standards
— support effective arrangements for internal audit

— promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

Consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection agencies and their
implications for governance, risk management or control, and monitor management action in response
to the issues raised by external audit.

Contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit arrangements, supporting the
independence of auditors and promoting audit quality.

Support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, audits and inspections, and the
organisation, encouraging openness to challenge, review and accountability.

CIPFA Position Statement 2022

13
Page 117



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

The Position Statement sets out the core functions of the audit committee. Essentially, the
responsibilities of the committee fall into three broad areas:

1 Supporting the establishment and maintenance of good governance, risk management and
control arrangements.

2 Supporting accountability and public reporting, in particular the financial statements and
the annual governance statement, and other statements that accompany the financial
statements.

3 Supporting the establishment and maintenance of good arrangements for internal audit and
external audit.

It's important to understand each area, and each area complements and supports the others. To
be effective, the audit committee will need to operate across all areas and not just focus on one or
two aspects.

The remainder of this section explains each of these areas in more detail. Guiding the audit
committee provides more details on legislation, standards and supporting resources.

MAINTENANCE OF GOVERNANCE, RISK AND CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

Good governance

Local authorities should actively apply the framework of good governance (Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016)) (‘the Framework’) and the
seven principles of good governance. The audit committee plays an important role in supporting
the Framework, not least with its approval of the annual governance statement (AGS), which
should align with the Framework. CIPFA recommends that authorities should have a local code of
governance to clearly explain how their arrangements are consistent with the principles of good
governance. Where there isn't a local code, this information will be available through several
sources. Whether or not there is a code, the committee should be able to understand what the
authority's arrangements for governance are.

To provide a meaningful review of the AGS, audit committee members should be able to draw
on their knowledge of the governance arrangements and on assurances they have received
during the year. The audit committee should undertake the following activities to discharge their
responsibilities:

e Review the local code of governance and any changes to the arrangements in the year (note
it is not the responsibility of the audit committee to establish any local code, but it should be
consulted).

e  Ensure that a framework of assurance underpins the AGS (see Assurance and audit
arrangements for more details on assurance planning).

e  Over the course of the year, receive reports and assurances over the application of the
governance arrangements in practice.

e Review the governance arrangements being put in place for major developments, such as the
establishment of a collaborative arrangement or trading company.

. Monitor implementation of action plans or recommendations to improve governance
arrangements.

e  Consider how the organisation applies governance principles in practice during the
committee’s review of other agenda items.

14
Page 118


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition

THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

Given its role in overseeing the local code of governance and the AGS, the audit committee can
promote the implementation of good governance across the authority to make things better in

the future, not just review what happened in the past. For example, the committee may make
recommendations for action to senior management or refer matters to other committees. The limits
to the decision-making powers of audit committees are considered in more depth in Independence
and accountability.

Where an authority is found to have failed in its statutory obligations to provide best value, the
government has the power to intervene. The audit committee is one mechanism an authority
should have in place to identify, escalate and oversee the improvement of any governance
weaknesses to avoid the necessity of government intervention.

Further details on the AGS and the committee’s role in reviewing it are included later in
Accountability and public reporting.

Ethical framework

Public sector entities are accountable for not only how much they spend but also how they use
the resources they have been entrusted with. This is at the heart of Principle A of the governance
framework:

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law.

With its core role in supporting good governance, support for the ethical framework of the authority
is also important for the audit committee. In addition, authorities have an overarching mission to
serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies.
This makes it essential that the entire authority can show the integrity of all its actions and has
mechanisms in place that encourage and enforce a strong commitment to ethical values and legal
compliance at all levels. As part of its review of governance arrangements, the audit committee
should be satisfied that there are adequate arrangements for achieving this.

All authorities should have regard to the Seven Principles of Public Life, known as the
Nolan Principles:

e  Selflessness

. Integrity

e  Objectivity

e  Accountability
. Openness

. Honesty

. Leadership

The authority will have specific arrangements in place to oversee and operate standards, such as a
standards committee, and the audit committee will not duplicate its responsibilities. Instead, its role
is to oversee the arrangements that are in place to establish and maintain ethical standards and to
obtain assurance over them. This supports the AGS.

Assurance over ethics will come from internal audit or from other sources of assurance, particularly
for the annual review underpinning the AGS.

15
Page 119



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Risk management

Assurance over risk management will be a key element underpinning the AGS. The audit committee
also needs a good understanding of the level of assurance the risk management arrangements
provide when it reviews the risk-based internal audit plan or reviews other assurances on areas

of risk.

The role of the audit committee in relation to risk management covers three major areas.

1 Assurance over the governance of risk, including leadership, integration of risk management
into wider governance arrangements and the ownership of and accountability for risks.
Specifically, this includes:

—  overseeing the authority’s risk management policy and strategy and their implementation
in practice

—  overseeing the integration of risk management into the governance and decision-making
processes of the organisation

—  ensuring that the AGS is an adequate reflection of the risk environment.
2 Keeping up to date with the risk profile and the effectiveness of risk management actions by:

—  reviewing arrangements to co-ordinate and lead risk management (an example of such
an arrangement is the existence of a group to examine, challenge and support the risk
assessment process to ensure consistency across the organisation)

—  reviewing the risk profile and keeping up to date with significant areas of strategic risks,
major operational risks or major project risks and seeking assurance that these are
managed effectively and owned appropriately (the committee should avoid duplication of
risk monitoring and scrutiny undertaken by other committees)

—  seeking assurance that strategies and policies are supported by adequate risk
assessments and that risks are being actively managed and monitored

—  following up risks identified by auditors and inspectors to ensure they are integrated into
the risk management process.

3 Monitoring the effectiveness of risk management arrangements and supporting the
development and embedding of good practice in risk management by:

—  overseeing any evaluation or assessment of the body’s arrangements, such as a risk
maturity assessment or risk benchmarking

—  reviewing evaluation, assurance and audit reports on risk management and monitoring
progress on improvement plans.

Acting as a risk committee

Local government bodies do not usually establish a dedicated committee with responsibility for risk
management. Instead, committees such as policy and resources, cabinet or scrutiny are likely to
play a role in the oversight of individual risks and the adequacy of the risk response. The leadership
team, including the executive member body, will take the lead in establishing the risk appetite of
the authority. The audit committee should understand the roles played by other committees to
avoid duplication and confusion with its own role.

Where other member bodies do not actively review key risks, the audit committee could take on
additional functions involving more in-depth reviews of risks. In doing so, the committee should be
mindful of when it is acting as a risk committee rather than just as an audit committee.

16
Page 120



THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

These functions could include:

e reqgular reviews of risk registers, particularly strategic risks, and significant operational risks to
consider their adequacy and effectiveness in capturing and assessing risks

e risk challenge to evaluate whether planned mitigations are appropriate and effective, making
recommendations to the responsible risk owner where appropriate

e identifying dependencies or links between risks and considering if the planned mitigations
recognise this

e considering if risks have been escalated appropriately and in a timely manner

e  supporting the leadership team in their review of risk appetite, though the final decision should
remain with the leadership team.

The audit committee’s terms of reference should make it clear whether risk committee roles
are included.

Internal controls

The leadership team and the service managers within the authority are responsible for putting in
place appropriate internal control arrangements. The aims of internal controls are to:

e manage risks
e allow agreed policies and processes to be put into practice.

In doing these two things, an effective ‘internal control framework’ will make it more likely that the
authority’s objectives will be achieved. The internal control framework is a way of describing the
complete set of controls that management have put in place.

Controls may take different forms according to the risks that they are intended to manage and their
purpose. Some examples of controls include the following:

e  Access controls within an [T system determine who has access to that application and the
available functions and data (a preventative control).

e  Procurement rules, guidance and relevant training may be used to ensure that procurement
decisions are within the law and achieve best value (a directive control).

e  An exception report identifies outlier transactions in a process for review and approval by
management (a detective control).

e  Procedures to ensure that a copy of data is kept secure and away from the primary system to
allow for recovery (a corrective control).

The control framework will include many corporate arrangements such as an authority’s financial
regulations, contract standing orders and human resources policies, as well as service-specific
controls embedded within a range of policy documents, guidance notes, training manuals and
instructions. Some authorities use a structured framework to classify their control frameworks.
Some controls are fundamental to a system; often, they are described as ‘key controls’.

The effectiveness of the internal control framework should be considered as part of the annual
review on governance. Where there are significant control failures, or an overall weakness in the
framework, then it should be considered for disclosure in the AGS. CIPFA’s Financial Management
Code (FM Code) (2019) provides a set of principles covering the operation of financial management
throughout the authority to help ensure that internal financial controls operate effectively.
Assurance over the level of compliance with the FM Code should be considered as part of the
annual review on governance.

17
Page 121


https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode
https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

The head of internal audit's annual opinion (see Internal audit) will provide an annual opinion
covering the framework of internal control alongside that of risk management and governance. This
too will inform the AGS. Reports from internal audit and external audit will provide assurance on
the adequacy of specific controls.

Historically, internal audit and the audit committee were expected to focus most on financial
controls, but today the focus of both will encompass a much broader set of controls.

While a range of internal controls are essential, the audit committee should be conscious that too
many controls could result in greater inefficiency or ineffectiveness in an operation. Controls may
also become outdated or otherwise no longer fit for purpose. Introducing new controls may incur
additional costs or other resources. The committee should strive to ensure that the authority has an
appropriate level of internal control linked to the authority’s attitude to risk.

Value for money and best value arrangements

Making best use of resources is a key aim for all local authorities and is part of the governance
framework. One of the behaviours and actions that underpins Principle C of the Framework is
“delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available”.
Making best use of resources is an essential enabler to achieving the goals and objectives that the
authority has set for itself.

Like other aspects of the committee’s responsibilities, the primary focus is on the authority’s
arrangements for ensuring value for money rather than reviewing the actual performance achieved.
This means seeking assurance that the authority has put in place the right mechanisms and is
actively pursuing better value for money.

When planning work in relation to value-for-money arrangements, the audit committee should be
mindful of what other committees may do. There is a potential overlap with the work of the scrutiny
function, so care will be needed to avoid duplication. For example, a scrutiny committee may receive
performance reports that show performance against a dashboard of indicators or may benchmark
performance against other bodies.

Using this information, the scrutiny committee will challenge whether the authority is on track to
achieve its performance targets and meet its objectives. They will highlight areas where value for
money may be an issue. The audit committee will first focus on the overall arrangements that are
being put in place to achieve value for money. They will receive assurances, from internal audit or
from other sources of assurance, on how effectively those arrangements work in practice. As a result
of the work of the audit committee, areas of concern about value for money may be identified and
recommendations for further action or investigation made.

The audit committee will see references to value for money as part of other areas within its terms
of reference. For example:

e Internal audit reports may highlight a value-for-money risk as part of a wider assurance
review. It may feature in the head of internal audit’s annual opinion.

e  The AGS should include reference to how effectively the value-for-money aspect of
governance is operating in practice. A value-for-money concern could be included as a
recommendation for action if it were significant.

e  Output from the risk management arrangements may highlight risks to value for money.

One major area where the audit committee will receive assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness
of value-for-money arrangements is from the authority’s external auditors. Across the UK, the
different audit arrangements have resulted in differences in how value for money and best value are
considered by the auditors. Further details of audit codes are set out in Guiding the audit committee.

18
Page 122



THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

Countering fraud and corruption

Local authorities have responsibilities for the effective stewardship of public money and for
safeguarding against losses due to fraud and corruption. If money is misdirected or assets lost to
fraud, it means that limited budgets are less able to meet service demands and fulfil the authority’s
objectives. When any authority experiences a significant fraud or case of corruption, it damages
public perception of that authority and undermines public trust. Effective counter fraud and anti-
corruption arrangements also relate to the ethical standards that the public expects members and
officers to uphold.

The audit committee should have oversight of the authority’'s arrangements for managing the risks
from fraud and corruption, providing assurance that they are fit for purpose. The arrangements
should extend beyond having the facility to investigate an allegation or other evidence of fraud. It
should include a much broader strategy and understanding of the risks. Guidance on establishing
such arrangements is available to authorities in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the
Risk of Fraud and Corruption (2014).

Oversight of counter fraud plans and availability of resources and their effectiveness are key areas
for obtaining assurance. Specific actions should include:

e reviewing the counter fraud strategy and considering whether it meets
recommended practices

e  championing good counter fraud and anti-corruption practice to the wider organisation

e reviewing the fraud risk profile and estimate of fraud losses or potential harm to the
organisation and its local community

e reviewing the annual counter fraud plan of activity and resources, seeking assurance that it is
in line with the strategy and fraud risk profile

e monitoring the overall performance of the counter fraud function

e overseeing any major areas of fraud identified and monitoring action plans to address control
weaknesses

e consideration of assurance provided by internal audit.

The CIPFA guidance on the AGS recommends that the adequacy of counter fraud arrangements is
evaluated and reported in the AGS using the counter fraud code. The audit committee should have
sight of the assurances underpinning this assessment and can play an important role in supporting
the development of effective counter fraud and corruption practice.

Arrangements for partnerships, collaborations and subsidiaries

Authorities commonly have a wide range of partnership and collaborative arrangements, including
strategic relationships with other public sector organisations, shared service arrangements,
commercial relationships with private sector partners and a range of service delivery arrangements
with community groups or social enterprises. Authorities may also be the accountable body for
local enterprise partnerships (LEPs). Increasingly, authorities have subsidiary arrangements such as
commercial trading companies.

Ensuring the adequacy of governance and risk management over such arrangements can be
complicated, but it is important, as accountability for performance and stewardship of the public
funds involved remains with the authority. For these reasons, the role of the audit committee in
relation to these arrangements should be clearly defined.

19
Page 123


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

The audit committee’s role should be to consider assurances on whether the partnership or
collaboration arrangements are satisfactorily established and are operating effectively. The
committee should satisfy itself that the principles of good governance underpin the partnership
arrangements. For example, the audit committee should seek assurance that the authority has
appropriate arrangements to identify and manage risks, ensure good governance, and obtain
assurance on compliance. The committee may also want to know what arrangements have been
put in place to maintain accountability to stakeholders and ensure transparency of decision making
and that standards of probity are maintained.

For subsidiary arrangements such as the establishment of a trading company, the audit committee
will also need to receive assurances that the governance, risk and control arrangements of the
authority’s oversight of the company are robust.

Where an authority is developing new partnership or collaboration arrangements, the audit
committee may wish to receive assurance over governance matters at the project stage. When
reviewing the proposed structure, the committee should consider whether the authority has the
necessary expertise, advice and training in place to take on new governance roles.

It is also important that the committee clarifies its own responsibilities in relation to the governance
arrangements of the new service delivery organisation. Will they act as the audit committee for the
new structure, for instance?

The audit committee should consider assurances that underpin the AGS to make sure that
partnerships are covered. Where a partner organisation (such as a shared service entity) does not
have its own audit committee, then the audit committee could be nominated to undertake this role.
This is most likely for the audit committee of the accountable body to support the CFO.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND PUBLIC REPORTING

Public bodies must operate transparently, and being accountable to the public and stakeholder
groups is a fundamental aspect of governance arrangements. The audit committee plays a key
role in supporting the body's accountability for the use of public money and for the way it is
governed. While other public reports are also available, the annual financial reports and the annual
governance statements are important accountability statements that are mandated by legislation
and guided by professional standards. These accountability statements are the responsibility

of those charged with governance, but the audit committee will play a key role in reviewing the
arrangements that underpin them and reviewing the statements themselves.

Financial reporting

Local government bodies are required to produce their statutory statements of accounts in
accordance with professional accounting standards to ensure a consistent approach and
appropriate treatment. This provides confidence to the user in the financial results. The accounting
standards are determined by CIPFA/LASAAC and are set out in the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, updated annually. These standards must
incorporate both International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and any adaptations or
interpretations necessary for the local government context and local government legislation. A
particularly important part of this is the legislative framework that changes what is charged to a
revenue account under accounting standards (IFRS) to mitigate or manage the impact of those
standards on council taxpayers. As a result, the accounts have an extra layer of complexity that an
organisation such as a limited company would not have.

The primary users of financial statements are the recipients of the local services provided and
their representatives, together with the providers of the resources required to deliver those

20
Page 124


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/codes-of-practice
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/codes-of-practice

THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

services. Local authority members and Members of Parliament are primary users of local authority
financial statements in their capacity as representatives of the interests of service recipients and
resource providers.

CIPFA’s Guide to Local Government Finance (2019) sets out details of accounting concepts and
principles that underpin the financial reports. The key financial statements are as follows:

Key statements in annual accounts

Comprehensive Income This is where all the income and expenditure of the authority is recorded in line

and Expenditure with accounting rules. This statement is similar to the one you would find in a
Statement private company.

Movement in Reserves This statement shows the impact of the financial year on the authority’s
Statement reserves. It also includes all the income and expenditure that is recognised under

accounting rules but then removed from the accounts by legislation to give the
amount of expenditure that has been funded by the local taxpayer.

Balance Sheet This statement summarises an authority’s financial position at each year-end
and reports the assets, liabilities and reserves of the authority. Some of the
reserves are specific to authorities, such as the pensions reserve and the capital
adjustment account, and exist to allow accounting entries required by legislation.
This statement is similar to the one you would find in a private company.

Cash Flow Statement This summarises the cash flows that have been made into and out of the
authority’s bank account during the financial year. This statement is similar to the
one you would find in a private company.

Some authorities will need to include specific statements to account for their activities — for
example, the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) or collection fund — and councils in Scotland are
required to hold trading accounts (some councils in the rest of the UK may hold these voluntarily).
Administering authorities of the Local Government Pension Scheme will also need to produce
pension accounts for their fund.

Authorities are required to include a narrative report in the accounts (management commentary
in Scotland). This should provide information on the authority, its main objectives and strategies,
the principal risks that it faces and how it has used its resources to achieve its desired outcomes
in line with its objectives and strategies. For a non-expert reader, this report will help to explain
the statements and help demonstrate the extent to which the objectives of the authority have
been achieved.

The role of the audit committee is to review the financial statements prior to approval. The
statements are the responsibility of all those charged with governance — the full member body —
but the audit committee is delegated the responsibility of a detailed review. Some authorities fully
delegate responsibility to the audit committee by including final approval of the accounts in the
committee’s terms of reference, but CIPFA has always set out the committee’s role to be one of
review rather than decision making. In England and Wales, co-opted independent members cannot
vote to approve the accounts under Section 13 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
(see Membership and effectiveness of the audit committee).

Accounts preparation

The preparation of the statutory statements of accounts is the responsibility of the CFO. The
deadline for the publication of the statements is set out in regulations by each of the UK
governments. Recently, achieving these deadlines has been adversely impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic and delays in the completion of audits. Monitoring the status of both completion of

the statements and liaison with the auditors before publication will be important for the audit

21
Page 125


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-guide-to-local-government-finance-2019
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

committee. The audit committee will want assurance that the finance team can deliver a set of
financial statements of appropriate quality in accordance with the statutory deadlines. Factors they
will wish the finance team to highlight to them include:

e significant changes in accounting policies and their implications
e  significant judgements made by the authority on material transactions

e changes to the operational basis of the authority — for example, the establishment of a trading
company that will need to be consolidated into the accounts

e capacity and capability within the finance function to meet quality standards and deadlines

e whether there have been previous problems with the quality of the financial statements — for
example, issues and recommendations from the previous year’s audit

e  issues arising from any internal assurance or internal audit reviews and actions taken

e any changes to the external audit requirements that could have implications for the
preparation of the statements — for example, the drive to improve audit quality has included
increased professional scepticism.

Reviewing the statutory statements of accounts

The complexity and length of the financial statements can be daunting for audit committee
members, especially if this is an area where they do not have prior experience. CIPFA has resources
that will provide more detailed guidance on the statements and underlying concepts, and specific
training is also recommended.

Key areas that the committee should focus on in their review are as follows:

e  The narrative report, ensuring that the messages are consistent with the financial statements.
The committee should also consider the implications of the issues and challenges identified
and consistency with other risk information provided.

e  What steps have been taken to make the narrative report readable and understandable to
a non-expert and whether steps have been taken to make the accounts accessible. CIPFA’s
Streamlining the Accounts (2019) includes a section on the presentation and layout of
the accounts.

e Reviewing the completeness of the information reported and asking about the steps taken to
ensure that the disclosures are complete.

e Identifying the key messages from each of the financial statements and evaluating what that
means for the authority in future years.

e  Monitoring trends and reviewing for consistency against financial performance observed over
the course of the year.

e Reviewing the suitability of accounting policies and treatments and any changes to them — for
example, asking the CFO to highlight to the committee where accounting treatment is open to
different approaches and explaining why the method used has been chosen.

e  Seeking explanations for changes in accounting policies and treatments — for example, where
there has been a change in the accounting standards.

e  Reviewing major judgemental areas — for example, provisions or reserves.

Understanding Local Authority Financial Statements (CIPFA/LASAAC, 2016) includes a checklist
of questions to ask about a local authority’s statements that audit committee members may find
particularly helpful.

22
Page 126


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/s/streamlining-the-accounts
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-lasaac-local-authority-code-board/simplification-and-streamlining-the-presentation-of-local-authority-financial-statements

THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

A current topic for discussion is whether further steps could be taken to make the financial
statements more understandable for the public. A recommendation of the Redmond Review was
that a standardised statement of service information and costs should be prepared and presented
alongside the statutory accounts. This recommendation is still under discussion and review, and the
introduction of such a statement would be a development of interest to the audit committee. The
audit committee will be interested in any steps taken to improve transparency and accountability
by ensuring that the key messages are accessible to users.

Annual governance statement

The committee’s role in supporting the principles of good governance and the local code of
governance was outlined in the section on supporting good governance, risk management and
internal control. The AGS is the key annual public report that requires the authority to evaluate the
effectiveness of its governance arrangements.

While the committee will see other agenda items that describe the governance arrangements that
have been established — notably updates to the local code of governance — the AGS is all about
evaluation. It is an assessment of how good those arrangements are in practice, leading to an
opinion on whether they are fit for purpose. Where there are areas for improvement, these should
be identified and an appropriate action plan established.

The audit committee should play a key role in reviewing the AGS prior to its final approval. It is
typical for the AGS to be provided in draft, usually at the same time the financial statements are
prepared. The timetable for final publication follows the regulations of the relevant UK national
government.

Key aspects that the audit committee should consider when reviewing the AGS include:
e whether the statement is user friendly for a lay reader

e whether the statement focuses on evaluation, leading to a clear opinion of whether
arrangements are fit for purpose and meet the principles of good governance

e whether the AGS is an accurate representation of arrangements, consistent with other
information known to the committee (committee members should be able to recognise their
own authority’s strengths and weaknesses)

e whether itincludes appropriate disclosures on conformance with specified codes and
standards and is consistent with current CIPFA guidance

e whether the AGS is supported by an appropriate action plan to implement the required
improvements and if this is robust.

Although the AGS publication follows the same timetable as the financial statements, it can also
be published as a separate accountability report. This would help raise its prominence and value to
local stakeholders, providing improved transparency.

ASSURANCE AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

Assurance frameworks and assurance planning

The term ‘assurance framework’ is used to describe the various means through which the
authority’s leaders, managers and decision makers can trust that the policies and procedures they
have approved are being implemented in practice and operating as intended. Putting in place this
framework is the responsibility of the leadership team.

23
Page 127



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

For the audit committee member, reviewing assurances on the operation of governance, risk
management and control arrangements is a core part of their role. The committee should also be
concerned to know that an adequate assurance framework exists to inform the leadership team.

The audit committee may see references to the Three Lines Model of assurance developed by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). More details of the model are contained in Guiding the audit
committee. Briefly, the Three Lines Model identifies three different types of assurance:

e Management assurance — embedded in line management arrangements.
e  Oversight and compliance assurance — review and monitoring functions.
. Independent assurance (internal audit).

Occasionally, there might be reference to the ‘fourth line’, referring to assurance that comes from
outside the authority such as from external auditors or inspectorates.

Some authorities set out their assurance arrangements in a map or diagram. Typically, these outline
key areas of the assurances needed and identify the assurance providers.

Whether or not there is a formal assurance framework, the audit committee has a responsibility
to understand what assurance is available to support the AGS and to enable the committee to
meet its terms of reference. The committee should seek to ensure that assurance is planned and
delivered, with the following objectives in mind:

e  Clarity on what assurance is required.

e  Clear allocation of responsibility for providing assurance.

e  Avoiding duplication, bearing in mind the differing objectives of assurance activities.
e Improving the efficiency and cost effectiveness of assurance.

e  Obtaining assurance of appropriate rigour and independence across a range of
assurance providers.

Each authority has core activities that are central to its effective operation, and the audit committee
should consider what assurance it receives on these, whether through the annual governance
review, internal audit or management assurance. Core arrangements would include financial
management and counter fraud, but other key areas include information governance, information
security, procurement, ethical governance, human resources and health and safety.

In reviewing assurance arrangements, the committee should bear in mind that the assurance
process has a cost to the authority, and it should therefore be proportional to the risk.

Supporting and making best use of audit

Supporting the authority’s auditors, both internal audit and external audit, is an important
dimension to the committee’s work. Helping to make best use of the process of audit and audit
outputs will contribute to the committee’s overall purpose. This section explains the committee’s
interactions with both internal and external audit and the role of the committee in supporting
effective arrangements.

External audit

Within an authority, the full council — all elected councillors — are characterised as “those charged
with governance”. In practice, the exercise of some governance responsibilities is delegated to
specific committees. This is of particular importance in relation to external audit, as external
auditors are required by auditing standards to report to “those charged with governance”. While

24
Page 128



THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

the audit committee is the representative body for much of the interface with the external auditors,
it is important to remember that all councillors have a governance responsibility, and it is important
that they are familiar with key messages from the authority’s external auditors.

The audit committee will have several interactions with the external auditors each year following

a regular cycle of planning and reporting. There are also roles for the committee in supporting the
independence of the auditors, the effectiveness of the external audit process and the impact of
their work. The following sections provide more support for the critical interactions between the
auditor and the committee. External audit is subject to stringent professional standards and some
of these are highlighted in Guiding the audit committee. Committee members should recognise that
these standards do require auditors to operate in a certain way.

Appointment

In some other sectors, the audit committee plays a lead role in the appointment of the external
auditor. In local government, one of the principles of public audit is that appointment should be
independent of the organisation. In local government bodies in Wales, Scotland and Northern
Ireland, the national audit bodies are responsible for the delivery of local audit. In England, the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 changed the appointment and delivery model for local
government bodies, introducing a more direct role for the authority.

In all authorities, the audit committee’s role in appointment includes expressing an opinion on
the selection and rotation of the external auditor through whichever method is applicable for the
organisation. The audit committee’s objective is to support auditor independence and effective
arrangements and relationships with the auditors.

In England, for all opted-in bodies, Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) appoints the auditor
following consultation with the body. Otherwise, the audit committee will work alongside the
auditor panel, which will oversee the local appointment process and provide advice to the authority
on the final selection. Where the audit committee members meet the requirements of an auditor
panel, as defined in regulations supporting the 2014 Act, then the committee can operate as an
auditor panel itself and make recommendations on the appointment of the local auditor. Regard
must be had for the 2014 Act and regulations if the committee is nominated as an auditor panel.

Monitoring the external audit process

The audit committee’s role in relation to the external audit process has three principal aspects:

1 To provide assurance that the external auditor team maintains independence following
its appointment.

2 To receive and consider the work of external audit.

3 To support the quality and effectiveness of the external audit process.

Supporting independence
The independence of auditors is critical for confidence in the audit opinion and audit process.

Each year, the external auditor will disclose to the committee an assessment of whether it is
independent. These disclosures should include any significant facts that could impact, or be seen
to impact on, independence and objectivity, together with any safeguards put in place. Usually, this
disclosure is included in the audit plan and when reporting. The audit committee should use these
opportunities to discuss their assessment of threats to independence with the external auditor and
any safeguards.

25
Page 129


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

The audit committee should seek information from the external auditor on its policies and processes
for maintaining independence and monitoring compliance. It should also satisfy itself that no issues
with compliance with the ethical standard have been raised by the contract monitoring undertaken
by PSAA, the auditor panel (in England), or from audit quality reviews by the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) or the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW). Regarding
non-audit services, audit committees should monitor the approval of non-audit work and, in
England, consider the oversight of either PSAA or the auditor panel as appropriate.

Receiving and considering the work of external audit

The committee should receive the planned work programme to support the opinion and

receive reports following the completion of external audit work. Where external audit makes
recommendations, the audit committee should discuss the action to be taken with managers and
monitor the agreed action plan. The committee should contribute to the authority’s response to the
annual audit report.

While the Code of Audit Practice for each nation will specify exact outputs, the reports from the
external auditors are likely to include the following:

e A plan —including approach, risks, team, timetables and outputs.

Interim reports — reporting on progress, new developments and interim conclusions.

e  An opinion on the financial statements and the outcome from the audit. The auditor will also
identify any material errors and recommendations.

e  Best value or value-for-money arrangements reports — the format of these vary according to
the Code of Audit Practice the auditor is working to.

e  Anannual report.

In England, the Redmond Review recommended that the auditor’'s annual report should be
submitted to full council by the external auditor. CIPFA’s recommended approach is that the report
should first be submitted to the audit committee for discussion and then submitted to full council by
the auditors, accompanied by the response recommended by the audit committee to any significant
issues raised in the report. This will support greater transparency with the public and help all
elected members understand the outcome of the audit. It should also help to raise the profile of the
audit committee among other elected members.

CIPFA also recommends that this approach is adopted by authorities in the rest of the UK unless
other arrangements exist to achieve the same level of transparency and strengthened governance.

Auditors may also report by exception. If they identify an area of concern, then the auditors may
investigate and may make a recommendation for improvement or a public report. Any such action
should be taken very seriously by the audit committee.

Supporting quality and effectiveness

If the audit committee member has no prior experience of audit committee work or external audit,
then reviewing the quality of external audit can be a challenging aspect of the work and one
where additional training may be required. It is an important aspect of the work of the committee,
as it sets expectations for the auditor for the timely delivery of a high-quality audit. It should also
support better engagement and interaction between auditor, committee and management. Overall,
active interest from the committee will support better outcomes in terms of confidence in the audit
opinion, usability of audit output and better understanding of the audit process.

Guiding the audit committee signposts resources on audit quality that can be of use to
audit committees.

26
Page 130



THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

Reports from inspectorates or other regulatory bodies

In addition to audit reports, the authority may be inspected where it has particular service
responsibilities. For example, social care services are inspected by the Care Quality Commission
(CQC), education and skills services are inspected by the Office for Standards in Education,
Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted), and a fire and rescue authority will be inspected by His
Majesty’'s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS). Other regulatory
bodies, such as the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO), may also review and inspect
arrangements.

Where inspectorates are focused on operational matters, the committee’s role may be limited,
but all external assessments and recommendations provide assurance on the robustness of
governance, risk and controls within the authority. It is therefore important that the committee is
aware of the overall conclusions. Where issues are highlighted by inspections within the remit of
the committee, it may play a more active role — for example, reviewing the implementation of an
improvement plan. The committee will also want to consider how the work of these assurance
providers are taken into account as part of external audit or internal audit.

Internal audit

The authority’s internal audit service, whether an in-house team or provided through a shared
service or outsourced arrangement, is an essential partner for the audit committee. It is a major
source of assurance, providing coverage across many areas that the audit committee will want to
know about. The committee also plays an important role in the support for and oversight of the
internal audit arrangements, helping to hold it to account. This role is in part determined by the
professional standards that the internal auditors must adhere to.

The specific roles of the audit committee in relation to internal audit are to:

e  oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism

e  support the effectiveness of the internal audit process

e  promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

The activities that underpin these three objectives are below.

Oversee independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set out functional reporting arrangements for
internal audit to ensure its organisational independence. These are requirements of the professional
standards, so there is an expectation that the audit committee should provide support. Each
authority will have an internal audit charter, which will set out reporting relationships for internal
audit, and the audit committee terms of reference will need to include those elements that relate to
it. The charter is likely to set out the audit committee’s responsibility to:

e review or approve the following:
—  theinternal audit charter
—  therisk-based internal audit plan
—  theinternal audit budget and resource plan
e receive confirmation of the organisational independence of the internal audit activity

e  consider the appointment and removal of the head of internal audit (referred to in the PSIAS
as ‘chief audit executive’) or the award of a contract for internal audit services

27
Page 131



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

e make enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to determine if there are
any inappropriate scope or resource limitations on internal audit

e approve and periodically review any safeguards put in place to limit impairments to
independence and objectivity where the head of internal audit has been asked to undertake
any additional roles/responsibilities outside of internal auditing

e receive the head of internal audit’'s annual report, which includes:

—  the annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk
management and control

— asummary of the work on which internal audit has based the opinion

—  a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the Local Government Application Note
(LGAN)

—  the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP), including
specific detail as required in the PSIAS

. discuss with the head of internal audit the form of the external assessment of internal audit
and the qualifications and independence of the assessor

e receive the report on the external assessment of internal audit (at least once every five years),
including its overall conclusion and any recommendations (the committee should monitor the
implementation of the improvement plan).

The head of internal audit, also known as the chief audit executive, must have unfettered access to
the chair of the audit committee. In addition, the chair of the audit committee may serve as sponsor
for the external assessment, which forms part of the QAIP, at least once every five years.

Support effective arrangements for internal audit

The audit committee has an important role to play in supporting the process of internal audit and
outputs from audit work. It should help ensure that the authority’s internal audit is effective, which
will mean that the audit committee is better supported, with access to the assurance it needs.
Effective internal audit also supports better governance and control arrangements, which are
aligned to the audit committee’s overall purpose.

Defining the conditions for effective internal audit is not straightforward — different authorities may
feel they have effective arrangements using very different service models, for example. However,
there are some essential conditions that internal audit needs to be effective:

e A service that operates in accordance with PSIAS.

e A service with access to sufficient and appropriate capacity and capability.

e Leadership from the head of internal audit.

e  Good engagement with the committee and management.

e  An organisational culture that actively promotes and understands the role of internal audit.

While the designated head of internal audit can be expected to be responsible for internal audit
activity, the audit committee plays an important role in supporting the organisation’s attitude to
and understanding of internal audit. The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal
Audit (2019) sets out the conditions that can make internal audit effective. It is relevant for audit
committee members as well as the head of internal audit. CIPFA’s research report Internal audit:
untapped potential (2022) also addresses whether public bodies are getting the most from
internal audit.

28
Page 132


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/insight/reporting-on-internal-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/insight/reporting-on-internal-audit

THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

The following activities form a core part of this:

e  Receiving updates on the work of internal audit, including key findings, issues of concern and
action in hand as a result of internal audit work.

e  Receiving communications from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s performance
relative to its plan and other matters.

e  Giving approval to internal audit for any significant additional consulting services not already
included in the audit plan prior to internal audit accepting an engagement.

e  Receiving reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the
PSIAS or LGAN and considering whether the non-conformance is sufficiently significant that it
must be included in the AGS.

e  Overseeing the relationship of internal audit with other assurance providers and with external
audit and any inspectorates.

e  Receiving regular reports on the results of the QAIP, including the external assessment.

Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework

The audit committee should make best use of the internal audit resource within the assurance
framework. In particular, the audit committee should seek confirmation from internal audit that the
audit plan considers the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion that can inform
the AGS. Specific activities will include:

e approving (but not directing) the risk-based plan, considering the use made of other sources
of assurance

e receiving reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has concluded
that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the authority

e  escalating internal audit recommendations where further action is needed

e  bearing in mind internal audit’'s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control when considering
the AGS.

To get the best out of internal audit, the audit committee’s understanding of and support for
effective risk management and wider assurance arrangements is helpful.

Periodically, there are changes made to the PSIAS and LGAN, as well as more specific guidance to
auditors. As a result, the committee may need to receive updates or briefings to ensure that they
are aware of the latest requirements.

ENSURING THE FOCUS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The core functions of the audit committee are wide ranging. At some meetings, it will be inevitable
that certain agenda items take priority to meet statutory deadlines. Audit committees should aim
to ensure that within each year there is adequate coverage of each of the core functions. The
assurance framework of the authority should be a useful resource to support this.

Independence and accountability covers agenda management and Membership and
effectiveness of the audit committee covers the annual review of the effectiveness of
the committee.

29
Page 133



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

30
Page 134



Possible wider functions of
an audit committee

In addition to the core functions of the committee defined in the CIPFA Position Statement, there
are some wider functions that it may be necessary or appropriate for the committee to take on. For
audit committees of councils in Wales, there are some specific requirements set out in legislation.

REQUIREMENTS OF GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEES IN WALES

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 built on requirements first set out in the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. The specified responsibilities not already covered by
the core functions include:

e review and scrutiny of the authority’'s financial affairs
e review of the performance assessment arrangements of the authority

e review and assessment of the authority’s ability to handle complaints effectively.

Scrutiny of financial affairs

Councils will have scrutiny committees that will undertake budget scrutiny and monitor financial
performance. The responsibility of the audit committee is not to duplicate these functions, even
though the legislation uses the phrase ‘scrutinise’. The committee can ensure that they satisfy this
requirement through their review of the financial statements, financial control arrangements and
the work of internal audit and external audit.

Performance assessment arrangements

The 2021 Act introduced a duty on a principal council to keep its performance under review and
to undertake a self-assessment of performance. The legislation requires the governance and audit
committee to review the self-assessment report and the committee can make recommendations.
The council is not required to adopt the committee’s recommendations, but it should include an
explanation of why it has not adopted the change.

There is also a requirement for a periodic panel performance assessment, and there is a similar
requirement for the governance and audit committee to consider the panel report.

The Auditor General for Wales will have the power to undertake a special inspection if a council is
thought to not be meeting the performance requirements. The governance and audit committee will
receive the Auditor General's report and will consider the council’s draft response to the report. If
the committee makes recommendations on the draft response, the council is not required to adopt
the change but must explain why it has not.

Developing the approach to the review

The governance and audit committee’s focus is on the adequacy and suitability of arrangements
rather than performance monitoring. In reviewing the annual self-assessment report the committee
should maintain a similar overview.

31
Page 135


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

CIPFA’s suggested approach includes:

e consideration of whether the scope and approach to drawing up the self-assessment report is
appropriate to fulfil the expectations of the legislation

e whether the council has established appropriate arrangements to obtain assurance over its
performance (these arrangements should form part of the wider assurance framework)

e  whether the council has carried out the appropriate consultation as part of the
performance review

e  considering if the panel appointed and the approach to the panel assessment fulfils the
requirements of legislation

e whether the report’s conclusions and recommendations are consistent with the review and
assurances that underpin it

e consideration of whether there are any inconsistencies in information and assurances received
by the committee in respect of its other work

e consideration of the recommendations and whether they will maintain and improve the
arrangements for performance management going forward.

Arrangements for handling complaints

Assurance that there are effective arrangements to manage complaints could come within the
remit of any audit committee. The specific requirement in Wales does mean that governance and
audit committees will have increased focus in this area.

The focus will need to remain on the arrangements and not become a forum for the review of
individual complaints. The committee will need to consider how they receive this assurance as
part of the wider assurance framework. Complaints may be managed centrally or by individual
department, but it should be possible for the committee to receive an overall assessment of
the effectiveness of those arrangements. If complaints handling was seen as an area of risk,
then it could be included in internal audit plans, but other sources of assurance should be
routinely available.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-sectoral Guidance
Notes (CIPFA, 2021) requires all local authorities to make arrangements for the scrutiny of treasury
management. CIPFA does not specify this to be an audit committee role, and a local authority

may nominate another committee instead. CIPFA is aware, however, that many authorities have
nominated the audit committee to do this, and it is therefore appropriate to consider this activity as
part of this guidance.

Where the audit committee has been nominated, it should be aware that it needs to undertake a
scrutiny role in accordance with the Treasury Management Code in addition to any oversight of
governance, risks and assurance matters relating to treasury management that it would consider
as an audit committee.

Where the committee is undertaking scrutiny, this is likely to involve the following actions:

e  Developing greater awareness and understanding of treasury matters among the
committee members.

e Reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures to be satisfied that controls
are satisfactory.

32
Page 136


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition

POSSIBLE WIDER FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE

e  Receiving regular reports on activities, issues and trends to support the committee’s
understanding of treasury management activities. Note that the committee is not responsible
for the regular monitoring of activity under clause three of the Treasury Management Code, so
the purpose of receiving regular reports should be clear.

e  Reviewing the treasury risk profile and adequacy of treasury risk management processes.

e Reviewing assurances on treasury management (for example, an internal audit report,
external audit or other review).

Treasury management is a specialist areq, so it is likely that committee members will require
training, guidance and support when undertaking scrutiny.

SUPPORTING CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMMES

When an authority is working to an improvement programme — perhaps following a best value
review or inspection — there is likely to be an oversight role for the audit committee. The committee
should receive assurances that actions are being implemented and recommendations addressed.
There may be a dedicated board for the programme and the committee would not seek to
duplicate their work. It will need to understand progress, as it will be an area of interest to the
external auditors and will link to the action plan of the AGS. Where there are areas of improvement
directly within the remit of the committee, it may play a more active role.

CONSIDERING MATTERS AT THE REQUEST OF STATUTORY OFFICERS OR
OTHER COMMITTEES

Occasionally, the audit committee may be requested to consider a review of a service, a proposed
policy or other similar matters. Such requests could come from another committee in the
organisation or from one of the statutory officers. In scoping the terms of reference for a review,
the committee should avoid taking on a scrutiny or policy role and ensure the matter relates to
governance, risk or control. Examples of where it may be helpful for the audit committee to assist
could include:

e reviewing whether adequate governance, risk management or audit processes are in place in
relation to a specific service or new policy area

e  providing advice to the executive on possible risks or implications for good governance arising
from a proposed course of action or decision.

In each case, the aim of the committee should be to make recommendations in line with its role
as set out in the Position Statement: advocating the principles of good governance and helping to
ensure that there are appropriate governance, risk, control and assurance arrangements in place.

Audit committee recommendations may support the advice or recommendations of the statutory
officers but cannot override that advice.

33
Page 137



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

34
Page 138



Independence and
accountability

The audit committee of an authority should be established in accordance with the principles set out
in the 2022 Position Statement. These will ensure that the committee is independent from other
committees in the authority and is accountable to those charged with governance.

Independent and effective model

The audit committee should be established so that it is independent of executive decision making and able
to provide objective oversight. It is an advisory committee that has sufficient importance in the authority so
that its recommendations and opinions carry weight and have influence with the leadership team and those
charged with governance.

The committee should:
e Dbe directly accountable to the authority's governing body
e inlocal authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions

e have rights of access to and constructive engagement with other committees/functions, for example
scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management boards and other strategic groups

e have rights to request reports and seek assurances from relevant officers

e be of an appropriate size to operate as a cadre of experienced, trained committee members. Large
committees should be avoided.

The audit committees of local authorities should include co-opted independent members in accordance with
the appropriate legislation.

Where there is no legislative direction to include co-opted independent members, CIPFA recommends that
each authority audit committee should include at least two co-opted independent members to provide
appropriate technical expertise.

Engagement and outputs

The audit committee should be established and supported to enable it to address the full range of
responsibilities within its terms of reference and to generate planned outputs.

To discharge its responsibilities effectively, the committee should:

e meet regularly, at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to be considered in
private and those to be considered in public

e be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with the head of internal audit

e include, as regular attendees, the chief finance officer(s), the chief executive, the head of internal audit
and the appointed external auditor; other attendees may include the monitoring officer and the head
of resources (where such a post exists). These officers should also be able to access the committee
members, or the chair, as required

e have the right to call on any other officers or agencies of the authority as required
e support transparency, reporting regularly on its work to those charged with governance

e report annually on how the committee has complied with the position statement, discharged its
responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The report should be available to the public.

CIPFA Position Statement 2022

35
Page 139



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

STRUCTURE AND INDEPENDENCE

Committee size

In other sectors, audit committees typically have fewer than six members. This is more difficult to
achieve in a local authority. CIPFA's recommendation is that authorities should strive to have no
more than eight members.

A committee of this size should allow sufficient breadth of experience but is small enough to allow
the training and development of a dedicated group.

The use of substitutes on the committee is not recommended. The most effective membership will
be based on knowledgeable and skilled members who are able to build on information gained at
previous meetings. For example, when reviewing progress on the external audit, the committee
member should have been sighted on the audit plan discussed at an earlier meeting.

Reporting lines

The audit committee is an advisory committee on behalf of those charged with governance. As
a result, the committee should report to the full council, fire authority or other local government
governing body. It is not appropriate to be a sub-committee of the cabinet, scrutiny or policy and
resources committee.

Dedicated focus

To ensure a focus on the core functions, the committee should not be combined with other
council committees such as scrutiny or standards or policy and resources. A combined committee
can result in the distinction between the functions of the committees becoming blurred. The

audit committee is non-political and should contain co-opted independent members. These
arrangements are different to those of scrutiny. While a standards committee is also non-political
and may contain lay members, its focus is different. An appropriate lay member for the audit
committee may not be suitable for the work of the standards committee and vice versa. More
details on the membership of the committee and role of the co-opted independent member are
available in Membership and effectiveness of the audit committee.

Decision-making powers and delegations

CIPFA does not recommend that the audit committee be delegated decision-making powers, as it
is advisory.

The committee should be able to make recommendations to other bodies for decisions — for
example, to a scrutiny committee for further scrutiny review, and to cabinet, policy and resources
or full council for decision. The committee can also make recommendations to the leadership team
and service managers — for example, in response to issues raised by auditors.

CIPFA is aware that some authorities do delegate decisions, such as the approval of the financial
statements. While the audit committee should lead on the detailed review of the statements,
ultimately the statements are the responsibility of all those charged with governance. This is the
equivalent of shareholders approving the annual report and accounts of a company.

Rights of access to documents and requesting attendance at committee

As a committee of the authority, the audit committee can request information relevant to its role
and agenda. It is good practice to agree on a protocol, so there is clarity for all parties. Generally,

36
Page 140



INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

authorities operate on a principle of openness and transparency, so there should not be a difficulty
in providing relevant information. At all times, the authority will need to have regard for maintaining
confidentiality of personal or commercially sensitive data in accordance with guidance.

There may be times when it is not considered timely to provide the information requested — for
example, where information is sensitive because of an investigation. In such cases, an adequate
explanation should be given and an indication of when information might be available. The chair in
particular needs to be briefed.

It is important for audit committee members to maintain an apolitical approach and a focus on
overall arrangements rather than individual cases. The committee is not an investigative forum.

It will be helpful to request the attendance of officers at the committee to support discussion of a
topic or to agree on the next steps. For example, if the committee wishes to review an internal audit
report that identified significant areas for improvement, then it would be appropriate for the lead
manager or director responsible for that service to attend the committee to discuss how they will
address the weaknesses.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

Supporting the audit committee

As a full committee of the authority, the committee will receive secretariat support. It will
also receive guidance on the proper conduct of the meeting under the authority’s constitution
and legislation.

The chair of the committee should take part in planning the agenda, helping to ensure that the
committee addresses its terms of reference.

Frequency of meetings

CIPFA recommends the committee should meet a minimum of four times per year. The number and
frequency of meetings should be determined by what is efficient and effective to cover the work of
the committee.

Some agenda items need to be considered at certain times of the year, such as the financial
statements and AGS. Other items will be more flexible and others determined by urgency. An
annual meetings planner can help to schedule core business throughout the year to achieve
adequate coverage and a balance of activity.

Where an audit committee is addressing the full range of governance, risk, control and audit
functions, care should be taken in balancing the frequency of meetings against the need to give
the committee’s business sufficient focused attention, without lengthy and unproductive meetings.
Equally, the audit committee should review whether including each item on its agenda results in
added value and whether some time-consuming aspects of audit committee business could be
more effectively addressed elsewhere. In making these judgements, the audit committee should
operate at a resolutely strategic level. Take care to avoid straying into matters of operational detail
that service managers should resolve. The skilful chairing of meetings with well-planned agendas
should provide the final mechanism for avoiding this danger.

37
Page 141



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Transparency

Audit committees will normally meet in public, and agendas and minutes will be published. On
occasion, there will be agenda items that meet the criteria to be heard in private. The chair should
receive advice when a ‘part 2’ report is scheduled. The rationale for this should be stated.

Some authorities provide facilities for public questions at the start of a meeting. This supports
openness and transparency but requires committee support to ensure questions are relevant for
the scope of the committee.

Meetings and interaction outside scheduled meetings

The committee may meet informally as required to fulfil other requirements — for example, to take
part in training or briefing or conduct a self-assessment.

It is typical for political group meetings to take place before a policy committee meeting; however,
the apolitical nature of the audit committee should make such meetings unnecessary.

It is likely that some information will be shared with committee members outside scheduled
meetings. There may be a need to keep committee members briefed on issues that are on the
agenda, and other matters may be too detailed for inclusion on the agenda. For example, internal
audit reports may be provided in full to committee members but may be included on the meeting
agenda only where there are significant risks to be discussed. Arrangements to provide the
members with an appropriate level of information and updates and a protocol for managing
information requests should be discussed and agreed.

Private meetings with the external auditor and head of internal audit

It is standard practice for the external auditors and head of internal audit to have direct access
to the audit committee. This helps to reinforce the independence of the auditors, helping them to
maintain their professional standards. It also reinforces the independence of the audit committee.
A private meeting provides a safe space for discussions and questions. Even if the auditor has no
concerns, the meeting provides additional assurance of that.

Suggested questions to ask at a meeting include the following:
e  Areyou free to determine the scope of internal audit without interference?
e Do you have the access to senior management that you need?

e Do you have any concerns about governance arrangements that you are not comfortable
sharing in front of management or in public?

e  Are there any emerging governance risks that the committee should be alert to?

The meeting could also be used to test out a question on the auditor, perhaps when the audit
committee member is not sure if it is an appropriate question to ask. The meeting thus provides a
safe space for committee members and enables the member to ask with confidence in the open
meeting. However, it is important that a private meeting is not used as a substitute for formal
committee meetings, as this would undermine openness and transparency. Like all aspects of the
committee’s work, a private meeting should be non-political.

As a minimum, there should be a facility for a private meeting once a year, but they should be
made available on request. The committee can meet separately with external audit and the head
of internal audit, but a joint meeting could also be an option. To support transparency, the chair
should report that a private meeting has taken place at the next audit committee meeting and
summarise the topics discussed.

38
Page 142



INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

If governance concerns are raised with the audit committee in a private meeting, the chair of the
audit committee should agree appropriate steps with the auditor. This would normally include
follow-up discussions with one or more of the statutory officers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

To be effective, an audit committee will need to engage with a wide range of officers.
Representatives of finance and internal audit will attend regularly and often are a source of support
to the committee, but other senior officers would normally be expected to attend. While it is for
each audit committee to determine who attends its meetings, the following examples show the
wide range of officers who can add value to audit committee meetings:

e  The chief executive and corporate directors for the AGS and other governance-related issues.
e  The monitoring officer for the AGS and ethical governance issues.

e  The risk management officer for discussions around risk management.

e  The head of counter fraud for agenda items on fraud risks and counter fraud activity.

e  Service senior managers for audit, risk or governance discussions on their service areas.

e  Scrutiny, ethics or standards committee representatives — it may be helpful to invite
representatives along to explain their work programme or recent reports.

Interactions with the head of internal audit will need to take account of the professional standards
(PSIAS), so that the correct oversight and reporting can be demonstrated.

ACCOUNTABILITY

To those charged with governance

The audit committee should be held to account regularly by those charged with governance — full
council or the equivalent body in another authority. Accountability should cover:

e whether the committee has fulfilled its agreed terms of reference
e  whether the committee has adopted recommended practice

e whether the development needs of committee members have been assessed and whether
committee members are accessing briefing and training opportunities

e whether the committee has assessed its own effectiveness or been the subject of a review
and the conclusions and actions from that review

e what impact the committee has on the improvement of governance, risk and control
arrangements within the authority.

The audit committee annual report

The committee should prepare an annual report that provides assurance to all those charged with
governance that it fulfils its purpose and can demonstrate its impact. This is a key output of the
committee. The report should be publicly available, supporting the authority’s accountability to
wider stakeholders, including the public.

39
Page 143



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Suggested content for the report is set out below.

Alignment of the committee to recommended practice

e The report should briefly outline the extent to which it follows the CIPFA Position Statement in the
following areas:

— The size of the committee.
—  Structure and composition, including the number of independent members.
— Reporting line and independence from other committees.
—  Whether its terms of reference include all the core functions of the committee.
e Results of the committee’s annual evaluation of its effectiveness and assurance over key indicators
should be reported. There should be disclosure over areas where the committee has concerns (which

could link to the action plan in the AGS) and a statement of what the audit committee has done to
escalate their concerns or make recommendations.

e The report should summarise how it has fulfilled its terms of reference and the key issues escalated to
the leadership team or other committees during the year.

e The report should summarise the development work that will support the committee members,
eg training.

The annual report should be timed to support the annual review of governance and preparation of
the AGS. This enables the committee to take stock of the assurances it has received and the extent
to which its own performance has contributed to governance arrangements.

The committee should consider how it can improve understanding of its work and raise its profile
among other elected members. By improving understanding and engagement, the influence of the
committee is likely to grow. CIPFA has produced a set of frequently asked questions about the
work of the committee that helps communicate its role and the value it brings.

Supporting accountability to the public and stakeholders

The committee has a key role in reviewing the accountability reports of the authority and in helping
the authority to discharge its responsibilities. Committee meetings will normally be held in public,
except for exempt items, so this also contributes to the accountability of the authority to the public
and stakeholders. The audit committee’s own annual report will also support accountability to
external stakeholders.

A wider group of stakeholders such as partner organisations may have an interest in the
committee’s work, although there is no direct accountability relationship between them. Holding
open meetings and publishing agendas and minutes will support wider communication and
transparency.

Supporting internal accountabilities

Through a review of internal and external audit reports, risk management information and other
key strategies, the audit committee will hold to account those responsible for implementing
recommendations and action plans. In addition, by overseeing the evaluation and improvement
of governance, risk management and control, the audit committee helps those responsible for
governance to ensure that accountability throughout the authority works well.

The audit committee is most effective in supporting internal accountability when it discusses
governance, risk or control issues with the responsible managers directly.

40
Page 144


https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees

Membership and
effectiveness of the audit
committee

Choosing elected members for the committee and appointing additional co-opted independent
members is an important step in ensuring the committee can carry out its work effectively. This
section examines the characteristics needed by members and practical issues. It also considers the
importance of evaluating the effectiveness of the committee.

Audit committee membership

To provide the level of expertise and understanding required of the committee, and to have an appropriate
level of influence within the authority, the members of the committee will need to be of high calibre. When
selecting elected representatives to be on the committee or when co-opting independent members,
aptitude should be considered alongside relevant knowledge, skills and experience.

Characteristics of audit committee membership:

e A membership that is trained to fulfil their role so that members are objective, have an inquiring and
independent approach, and are knowledgeable.

e A membership that promotes good governance principles, identifying ways that better governance
arrangement can help achieve the organisation’s objectives.

e A strong, independently minded chair, displaying a depth of knowledge, skills, and interest. There are
many personal skills needed to be an effective chair, but key to these are:

— promoting apolitical open discussion
— managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach from all participants
— maintaining the focus of the committee on matters of greatest priority.

e Willingness to operate in an apolitical manner.

e Unbiased attitudes — treating auditors, the executive and management fairly.

e The ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required.

e Knowledge, expertise and interest in the work of the committee.

While expertise in the areas within the remit of the committee is very helpful, the attitude of committee
members and willingness to have appropriate training are of equal importance.

The appointment of co-opted independent members on the committee should consider the overall
knowledge and expertise of the existing members.

Impact

As a non-executive body, the influence of the audit committee depends not only on the effective
performance of its role, but also on its engagement with the leadership team and those charged with
governance.

The committee should evaluate its impact and identify areas for improvement.

CIPFA Position Statement 2022

41
Page 145



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Elected representatives and political balance

Elected members of local authorities are part of the body charged with governance. Elected
members bring knowledge of the organisation, its objectives and policies to the audit committee.
Members with experience in scrutiny or standards offer additional knowledge of activity, risks and
challenges affecting those areas.

Ideally, the selection of elected members to the audit committee will take account of aptitude and
experience. In practice, most authorities have appointed members according to rules on political
balance, even though the committee should be non-political. As long as the committee remains
an advisory body and not decision making, then full council can waive the political balance
requirement. Potentially, this could increase flexibility in the selection of suitable members.

Separation from executive roles

The leader of the cabinet, administration, chair of the policy and resources committee or the elected
mayor must not be a member of the audit committee. Care should also be taken where councillors
in senior policy-making roles are considered for membership. Where an authority has a cabinet
system of governance, including a member of cabinet on the committee is discouraged. If the
council has a policy and resources committee, members of this committee should also not sit on
the audit committee. In addition, chairs of other policy committees should not be members. This

will allow members of the audit committee greater independence in their role and assist in a non-
political approach.

If an executive member is included, other compensating arrangements should be made to ensure
independence — for example, where there is a majority of independent members or an independent
chair of the committee. An executive member should not chair the audit committee.

CIPFA recommends that a period of two years should elapse before a councillor who previously
held a senior policy role joins the audit committee.

An overlap with other committee roles such as scrutiny or standards is not necessarily a problem. It
can add value by bringing knowledge of activity in these areas into the committee. Those who are
members of other committees should take care to not blur their roles.

It is important that there is engagement between those deciding policy matters and the audit
committee. This will support audit committee members in staying up to date and help policy
makers understand recommendations made by the committee. Examples of engagement could
include the members of the executive attending the committee to brief them on the actions they
are taking, or the chair of the audit committee attending cabinet or policy and resources to explain
audit committee recommendations.

Including co-opted independent members (also known as lay members)

A co-opted independent or lay member is a committee member who is not an elected
representative but recruited to join the committee. The objective of including such members is to
increase the knowledge and experience base of the committee, reinforcing its independence.

Inclusion of lay members is a legislative requirement for authorities in Wales and for combined
authorities in England.

Where there is no requirement to, CIPFA recommends the committee includes two co-opted
independent members.

42
Page 146



MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The reasons for CIPFA’'s recommendation are as follows:

e To supplement the knowledge and experience of elected representatives in specific areas,
such as audit or financial reporting.

e To provide continuity outside the political cycle. This is of particular importance where
membership of the committee changes annually or because of elections.

e To help achieve a non-political focus on governance, risk and control matters.

e  Having two co-opted members rather than one will allow recruitment of members with
different but complementary knowledge and experience, increase the resilience and continuity
of the committee.

e Having two co-opted members shows a commitment to supporting and investing in the
committee.

While including co-opted members can bring real value to the committee, care is needed to ensure
that the arrangement works well, both for the co-opted member and for the other committee
members. It is essential that the co-opted member receives an adequate induction and ongoing
support to provide organisational context and to build working relationships.

The role of the co-opted independent member

The role description for a co-opted member of the committee will be the same as for an elected
representative who is a committee member. The only substantial difference will be where the
committee has been delegated decision-making responsibilities — although such delegations are
not advised by CIPFA — a co-opted member cannot vote on council policy, so will not be able to
take part in the decision, though they can, of course, contribute to the discussions prior to the
formal decision. The minutes of the meeting should distinguish between a delegated committee
decision and a recommendation from the committee to another council body. The latter is part of
the role of an advisory committee and the co-opted member should be able to take part fully.

Guiding the audit committee contains additional resources to support the planning for and
recruitment of independent members.

Remuneration

It is usual practice to provide some form of payment to the lay committee members and to pay
expenses for attending meetings. The allowance recognises the value and time contributed by

the member. If an independent member is appointed as the committee chair, an additional sum
would be appropriate. Elected members of the committee will be paid allowances and expenses in
accordance with the authority’s agreed arrangements.

Appointment of the chair

In Wales, a lay member will be recruited specifically to the position of chair, and in other parts of
the UK, some authorities have decided on a co-opted independent member for the role. This allows
the authority to specify the requirements of the chair during recruitment. In other authorities, the
appointment of the committee chair will be decided according to the constitution of the authority.
In all cases, it is recommended that the characteristics of an effective chair are considered.

These include:

e an ability to plan the work of the committee over the year and beyond

e  meeting management skills

43
Page 147



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

e an ability to bring an objective, apolitical attitude and help ensure the apolitical nature of the
committee

e  core knowledge and skills required of audit committee members

. a clear focus on the role of the committee and ambition to lead the committee in line with
good governance principles

e afocus on improvement and securing agreement on actions.

The tenure of the audit committee chair remains a matter for the authority. When making
this decision, it should be recognised that a period of continuity can be helpful, particularly for
the development of greater knowledge and expertise, while rotation also helps to deliver a
new perspective.

Knowledge and experience

There is a range of knowledge and experience that audit committee members can bring to the
committee that will enable it to perform effectively. No one committee member would be expected
to be a specialist in all areas, but there are some core areas of knowledge that committee members
will need to acquire.

Appendix C sets out a knowledge and skills framework for audit committee members and the
committee chair. This can guide members on their training needs and support the evaluation of
the overall knowledge and skills of the committee. It can also be used when recruiting independent
members. It distinguishes between core areas of knowledge that all audit committee members
should seek to acquire and a range of specialisms that can add value to the committee.

The audit committee should review risks, controls and assurances that cover the entire
operation of the authority, so knowledge of specific service areas will be helpful. Other areas of
specialist knowledge and experience — for example, in accountancy, audit, governance and risk
management — will add value to the committee.

Training and development

Audit committees should have access to support to guide them in their roles, help them to
understand the key agenda items, and to keep them informed of new developments. Guiding the
audit committee includes a suggested training and support programme.

New co-opted members may have technical knowledge and experience, but they will still need

to understand the local government context with which they may not be familiar. Support should
also be provided to help integrate them into the committee and familiarise them with the council’s
structure and processes.

Audit committee members should review their knowledge and skills — for example, as part of an
annual self-assessment process or training needs analysis. As well as shaping the training plan,
evidence of the assessment and delivery of training will support the profile of the committee — for
example, by including it in the annual report.

DEVELOPING EFFECTIVENESS

An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it makes to and beneficial
impact it has on the authority’s business. Since it is primarily an advisory body, it can be more
difficult to identify how the audit committee has made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness will
usually be characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’. A good standard of performance
against recommended practice, together with a knowledgeable and experienced membership, are

44
Page 148



MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

essential requirements for delivering effectiveness. The CIPFA Position Statement recommends the
committee’s annual report should include the results of a performance assessment.

Assessing the effectiveness of the committee should consider the following:

e  An assessment of whether the committee is operating in accordance with the practices
recommended in this guidance and complies with legislation (where appropriate).

e  How the committee has fulfilled its terms of reference, including the core functions of the
committee.

e  The operation of the committee, including the support and training provided and how
members have developed their knowledge and experience.

e  The committee’s effectiveness in terms of impact on the quality of governance, risk
management and internal control, together with satisfactory audit arrangements.

e  Feedback from those interacting with the committee.

Feedback to committee members

It is normal practice in other sectors for the chair of the audit committee to provide feedback

to individual members. In the political environment of an authority, this is more difficult to do.
Consideration should be given to facilitating general feedback as part of a wider committee self-
assessment. Suggested areas for discussion include:

. attendance

participation in discussions and questioning

any training needs

suggestions for how the committee could develop.

Appendices to support evaluation

CIPFA has developed some improvement tools for the committee to use to inform its evaluation.
These are available in Appendices E and F.

The audit committee should report on its effectiveness in its annual report, and the annual
report should be timed to support the AGS. More information on the annual report is available in
Independence and accountability.

Problem solving

Where the committee is experiencing difficulties, the improvement tools may help to identify those
areas that need change. For a newly constituted committee, or one with several new members, it
can take time to build up effective operations. This is one reason why a comprehensive programme
of training and support is needed.

Other difficulties can arise if there is a poor understanding of the role and purpose of the committee
among others or if there is insufficient engagement.

Appendix D includes a summary of the difficulties that audit committees sometimes experience and
suggestions for addressing them.

45
Page 149



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

46
Page 150



APPENDIX A

Sector and devolved
government guidance

PART 1: COMPARISON OF SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS
AND GUIDANCE ON KEY AREAS RELATING TO AUDIT COMMITTEES

Guidance area

Specific
legislation
or statutory
guidance

Establishment
of an audit
committee

Composition
of the audit
committee

England
(combined authorities)

Cities and Local
Government Devolution

Wales
(local authorities
and corporate joint

committees)

Local Government

England and
Wales Police

England,
Northern
Ireland and
Scotland
(local
authorities)

Financial Management Not applicable

(Wales) Measure 2011

Code of Practice for

Act 2016.

Combined Authorities
(Overview and Scrutiny
Committees, Access to
Information and Audit

as amended by the
Local Government

the Police Forces of
England and Wales

(Democracy) (Wales) Act

(FMCP) (Home Office,

2013.

Local Government and

Committees) Order 2017.

Elections (Wales) Act

Required

Committees must have
at least one independent
person as defined

by guidance.

The committee should
reflect the political
balance of the constituent
authorities as far as is
reasonably practical.

The committee may not
include an officer of the
combined authority or a
constituent council.

2021.

Required

The committee must have
lay persons comprise one-
third of its members.

The member appointed as
the committee chair must
be a lay person.

The deputy chair must
not be a member of the
executive or an assistant
to its executive.

The committee must be
politically balanced.

47
Page 151

2018).

Required No guidance

It is recommended
that this should be a
combined body for
both PCC and chief
constable.

Police audit committees No guidance
should comprise

between three and

five members who are

independent of the PCC

and the force.


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/4/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/4/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/4/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Guidance area England Wales England and England,
(combined authorities) (local authorities Wales Police Northern
and corporate joint Ireland and

committees) Scotland
(local
authorities)

Specified Review and scrutinise the  Review and scrutinise Consider the internal No guidance
functions authority’s financial affairs.  the authority’s financial and external audit
of the audit Review and assess affairs. reports of both the PCC
committee the authority’s risk Make reports and and the chief constable.
management, internal recommendations in Advise the PCC and
control and corporate relation to the authority’s  the chief constable
governance arrangements.  financial affairs. according to good
Review and assess the Review and assess the governance principles
economy, efficiency and risk management, internal @nd adopt appropriate
effectiveness with which control, performance risk management
resources have been assessment and arrangements in
used in discharging the corporate governance accordance with proper
authority’s functions. arrangements of the practices.
Make reports and authority.
recommendations to the Make reports and
combined authority. recommendations to the

authority on the adequacy
and effectiveness of those
arrangements.

Review and assess
the authority’'s ability
to handle complaints
effectively.

Make reports and
recommendations on
the authority’s ability
to handle complaints
effectively.

Oversee the authority’s
internal and external audit
arrangements.

Review the financial
statements prepared by
the authority.

Responsibilities No guidance Oversee external audit Review external audit ~ No guidance
of the audit arrangements. reports.
committee

in relation to
external audit

48
Page 152



APPENDIX A\ SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE

PART 2: GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE BY SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT ON
MATTERS THAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

Accounts and audit regulations are statutory instruments issued by the UK or devolved
governments. The various regulations impose requirements on ‘relevant bodies’ — eg a local
authority, fire and rescue authority or police body — in relation to governance, internal control,
financial reporting and internal audit.

The accounts and audit regulations do not specify that these requirements must be met by an audit
committee. However, where it is the audit committee of a relevant body that undertakes or reviews
the specified task, the audit committee must meet the requirements of the regulations and take
them into account in agreeing their terms of reference.

The following is a link for each sector and/or region and the sets of regulations affecting them,
highlighting key regulations. The regulations are subject to periodic updates by the appropriate
government body, and audit committee members should be made aware of any changes by
their organisation.

Local authorities in England (including combined authorities and fire and rescue authorities)

Relevant government guidance Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015

Local authorities in Wales

Relevant government guidance Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014
and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2018

Local authorities in Scotland

Relevant government guidance Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014

Local authorities in Northern Ireland

Relevant government guidance Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2015

Police in England

Relevant government guidance Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (see also
the statutory guidance Financial Management Code of
Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (FMCP)
(Home Office, 2018))

Police in Wales

Relevant government guidance Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014 and the
Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations
2018 (see also the FMCP)

Financial reporting deadlines

Amendments affecting the timetables for financial and governance reporting have been introduced
to allow for difficulties caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, and in England, difficulties with local
audit. Committee members are advised to check the latest positions.

49
Page 153


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2014/200/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2015/106/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2015/106/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

50
Page 154



APPENDIX B1
Suggested terms of
reference - local authority

INTRODUCTION

This appendix contains suggested terms of reference for local authorities.

In developing the terms of reference for an organisation, care should be taken to ensure that the
specific regulations appropriate for the authority are taken into account. Appendix A sets out these
requirements. Additional functions should be included where required.

Where the terms of reference refer to internal audit, regard should be had for how the internal audit
charter has allocated responsibilities to the committee. The audit committee’s terms of reference
and the audit charter should align.

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE - LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Governance

The terms of reference should set out the committee’s position in the governance structure of
the authority.

Statement of purpose

The committee’s purpose is to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of
governance, risk and control arrangements. Its role in ensuring there is sufficient assurance over
governance, risk and control gives greater confidence to all those charged with governance [or

insert appropriate governing body] that those arrangements are effective.

The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit, together with the financial and
governance reports, helping to ensure there are adequate arrangements in place for both internal
challenge and public accountability.

Governance, risk and control

e Toreview the council's corporate governance arrangements against the good governance
framework, including the ethical framework, and consider the local code of governance.

e  To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the council.
e  To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the committee.

e To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation of
agreed actions.

51
Page 155



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

To consider reports on the effectiveness of financial management arrangements, including
compliance with CIPFA’s Financial Management Code.

To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review assurances and
assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council from fraud and
corruption.

To monitor the counter fraud strategy, actions and resources.

To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant partnerships or
collaborations.

Financial and governance reporting

Governance reporting

To review the AGS prior to approval and consider whether it properly reflects the risk
environment and supporting assurances, including the head of internal audit’s annual opinion.

To consider whether the annual evaluation for the AGS fairly concludes that governance
arrangements are fit for purpose, supporting the achievement of the authority’s objectives.

Financial reporting

To monitor the arrangements and preparations for financial reporting to ensure that statutory
requirements and professional standards can be met.

To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate
accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the
financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.

To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues arising
from the audit of the accounts.

Arrangements for audit and assurance

To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately addresses the risks
and priorities of the council.

External audit

To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the external auditor’s
annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by PSAA or the
authority’s auditor panel as appropriate.

To consider the external auditor’'s annual letter, relevant reports and the report to those
charged with governance.

To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value
for money.

To consider additional commissions of work from external audit.

52
Page 156


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code

APPENDIX B1\ SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE - LOCAL AUTHORITY

To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and internal
audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.

To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the auditors, including
the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee.

Internal audit

To approve the internal audit charter.

To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers of internal audit
services and to make recommendations.

To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource requirements,
the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work required to place reliance
upon those other sources.

To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and resource
requirements.

To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to
determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

To consider any impairments to the independence or objectivity of the head of internal audit
arising from additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing and to approve and
periodically review safeguards to limit such impairments.

To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’'s performance during
the year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit services. These will
include:

—  updates on the work of internal audit, including key findings, issues of concern and action
in hand as a result of internal audit work

—  regular reports on the results of the QAIP

—  reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the PSIAS and
LGAN, considering whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it must be
included in the AGS.

To consider the head of internal audit's annual report, including:

—  the statement of the level of conformance with the PSIAS and LGAN and the results of
the QAIP that support the statement (these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions
of internal audit)

—  the opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council's framework of
governance, risk management and control, together with the summary of the work
supporting the opinion (these will assist the committee in reviewing the AGS).

To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.

To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has concluded
that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the authority or
there are concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed actions.

To contribute to the QAIP and in particular to the external quality assessment of internal audit
that takes place at least once every five years.

To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the AGS where required
to do so by the accounts and audit regulations (see Appendix A).

53
Page 157



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the head of internal
audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee.

Accountability arrangements

To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, conclusions and
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk
management and internal control frameworks, financial reporting arrangements and internal
and external audit functions.

To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in relation to the
terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in meeting its purpose.

To publish an annual report on the work of the committee, including a conclusion on the
compliance with the CIPFA Position Statement.

54
Page 158


https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees

APPENDIX B2
Suggested terms of
reference — police

INTRODUCTION

This appendix contains suggested terms of reference for the audit committee of the PCC and chief
constable. The police audit committee must ensure that its terms of reference are in accordance
with the FMCP (Home Office, 2018) and remain an advisory body.

In developing the terms of reference for an organisation, care should be taken to ensure that the
specific regulations appropriate for the authority are taken into account. Appendix A sets out these
requirements. Additional functions should be included where required.

Where the terms of reference refer to internal audit, regard should be had for how the internal audit
charter has allocated responsibilities to the committee. The audit committee’s terms of reference
and the audit charter should align.

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE - AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE PCC AND
CHIEF CONSTABLE

Governance

The terms of reference should set out the committee’s position as an advisory committee to support
the PCC and chief constable.

Statement of purpose

The committee’s purpose is to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of
governance, risk and control arrangements. Its role in ensuring there is sufficient assurance over
governance risk and control gives greater confidence to the PCC and chief constable that those
arrangements are effective.

The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit, together with the financial and
governance reports, helping to ensure there are adequate arrangements in place for both internal
challenge and public accountability.

Governance, risk and control

. To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good governance
framework, including the ethical framework, and consider the local code of governance.

e  To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the OPCC
and force.

55
Page 159



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the committee.

To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation of
agreed actions.

To consider reports on the effectiveness of financial management arrangements, including
compliance with CIPFA’s Financial Management Code.

To consider the OPCC'’s and force's arrangements to secure value for money and review
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the OPCC and force from fraud
and corruption.

To monitor the counter fraud strategy, actions and resources.

To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant partnerships or
collaborations.

Financial and governance reporting

Governance reporting

To review the AGS prior to approval by the PCC and chief constable and consider whether
it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, including the head of
internal audit’'s annual opinion.

To consider whether the annual evaluation for the AGS fairly concludes that governance
arrangements are fit for purpose, supporting the achievement of the OPCC's and
force’s objectives.

Financial reporting

To monitor the arrangements and preparations for financial reporting to ensure that statutory
requirements and professional standards can be met.

To review the annual statements of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate
accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the
financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.

To consider the external auditor’s reports to the PCC and the chief constable on issues arising
from the audit of the accounts.

Arrangements for audit and assurance
To consider the OPCC'’s and force’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately
addresses their risks and priorities.

External audit

To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the external auditor’s
annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by PSAA or the
auditor panel as appropriate.

To consider the external auditor’'s annual letter, relevant reports and the report to those
charged with governance.

To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

56
Page 160


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code

APPENDIX B2 \ SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE - POLICE

e  To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for
money.

. To advise on commissions of additional work from external audit.

e To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and internal
audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.

e To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the auditors, including
the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee.

Internal audit
e  Torecommend for approval the internal audit charter.

e Toreview proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers of internal audit
services and to make recommendations.

e Toreview the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource requirements,
the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work required to place reliance
upon those other sources.

e To consider significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and resource
requirements.

e  To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to
determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

e To consider any impairments to the independence or objectivity of the head of internal audit
arising from additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing and to recommend
and periodically review safeguards to limit such impairments.

e  To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit's performance during
the year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit services. These
will include:

—  updates on the work of internal audit, including key findings, issues of concern and action
in hand as a result of internal audit work

—  regular reports on the results of the QAIP

—  reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the PSIAS and
LGAN, considering whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it must be
included in the AGS.

e To consider the head of internal audit's annual report, including:

—  the statement of the level of conformance with the PSIAS and LGAN and the results of
the QAIP that support the statement (these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions
of internal audit)

—  the opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s framework of
governance, risk management and control, together with the summary of the work
supporting the opinion (these will assist the committee in reviewing the AGS).

e  To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.

e To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has concluded
that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the OPCC or force,
or where there are concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed actions.

57
Page 161



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

To contribute to the QAIP and in particular to the external quality assessment of internal audit
that takes place at least once every five years.

To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the AGS where required
to do so by the accounts and audit regulations (see Appendix A).

To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the head of internal
audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee.

Accountability arrangements

To report to the PCC and chief constable on the committee’s findings, conclusions and
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk
management and internal control frameworks, financial reporting arrangements and internal
and external audit functions.

To report to the PCC and chief constable on a regular basis on the committee’s performance
in relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in meeting
its purpose.

To publish an annual report on the work of the committee, including a conclusion on the

compliance with the CIPFA Position Statement.

58
Page 162



APPENDIX C

Audit committee members -
knowledge and skills
framework

CORE AREAS OF KNOWLEDGE

Knowledge

Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is able to apply

area

Organisational
knowledge

Audit committee
role and
functions

Governance

An overview of the authority’s
governance structures and decision-
making processes.

Knowledge of the organisational
objectives and major functions of the
authority.

An understanding of the audit
committee’s role and place within the
governance structures.

Familiarity with the committee’s
terms of reference and accountability
arrangements.

Knowledge of the purpose and role of
the audit committee.

Knowledge of the seven principles
as outlined in Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government:
Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016).

The requirements of the AGS.

How the principles of governance are
implemented locally as set out in the
local code of governance.

the knowledge

This knowledge will be core to most of the audit
committee’s activities, including the AGS review,
internal and external audit reports and risk
registers.

This knowledge will enable the audit committee
to prioritise its work to ensure it discharges its
responsibilities under its terms of reference and to
avoid overlapping the work of others.

It will help the committee undertake a self-
assessment and prepare its annual report.

The committee will review the local code of
governance and consider how governance
arrangements align to the principles in

the Framework.

The committee will plan the assurances it is to
receive to adequately support the AGS.

The committee will review the AGS and consider
how the authority is meeting the principles of good
governance.

The committee will receive audit reports and
information on risks relating to governance.

59
Page 163


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Knowledge Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is able to apply
area the knowledge
Internal audit e An awareness of the key principles e The audit committee has oversight of the internal
of the PSIAS and the LGAN. audit function and will monitor its adherence to
e Knowledge of the arrangements for professional internal audit standards.
delivery of the internal audit service e The audit committee will review the assurances
in the authority and the charter. from internal audit work and will review the risk-
o How the role of the head of internal based audit plan.
audit is fulfilled. e The committee will also receive the annual
e Details of the most recent report, including an opinion and information on
external assessment and level of conformance with professional standards.
conformance with the standards. e Inrelying on the work of internal audit, the
e Internal audit's strategy, plan and committee will need to be confident that
most recent annual opinion. professional standards are being followed.

e The audit committee chair is likely to be interviewed
as part of the external quality assessment, and
the committee will receive the outcome of the
assessment and action plan.

Financial e Awareness of the financial e Reviewing the financial statements prior to
management statements that a local authority publication, asking questions.
and financial must produce and the principles it e Receiving the external audit report and opinion on
reporting must follow to produce them. the financial audit.
 Anunderstanding of good financial ¢ Reviewing both external and internal audit
management practice as set outin recommendations relating to financial management
the CIPFA Financial Management and controls.

Code (FM Code) and the level of

’ T The audit committee should consider compliance
compliance with it.

with the FM Code and the role of the CFO and how

 Knowledge of how the organisation this is met when reviewing the AGS.
meets the requirements of the role of

the CFO as required by The Role of
the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (CIPFA, 2016) and m
Role of CFOs in Policing (2021).

e An overview of the principal financial
risks the authority faces.

External audit

Knowledge of the role and functions e The audit committee will meet with the external

of the external auditor and who auditor regularly and receive their reports and
currently undertakes this role. opinions.

e Knowledge of the key reports and e Monitoring external audit recommendations and
assurances that external audit will maximising the benefit from the audit process.
provide. ¢ The audit committee should monitor the relationship

e Familiarity with the auditor’s most between the external auditor and the authority and
recent plan and the opinion reports. support the delivery of an effective service.

e Knowledge about arrangements
for the appointment of auditors and
quality management undertaken.

60
Page 164


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-cfos-in-policing
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-cfos-in-policing

APPENDIX C\ AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS - KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Knowledge Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is able to apply

area the knowledge

Risk e Understanding of the principles of e Inreviewing the AGS, the committee will consider
management risk management, including how the robustness of the authority’s risk management
it supports good governance and arrangements.
decision making. e Awareness of the major risks the authority faces
¢ Knowledge of the risk management is necessary to support the review of several audit
policy and strategy of the committee agenda items, including the risk-based
organisation. internal audit plan, external audit plans and the
e Understanding of risk governance explanatory foreword of the accounts. Typically, risk
arrangements, including the role of registers will be used to inform the committee.
members and of the audit committee. e The committee should also review reports and
e Knowledge of the current risk action plans to develop the application of risk
maturity of the organisation and any management practice.

key areas of improvement.

Counter fraud e Anunderstanding of the main areas e Knowledge of fraud risks and good fraud risk

of fraud and corruption risk that the management practice will be helpful when the
organisation is exposed to. committee reviews the organisation’s fraud strategy

o Knowledge of the principles of and receives reports on the effectiveness of that
good fraud risk management strategy.
practice in accordance with the e An assessment of arrangements should support
Code of Practice on Managing the AGS, and knowledge of good fraud risk
the Risk of Fraud and Corruption management practice will support the audit
(CIPFA, 2014). committee member in reviewing that assessment.

e Knowledge of the organisation’s
arrangements for tackling fraud.

Values of good The audit committee member will draw on this

Knowledge of the Seven Principles of

governance Public Life. knowledge when reviewing governance issues and
e Knowledge of the authority’s key the AGS.
arrangements to uphold ethical e Oversight of the effectiveness of whistleblowing
standards for both members and staff will be considered as part of the AGS. The audit
(eg code of conduct). committee member should know to whom concerns
e Knowledge of the whistleblowing should be reported.

arrangements in the authority.

Treasury o Effective Scrutiny of Treasury e Core knowledge on treasury management is
management Management is an assessment tool essential for the committee undertaking the role of
(only if it is within for reviewing the arrangements for scrutiny.

the terms of undertaking scrutiny of treasury

reference of the management. The key knowledge

committee to areas identified are:

provide scrutiny) - regulatory requirements

— treasury risks

— the organisation’s treasury
management strategy

— the organisation’s policies and
procedures in relation to treasury
management.

See also Treasure your assets (Centre
for Governance and Scrutiny, 2017).

61
Page 165


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/assessment-of-effective-scrutiny
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/assessment-of-effective-scrutiny
https://cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/CfPS-Treasure-Your-Assets-WEB.pdf

AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

SPECIALIST KNOWLEDGE THAT ADDS VALUE TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

More specialist knowledge will add value to the committee, helping to ensure the committee is
able to achieve a greater depth of understanding. Including members with specialist knowledge
means there is an additional resource to support other members. Specialist knowledge may be
demonstrated by professional qualification and prior work experience.

When reviewing the overall knowledge of audit committee members or when planning the
appointment of co-opted independent members, it is helpful to look for opportunities to include the
following specialisms:

e  Accountancy, with experience of financial reporting

e Internal auditing

e  Risk management

e  Governance and legal

e  Expert service knowledge relevant for the organisation

. IT systems and security

62
Page 166



APPENDIX C\ AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS - KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

CORE SKILLS

As well as technical knowledge, the following skills will enhance an audit committee member's

aptitude to be on the committee.

Skills Key elements

How the audit committee member is able

to apply the skill

Strategic thinking ~ Able to focus on material

and understanding issues and the overall position

of materiality rather than being side tracked
by detail.

Questioning and Able to frame questions that

constructive draw out relevant facts and

challenge explanations, challenging
performance and seeking
explanations while avoiding
hostility or grandstanding.

Focus on Ensuring there is a clear plan
improvement of action and allocation of
responsibility.

Able to balance Able to understand the

practicality against practical implications

theory of recommendations to
understand how they might
work in practice.

Clear Support the use of plain English
communication in communications, avoiding
skills and focus on  jargon, acronyms, etc.

the needs of users

Objectivity Evaluate information based on
evidence presented, avoiding
bias or subjectivity.

Meeting Chair the meetings effectively:

management skills  summarise issues raised, ensure
all participants can contribute,
and focus on the outcome and
actions from the meeting.

When reviewing audit reports, findings will include areas of
higher risk or materiality to the organisation but may also
highlight more minor errors or control failures. The audit
committee member will need to pitch their review at an
appropriate level to avoid spending too much time on detail.

The audit committee will review reports and
recommendations to address weaknesses in internal control.
The audit committee member will seek to understand the
reasons for weaknesses and ensure a solution is found.

The audit committee’s outcome will be to secure
improvements to the governance, risk management or
control of the organisation, including clearly defined actions
and responsibilities. Where errors or control failures have
occurred, the audit committee should seek assurances that
appropriate action has been taken.

The audit committee should seek assurances that planned
actions are practical and realistic.

The audit committee will seek to ensure that external
documents such as the AGS and the narrative report in the
accounts are well written for a non-expert audience.

The audit committee will receive assurance reports and
review risk registers. There may be differences of opinion
about the significance of risk and the appropriate control
responses, and the committee member will need to weigh up
differing views.

These skills are essential for the audit committee chair to help
ensure that meetings stay on track and address the items on
the agenda. The skills are desirable for all other members.

63
Page 167



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

64
Page 168



APPENDIX D

Problem-solving difficulties
with the audit committee

It is not uncommon for audit committees to face difficulties or barriers in fulfilling their potential
effectiveness. Some of these may be common issues that audit committees in any sector may face;
others may be unique to the local authority or police setting. The following assessment may be of
value in helping audit committee members or those supporting the committee to recognise and

address the challenges.

Areas of difficulty

Lack of experience and
continuity of knowledge among
audit committee members.

Audit committee members
do not feel confident in their
knowledge of particular areas.

Independent members lack
knowledge of the organisation
and lack connections with key
managers.

Poor management of audit
committee meetings means that
work is unfocused or fails to
reach a clear conclusion.

The audit committee spends
too much time on minor
details rather than underlying
arrangements of governance,
risk and control.

Possible causes

Where turnover of membership
is very frequent, it will be difficult
for the committee to build up
experience.

Lack of training and support.

Poor induction.

Limited opportunities to engage
with the organisation outside of
formal meetings.

Lack of experience or skill in
managing meetings by the chair.
Committee members are unsure
about their role.

Poor support from the
committee secretary.

Agenda management fails to
prioritise key areas.

The chair does not intervene
to keep the focus at an
appropriate level.

65
Page 169

Possible improvement options

Enhanced level of support and training
to members will be required. To
enhance continuity, the authority should
consider recruitment of independent
members.

Enhanced level of support and training
to members.

Improve induction.

Identify appropriate meetings,
briefings or other opportunities that
independent members could attend to
help develop better understanding.

Training and support.

Develop a mentoring/coaching
programme.

Chair seeks feedback from meeting
participants.

Consider skills and experience in the
selection of the chair.

Provide training and guidance to
committee members on their role.

Improve committee support.

Review the process of agenda
development.

Review the terms of reference and
provide training.

The chair seeks feedback from meeting
participants.

Provide the chair with committee
management training.



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Areas of difficulty

Possible causes

Possible improvement options

The committee lacks focus,
and members struggle to gain
an overall understanding of
their remit.

Senior officers do not
understand the work of the
committee and are not sighted
on its output.

Elected representatives

not directly involved with

the committee have little
understanding of its work and
do not see its output.

Recommendations made by
the audit committee are not
actioned.

The audit committee fails to
make recommendations or
follow up on issues of concern.

The audit committee strays
beyond its terms of reference
— for example, undertaking a
scrutiny role.

Committee members have a
range of objectives rather than
focusing on governance, risk,
control and audit matters.

The committee is too large or
lacks continuity because of regular
attendance by substitutes.

Infrequent attendance by
senior officers.

The audit committee fails to
engage with other committees in
the authority.

Attendance is often limited
to the CFO and the head of
internal audit.

Committee recommendations
are not directed to appropriate
member bodies.

Reporting arrangements are
not effective.

Wider induction arrangements do
not cover the audit committee.

A poor relationship between the
committee and the executive or
senior officers.

The audit committee’s
recommendations are
not adequately aligned to
organisational objectives.

A weak or inexperienced chair.

Members are inexperienced or do
not fully understand their role.

Poor briefing arrangements prior
to meetings.

Committee reports fail to
adequately identify the action
required by the committee.

The terms of reference do not
adequately scope the work of
the committee.

Misunderstanding about the role
of the committee.

Inadequate guidance from the
committee secretary to the chair
on its role.

66
Page 170

Training and emphasis on the non-
political and strategic focus of the
committee.

Reform of the committee structure to
reduce membership and remove use of
substitutes.

Expand attendance at audit committee
meetings — for example, invite heads

of service when major risks or control
issues are being discussed — and

share the CIPFA guidance (FAQs) more
widely.

Invite newly elected members to
attend audit committee meetings.

Review reporting and accountability
arrangements.

Prepare an annual report that sets
out how the committee has fulfilled its
responsibilities.

Share the CIPFA guidance (FAQs).

A senior officer provides internal
facilitation to support improved
relationships.

Improve knowledge and skills among
audit committee members.

Ensure better engagement with
appropriate managers or the executive
at an earlier stage.

Provide guidance and support.

Improve briefing to the chair prior to
the meeting.

Ensure reports contain clear
recommendations.

Review the terms of reference and
provide training and guidance.



APPENDIX D \ PROBLEM-SOLVING DIFFICULTIES WITH THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Areas of difficulty Possible causes Possible improvement options

Political points of view interfere e A lack of understanding aboutthe e Seek feedback from those interacting

with the work of the audit role of the committee. with the committee or external
committee. e Difficulty separating the work of assessment.
the committee from the wider e Provide support or training for
politics of authority. the chair.

e Consider the role of independent
members.

Review the terms of reference and

A breakdown in the relationship e A lack of understanding about the

between committee members role of the committee. provide training and guidance.

and the executive, PCC or e Differing perceptions on the value e A senior officer provides internal

chief constable/deputy chief of the committee facilitation to support improved

constable, ortW|th senior « Personality clashes. relationships.

management. e Seek an external assessment or
facilitation.

e Change the chair or membership if the
constitution or opportunity arises.

67
Page 171



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

68
Page 172



APPENDIX E
Self-assessment of
ocood practice

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in

CIPFA’s Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has a high degree
of performance against the good practice principles, it is an indicator that the committee is
soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in
developing an effective audit committee.

A regular self-assessment should be used to support the planning of the audit committee work
programme and training plans. It will also inform the annual report.

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed* complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5
Audit committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit
committee that is not combined with other
functions (eg standards, ethics, scrutiny)?

2 Does the audit committee report directly to the
governing body (PCC and chief constable/full
council/full fire authority, etc)?

3 Has the committee maintained its advisory role
by not taking on any decision-making powers?

4 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the
purpose of the committee in accordance with
CIPFA's 2022 Position Statement?

5 Do all those charged with governance and in
leadership roles have a good understanding of
the role and purpose of the committee?

6 Does the audit committee escalate issues and
concerns promptly to those in governance and
leadership roles?

7 Does the governing body hold the audit
committee to account for its performance at
least annually?

* Where the committee does not fully comply with an element, three options are available to allow distinctions between
aspects that require significant improvement and those only requiring minor changes.

69
Page 173



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

8 Does the committee publish an annual report in
accordance with the 2022 guidance, including:

e compliance with the CIPFA Position
Statement 2022

e results of the annual evaluation,
development work undertaken and planned
improvements

e how it has fulfilled its terms of reference
and the key issues escalated in the year?

Functions of the committee

9 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly
address all the core areas identified in CIPFA’s
Position Statement as follows?

Governance arrangements
Risk management arrangements

Internal control arrangements, including:
e financial management

e value for money

e ethics and standards

e counter fraud and corruption

Annual governance statement
Financial reporting
Assurance framework
Internal audit
External audit
10 Over the last year, has adequate consideration

been given to all core areas?

11 Over the last year, has the committee only
considered agenda items that align with its
core functions or selected wider functions, as
set out in the 2022 guidance?

12 Has the committee met privately with the
external auditors and head of internal audit in
the last year?

70
Page 174



APPENDIX E \ SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE

Good practice questions Does not  Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

Membership and support

13 Has the committee been established in
accordance with the 2022 guidance as
follows?

e Separation from executive

e A size thatis not unwieldy and avoids use
of substitutes

e Inclusion of lay/co-opted independent
members in accordance with legislation or
CIPFA's recommendation

14 Have all committee members been appointed
or selected to ensure a committee membership
that is knowledgeable and skilled?

15 Has an evaluation of knowledge, skills and
the training needs of the chair and committee
members been carried out within the last two
years?

16 Have regular training and support
arrangements been put in place covering the
areas set out in the 2022 guidance?

17 Across the committee membership, is there a
satisfactory level of knowledge, as set out in
the 2022 guidance?

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative
support provided to the committee?

19 Does the committee have good working
relations with key people and organisations,
including external audit, internal audit and
the CFO?

Effectiveness of the committee

20 Has the committee obtained positive feedback
on its performance from those interacting with
the committee or relying on its work?

21 Are meetings well chaired, ensuring key
agenda items are addressed with a focus on
improvement?

22 Are meetings effective with a good level
of discussion and engagement from all the
members?

23 Has the committee maintained a non-political
approach to discussions throughout?

71
Page 175



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

24 Does the committee engage with a wide range
of leaders and managers, including discussion
of audit findings, risks and action plans with
the responsible officers?

25 Does the committee make recommendations
for the improvement of governance, risk and
control arrangements?

26 Do audit committee recommendations have
traction with those in leadership roles?

27 Has the committee evaluated whether and
how it is adding value to the organisation?

28 Does the committee have an action plan to
improve any areas of weakness?

29 Has this assessment been undertaken
collaboratively with the audit
committee members?

Subtotal score

Total score

Maximum possible score 200**

**

40 questions/sub-questions multiplied by five.

72
Page 176



Evaluating the

APPENDIX F
impact

and effectiveness of the
audit committee

An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it makes to and the
beneficial impact it has on the authority’s business. Since it is primarily an advisory body, it can be
more difficult to identify how the audit committee has made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness

will usually be characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support.

The improvement tool below can be used to support a review of effectiveness. It identifies the

broad areas where an effective audit committee will have impact.

Figure 1: The influential audit committee

GOOD
GOVERNANCE
AND DECISION
MAKING

EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE

INTERNAL RISK
CONTROLS MANAGEMENT

EFFECTIVE IMPROVING

AUDIT VALUE
AND FOR MONEY
ASSURANCE

EMBEDDING
ETHICAL
VALUES AND

FRAUD PUBLIC
REPORTING,
TRANSPARENCY
AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

73
Page 177




AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

The table includes examples of what the audit committee might do to have impact in each of
these areas.

The third area includes key indicators that might be expected to be in place if arrangements are
in fact effective. These indicators are not directly within the control of the audit committee, as it is
an advisory body. They do provide an indication that the authority has put in place adequate and
effective arrangements, which is the purpose of the committee.

Use the tool for discussion and evaluation of the strengths and weakness of the committee,
identifying areas for improvement.

Areas where the Examples of how the audit Key indicators of effective Your evaluation:
audit committee committee can demonstrate arrangements strengths,
can have impact its impact weaknesses and
by supporting proposed actions
improvement
Promoting the e Supporting the development e Elected members, the leadership
principles of good of alocal code of team and senior managers all
governance and governance. share a good understanding of
their applicationto o providing a robust review of governance, including the key
decision making. the AGS and the assurances principles and local arrangements.
underpinning it. e Local arrangements for
e Supporting reviews/audits of governance have been clearly set
governance arrangements. out in an up-to-date local code.
e Participating in self- e The authority’s scrutiny
assessments of governance arrangements are forward looking
arrangements. and constructive.
e Working with partner e Appropriate governance
audit committees to review arrangements established for all
governance arrangements in collaborations and arm’s-length
partnerships. arrangements.

e The head of internal audit’s
annual opinion on governance is
satisfactory (or similar wording).

Contributing to the e Encouraging ownership e The head of internal audit's
development of an of the internal control annual opinion over internal
effective control framework by appropriate control is that arrangements are
environment. managers. satisfactory.
e Actively monitoring e Assessments against control
the implementation of frameworks such as CIPFA's FM
recommendations from Code have been completed and a
auditors. high level of compliance identified.
e Raising significant e Control frameworks are in
concerns over controls place and operating effectively
with appropriate senior for key control areas — for
managers. example, information security or
procurement.

74
Page 178



APPENDIX F \ EVALUATING THE IMPACT AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your evaluation:
strengths,

Areas where the
audit committee

Examples of how the audit
committee can demonstrate

Key indicators of effective
arrangements

can have impact
by supporting
improvement

Supporting the
establishment of
arrangements for
the governance of
risk and for effective
arrangements to
manage risks.

Advising on the
adequacy of

the assurance
framework and
considering whether
assurance is
deployed efficiently
and effectively.

Supporting effective
external audit, with
a focus on high

its impact

Reviewing risk management e
arrangements and their
effectiveness, eg risk
management maturity or
benchmarking.

Monitoring improvements to
risk management.

Reviewing accountability
of risk owners for major/
strategic risks.

Reviewing the adequacy .
of the leadership team’s
assurance framework.

Specifying the committee’s
assurance needs, identifying
gaps or overlaps in
assurance.

Seeking to streamline
assurance gathering and
reporting.

Reviewing the effectiveness
of assurance providers,

eg internal audit, risk
management, external audit.

Reviewing and supporting
external audit arrangements
with focus on independence

weaknesses and
proposed actions

A robust process for managing
risk is evidenced by independent
assurance from internal audit or
external review.

The authority’s leadership team
have defined an appropriate
framework of assurance, including
core arrangements, major service
areas and collaborations and
external bodies.

The quality of liaison between
external audit and the authority is
satisfactory.

quality and timely and quality. e The auditors deliver in accordance
audit work. e Providing good engagement with their audit plan and any

on external audit plans amendments are well explained.

and reports. e An audit of high quality is

e Supporting the delivered.

implementation of audit

recommendations.
Supporting the e Reviewingthe audit charter e Internal audit that is in

quality of the
internal audit
activity, in particular
underpinning its
organisational
independence.

and functional reporting
arrangements.

Assessing the effectiveness

of internal audit

arrangements, providing .
constructive challenge and
supporting improvements.

Actively supporting the
quality assurance and
improvement programme of
internal audit.

conformance with PSIAS and
LGAN (as evidenced by the most
recent external assessment and
an annual self-assessment).

The head of internal audit and
the organisation operate in
accordance with the principles
of the CIPFA Statement on the
Role of the Head of Internal
Audit (2019).

75
Page 179



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER IN A LOCAL AUTHORITY

Your evaluation:
strengths,
weaknesses and
proposed actions

Areas where the
audit committee

Examples of how the audit
committee can demonstrate
its impact

Key indicators of effective
arrangements

can have impact
by supporting

improvement

Aiding the
achievement of the
authority’s goals
and objectives by
helping to ensure
appropriate
governance,

risk, control

and assurance
arrangements.

Supporting the
development of
robust arrangements
for ensuring value for
money.

Helping the authority
to implement the
values of good
governance,
including effective
arrangements for
countering fraud and
corruption risks.

Reviewing how the .
governance arrangements
support the achievement of
sustainable outcomes.
Reviewing major projects
and programmes to ensure
that governance and
assurance arrangements are
in place.

Reviewing the effectiveness
of performance management
arrangements.

Ensuring that assurance .
on value-for-money
arrangements is included in

the assurances received by

the audit committee.

Considering how
performance in value for
money is evaluated as part of
the AGS.

Following up issues raised
by external audit in their
value-for-money work.

Reviewing arrangements o
against the standards set

out in the Code of Practice on
Managing the Risk of Fraud
and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014).

Reviewing fraud risks and
the effectiveness of the
organisation’s strategy to
address those risks.

Assessing the effectiveness
of ethical governance
arrangements for both staff
and governors.

Inspection reports indicate that
arrangements are appropriate
to support the achievement of
service objectives.

The authority’s arrangements to
review and assess performance
are satisfactory.

External audit’s assessments of
arrangements to support best
value are satisfactory.

Good ethical standards are
maintained by both elected
representatives and officers. This
is evidenced by robust assurance
over culture, ethics and counter
fraud arrangements.

76
Page 180



APPENDIX F \ EVALUATING THE IMPACT AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Areas where the
audit committee

Examples of how the audit
committee can demonstrate
its impact

can have impact
by supporting
improvement

Promoting effective
public reporting

to the authority’s
stakeholders and
local community and
measures to improve
transparency and
accountability.

Working with key members/
the PCC and chief

constable to improve their
understanding of the AGS

and their contribution to it. N

Improving how the authority
discharges its responsibilities
for public reporting — for
example, better targeting o
the audience and use of

plain English.

e Reviewing whether decision
making through partnership 4
organisations remains
transparent and publicly
accessible and encourages
greater transparency.

e Publishing an annual report
from the committee.

OVERALL QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER

Key indicators of effective
arrangements

Your evaluation:
strengths,
weaknesses and
proposed actions

The authority meets the statutory
deadlines for financial reporting
with accounts for audit of an
appropriate quality.

The external auditor completed the
audit of the financial statements
with minimal adjustments and an
unqualified opinion.

The authority has published its
financial statements and AGS

in accordance with statutory
guidelines.

The AGS is underpinned by
a robust evaluation and is
an accurate assessment of
the adequacy of governance
arrangements.

1 Does the committee proactively seek assurance over the key indicators?

2 How proactive is the committee in responding to aspects of governance, risk, control and audit

that need change or improvement?

3 Are recommendations from the committee taken seriously by those responsible for

taking action?

REPORTING RESULTS

The outcome of the review can be used to inform the committee’s annual report.

77
Page 181



77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN
+44 (0)20 7543 5600

cipfa.org/

10/2022



https://www.cipfa.org

€8T abed

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
I5 NOVEMBER 2023 — 31 JANUARY 2024

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

The Audit and Governance Committee responsible for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements. This includes
overseeing the audit function, annual accounts and the work of the internal auditors, promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct of members and,
through its Standards Sub-Committee, determining standards matters.

The Committee has the following powers under the Council’s Constitution:

® To require the attendance of any Council officers and/or members in order to respond directly to any issue under consideration;
® To review any issues referred to it by the Chief Executive, other statutory officer or any Council body;

® To report and make recommendations to Council;

® To call expert witnesses from outside the Council to give advice on matters under review or discussion;

® The ability to raise issues at a meeting of the Executive; and

® The power to establish Sub-Committees.

This work programme sets out the expected business for meetings of the Audit and Governance Committee.

TT Wa)| epusby




8T abed

Item

| Meeting Date

23 November 2023 meeting (final report deadline: 14 November 2023)

Lead Officer

Internal Audit Progress Report 23 Nov 2023 Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP
lucy.cater@publicagroup.uk

External Audit Progress Report and Audit Plan for year ending | 23 Nov 2023 Georgina Dyer, Chief Accountant

31 March 2023 georgina.dyer@publicagroup.uk

Monitoring Report on Management’s responses to the External | 23 Nov 2023 James Howse, Interim Director of Finance

Auditors findings and implementation of External Audit james.howse@westoxon.gov.uk

recommendations

Treasury Management Mid-Term Report 23 Nov 2023 Georgina Dyer, Chief Accountant
georgina.dyer@publicagroup.uk

CIPFA’s Position Statement on Audit Committees 23 Nov 2023 Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP
lucy.cater@publicagroup.uk

23 March 2024 meeting (final report deadline: 8 March 2024)

External Audit Findings Report — year ending 31 March 2023 19 Mar 2024 James Howse, Interim Director of Finance
james.howse@westoxon.gov.uk

Internal Audit Progress Report 19 Mar 2024 Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP
lucy.cater@publicagroup.uk

Internal Audit Plan and Internal Audit Charter 2024/25 19 Mar 2024 Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP

lucy.cater@publicagroup.uk




GgT abed

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Update Report (RIPA
and IPA Annual Update)

19 Mar 2024

Emma Cathcart, Head of Service, Counter Fraud and
Enforcement Unit emma.cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk

Treasury Management Strategy 19 Mar 2024 Georgina Dyer, Chief Accountant
georgina.dyer@publicagroup.uk

Corporate Risk Register Update [9 Mar 2024 Cheryl Sloan, Business Manager - Business Continuity,
Governance and Risk cheryl.sloan@publicagroup.uk

Risk Management Policy 19 Mar 2024 Cheryl Sloan, Business Manager - Business Continuity,
Governance and Risk cheryl.sloan@publicagroup.uk

Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update [9 Mar 2024 Andrea McCaskie, Director of Governance
andrea.mccaskie@westoxon.gov.uk

Polling District and Places Review 19 Mar 2024 Andrew Brown, Democratic Services Business Manager
andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk

Provisional Member Induction and Training Programme [9 Mar 2024 Andrew Brown, Democratic Services Business Manager
andrew.brown@publicagroup.uk

Evaluation and Recommendations following completion of the 19 Mar 2024 Lucy Cater, Assistant Director SWAP

Self-Assessment Toolkit lucy.cater@publicagroup.uk

Cyber Security Update 19 Mar 2024 Phil Martin, Assistant Director for Business Support

phil.martin@publicagroup.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Ann A WODC Internal Audit Plan Progress Nov 2023 DRAFT
	Ann B Agreed Actions Nov

	7 External Audit Progress Report and Audit Plan for year ending 31st March 2023
	20231114 WODC - Progress Report November 2023
	Slide 1: West Oxfordshire District Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at November 2023
	Slide 5: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 6: Sector Update
	Slide 7: Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of audited local authority accounts in England – Grant Thornton
	Slide 8: Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’- Grant Thornton (Oct 23)
	Slide 9: Current local audit deadline ‘unachievable’- Grant Thornton(cont.) 
	Slide 10: DLUHC proposals to clear audit backlog 
	Slide 11: Call for sanctions for late accounts amid fears of ‘more Wokings - public accounts committee (PAC)  
	Slide 12: Around 700,000 children are studying in schools that require major rebuilding or refurbishment works - NAO
	Slide 13: LGPS valuation gives ‘cause for optimism’ – Hymans Robertson 
	Slide 14: Sustainability reporting in the public sector - CIPFA 

	20231114 WODC - Draft Audit Plan 2022-23
	Slide 1: West Oxfordshire District Council audit plan
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Key matters
	Slide 4: Key matters
	Slide 5: Introduction and headlines
	Slide 6: Introduction and headlines
	Slide 7: Significant risks identified
	Slide 8: Significant risks identified
	Slide 9: Significant risks identified
	Slide 10: Significant risks identified
	Slide 11: Other matters
	Slide 12: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 13: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 14: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 15: IT audit strategy
	Slide 16: Value for Money arrangements
	Slide 17: Audit logistics and team 
	Slide 18: Audit fees and updated Auditing Standards including ISA 315 Revised
	Slide 19: Audit fees
	Slide 20: Audit fees – detailed analysis
	Slide 21: Independence and non-audit services
	Slide 22: Independence and non-audit services
	Slide 23: Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance
	Slide 24


	8 Monitoring Report on Management’s responses to the External Auditors findings and implementation of External Audit recommendations
	Annex A External Audit Recommendations From Audit Findings Report 202122 - March 2023
	Annex B External Audit Recommendations From Auditor's Annual Report 202122 - August 2023

	9 Treasury Management Mid-Term Report
	10 CIPFA's Position Statement on Audit Committees
	Annex A 2022 CIPFA Audit Committees Position Statement
	Annex B 2022 The audit committee member in a local authority

	11 Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme 2023/24

